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“We have seen 

an incredible 

response to the 

pandemic, both 

personally and 

collectively, 

from our own 

teams and 

those working in 

the services we 

commission.” 

 

 

 

Welcome to the annual report and accounts 
for NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) for the financial year 2020/21. 

 
This year has been like no other we have seen. 
 
We started this financial year heading into a national lockdown, 
finding ourselves in a worldwide pandemic. Looking back over 
this year I’d like to offer my thoughts to those families and 
friends who have experienced the loss of a loved one and to 
those who have experienced hardship during these most 
challenging of times. 
 
This year’s report reflects the impact of the coronavirus 
pandemic on local health services.  
 
We have seen an incredible response, both personally and 
collectively, from our own teams and those teams working in the 
services we commission. They moved swiftly to integrate, 
working seamlessly as one focusing on those most vulnerable - 
providing safe care under extreme pressure.  
 
We have also started to see the emerging legacy of this year. The rising demand for mental 
health and wellbeing support, the impact on waiting times for non-urgent procedures and the 
reluctance of some people to come forward to have conversations about changes to their 
health, which may be a sign of cancer. These are all things which we will need to focus on, 
whilst still working through the pandemic. 
 
We are proud to have received the annual rating of outstanding for a third year. The months 
ahead will also be one of change for clinical commissioning groups. The role of commissioner 
will continue to be at the heart of understanding the needs of our local communities. The 
proposal to move local CCGs to a single integrated care system across South Yorkshire will 
also see a strengthened role for commissioning within a Barnsley health and care 
partnership.  
 
I am confident that by building on the local relationships forged in previous years and 
strengthened in this, and by looking after the wellbeing of our people, we’ll be well placed to 
navigate our way through this year ahead working with local communities to improve health 
and wellbeing. 
 
On behalf of our membership council, governing body and our chair, Dr 
Nick Balac, I particularly want to record our thanks to our dedicated staff 
in the CCG and in our member GP practices and to those in our partner 
organisations for the overwhelming effort and dedication they have shown 
to the people of Barnsley. 
 
Chris Edwards 
Accountable Officer, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group 
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Making a difference 
 
Responding to the pandemic 
 
Health and care partners have spent 2020/21 responding to the demands of the COVID-19 
pandemic. This has renewed our shared commitment to collaborative working to improve 
health outcomes for local people and prioritise tackling health inequalities.  
 
There have clearly been a number issues and challenges this year. Barnsley has seen high 
rates of COVID-19 cases and sadly over 800 people have died during the pandemic. We 
have seen a high rate of deaths and this may in part be due to an older population, higher 
prevalence of long-term conditions, including chronic respiratory disease and higher levels of 
social deprivation.  
 
We have worked with our local communities to provide support for those who are most 
vulnerable, including people who were asked to shield, and residents have complied with 
lockdown and responding to the enhanced testing programme. Like in many other areas we 
have seen fewer people accessing health services during the pandemic. This has included 
people who would likely need to be referred to secondary care for urgent treatment. Some 
people are still understandably nervous about accessing health and care services and 
confused about the best action to take to protect themselves and loved ones from exposure 
to the virus.  
 
Throughout the pandemic, health and care organisations have worked within local, regional 
and national command and control structures to coordinate contingency planning and ensure 
rapid escalation and resolution of any operational challenges. This has been a two-way 
approach, linking what is happening in our services, through to what’s happening in our local 
communities. This has included working with partners to target support to those most 
vulnerable to the virus and social distancing measures. 
 
There has been a tremendous effort from staff at the CCG and across all sectors during this 
pandemic. The personal impact that working through this pandemic has had has been great 
and the dedication and commitment of our colleagues in all areas across Barnsley and the 
region can never be underestimated. 
 
Despite the focus on COVID-19, there has been a significant amount of effort to maintain 
core services and to focus on some of those areas of transformation that were planned 
before the pandemic.  
 
COVID-19 vaccination programme 
 
The local vaccination programme exemplifies the strong partnership that has been 
developing in Barnsley in recent years. The Barnsley NHS GP Vaccination Service has safely 
and successfully delivered the Barnsley element of what has been the biggest vaccination 
programme the country has seen.  
 
Together with the support of partners, the primary care network of GP practices, hosted by 
Barnsley Healthcare Federation, has quickly and successfully mobilised a significant 
community vaccination hub service across Barnsley. This has included a full vaccination 
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programme for care home residents and staff, vaccinations to those who are housebound 
and dedicated clinics for vulnerable groups such as those who are homeless. We have seen 
staff go over and above to set up and keep the vaccination service going in addition to 
keeping core services in place. We have had an overwhelming response too from local 
people who have come forward to volunteer in all weathers and at all times.  

 
Post COVID-19 clinics 
 
A dedicated post-COVID assessment clinic has been rapidly established to provide timely 
and equitable access to people experiencing multiple long-term health effects (12 weeks 
plus) following COVID-19 infections, regardless of whether they were admitted to hospital. 
The persistent symptoms that people may experience include breathlessness, chronic 
fatigue, brain fog, anxiety and stress are commonly known as ‘long COVID’.  
 
These people require detailed investigation as well as intensive and specialist support. The 
community clinic launched at the end of December 2020 and is provided by Barnsley 
Healthcare Federation. People attending the clinic complete a comprehensive holistic 
assessment covering physical, cognitive and psychological aspects of health in line with 
NICE guidance. The clinic assesses and triage patients to the most appropriate services. 
People may need therapeutic input, rehabilitation, psychological support, specialist 
investigation or treatment once they have been assessed at the clinic. 
 
Information and advice for people recovering from an acute COVID-19 infection, or who think 
they may have long COVID, is available on the national yourcovidrecovery.nhs.uk website.  

 
Care closer to home 
 
Prior to the COVID pandemic we were in the process of mobilising a new neighbourhood 
teams service specification across Barnsley to create multi-disciplinary teams of nurses and 
allied health professionals, working closely with general practice, to support people who are 
at risk of hospital admission or recovery following an episode of illness or injury. Much of this 
work had to be put on hold as teams turned their attention to preparing for and managing the 
impacts of the pandemic.  
 
Work to develop a community single point of access (SPA) has continued through the 
pandemic. The SPA brings together the RightCare Barnsley and Community Nurse Referrals 
Service to manage referrals from health professionals to community services, to avoid 
hospital admissions where it is appropriate and to facilitate discharge from hospital. The 
teams have been instrumental in ensuring continued patient flow through services during the 
pandemic, preventing delays in hospital that can lead to poorer health outcomes. 
 
During the pandemic services were quickly stepped up to support care homes in 
symptomatic testing, outbreak management and increased wrap around care. A discharge-
to-assess process was put in place, which involve funding and supporting people to leave 
hospital, when safe and appropriate to do so, and continuing their care and assessment out 
of hospital. This means people can then be assessed for their longer-term needs in the right 
place. The set up pf this process is one of the areas that demonstrate the benefits of closer 
working between health and social care organisations to provide seamless care for 
individuals. 
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Stroke rehabilitation in the community 
 
This year also saw the development of specific stroke community rehabilitation services in 
Barnsley. The service, which operates seven days a week, was developed in line with the 
introduction of Hyper Acute Stroke Units across our region, which are used to get people to 
the most specialist care as soon as possible after a stroke. 
 
Once people return home from that initial specialist treatment, they can now be supported by 
the new integrated community stroke team.  
 
Over the time that the service has been in place it has seen a steady increase in the number 
of referrals with improved outcomes and experience for the people using the service. It has 
also seen the number of days people are spending in a hospital bed reduce. 
 
Cancer care 
 

In Barnsley, partners have worked hard to prioritise cancer services during the pandemic. 
The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Cancer Alliance and Barnsley Cancer Steering Group are 
using a behavioural insights approach to minimise these ‘hidden harms’ from the pandemic. 
To manage some of the delays and in line with national guidance, everyone with cancer has 
been clinically prioritised to identify who needs to be treated urgently and who does not 
require diagnostics or treatment in the short-term. The process has been implemented for all 
new referrals and patients on treatment pathways.  

In Barnsley the rate of two-week referrals for suspected cancer recovered quickly after the 
initial wave of the pandemic, faster than in other parts of the region.  

Respiratory services 
 
The BREATHE service has been in place in Barnsley for a few years. It was set up by the 
CCG to offer a wrap-around support service to adults with respiratory conditions. It focused 
on proactively supporting people to manage their condition on an ongoing basis, ultimately 
reducing the number of times they need hospital care but equally as important, improving 
their quality of life and giving them more confidence whilst being supported at home. 
 
The service was re-procured during 2020/21 to focus more on the proactive support element. 
The local community health services were appointed to run these services and will do so 
linking in with GP and hospital teams. The new service is due to be launched in July 2021. 

 
Mental health and wellbeing  
 
The Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) re-procurement process 
started in early 2020 but was put on hold due to the Covid-19 pandemic. The decision was 
taken to extend the contract of the current service providers, South West Yorkshire 
Partnership Foundation NHS Trust (SWYPFT) and MindSpace. This decision was reviewed 
and in the continuing circumstances, SWYPFT maintain this service and are developing it in 
line with the ambitions of the new service specification. 
 
To date, significant progress has been made to transform and improve CAMHS in line with 
the new service specification. This includes reducing the number of children and young 
people waiting, and length of time that they wait to receive support from the service.  
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The CCG has also enhanced the support offer for those children and young people with mild 
to moderate mental health issues by commissioning three Barnsley mental health support 
teams. The continuity of care was put in place as staff working with MindSpace transferred to 
the support teams. 
 
A series of additional services were put in place during the pandemic to offer telephone 
support to adults with their mental health and wellbeing; bereavement support and; specialist 
bereavement support for families and friends affected by suicide. 
 
In addition to this new bereavement by suicide service, the Governing Body took on specific 
development work to understand more about the work locally to prevent suicide and see 
where they could further support and enhance it. 
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Performance overview 
Our role 

As a clinically-led statutory NHS body, NHS Barnsley CCG is responsible for planning and 
commissioning health care services for our local area to achieve the best possible health 
outcomes for our local registered population of around 264,000 and in doing so acting 
effectively, efficiently and economically. We do this by assessing local needs, agreeing 
priorities and strategies, and then buying services on behalf of our population from a range of 
providers whilst constantly responding and adapting to changing local circumstances.  

NHS Barnsley CCG is led by local doctors and elected primary care members; a specialist 
consultant; and a nurse, all of whom are close to patients and their needs. The CCG also has 
lay members on its governing body, sharing responsibility as part of the team to ensure that 
the CCG exercises its functions effectively, efficiently, economically, with good governance 

and in accordance with the terms of the CCG's constitution as agreed by its members. We 
believe that this enables us to improve the quality of care provided to all the people of 
Barnsley. We are supported by a very experienced team of NHS professionals. 

Vision and values: We have set out our vision for Barnsley which is underpinned by our 
values and principles. This vision will guide and inform our work, along with the local 
population’s health needs and experience of health care. 

 
Our vision  

 
“We are a clinically led commissioning organisation that is accountable to the people of 
Barnsley. We are committed to ensuring high quality and sustainable health care by putting 
the people of Barnsley first.” 
 
Our values  
 
These underpin everything we do as commissioners and an employing organisation. They 
are: 

 

 Equity and fairness 

 Services are designed to put people first 

 They are needs led and resources are targeted according to needs 

 Quality care delivered by vibrant primary and community care or in a safe and 
sustainable local hospital 

 Excellent communication with patients. 
 

Our strategy 
 
We are in the second year of the NHS Long Term Plan, which was launched in January 
2019. As medicine advances, health needs change and society develops, the NHS has to 
continually move forward so that in 10 years’ time we have a service fit for the future. The 
NHS Long Term Plan was drawn up by frontline staff, patients groups, and national experts 
to be ambitious but realistic. 
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South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System (ICS) published plans to significantly 
invest and improve healthcare for local people – including aims to significantly reduce the 
number of preventable deaths and illness that are caused by smoking, obesity and mental 
illness. 
 
Healthy life expectancy is lower in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw compared to the national 
average, and there are high levels of the common causes of disability and death including 
smoking, obesity, physical inactivity and hospital admissions due to alcohol. The plan aims to 
address these issues by tackling the ‘burden of illness’ where it can be prevented from 
occurring in the first place. 
 
Highlights from the plan included improved community-based services to prevent 
unnecessary hospital admissions; investment in digital systems to enhance patient 
accessibility to online appointments and working more closely with community-based 
institutions like schools to teach children about good mental health. 
 
We have also been a partner in the development of Barnsley 2030 strategy.  
 
Barnsley 2030 is a fantastic opportunity to work together to tell the story of our borough - so 
we can visualise a future for everyone. 
 
A lot can change in a short amount of time, so we need to start thinking about how the 
Barnsley borough might be different in 2030. 
 
Barnsley 2030 focuses on what every one of us does across the borough that makes 
Barnsley the place that it is. 
 
The Barnsley 2030 board, of which the CCG is a member, is a group of key place 
stakeholders, from different businesses and organisations across all sectors, that will provide 
oversight for the delivery of the Barnsley 2030 strategy, and making sure that we all play a 
part in achieving our borough's vision and ambitions. 
 
Our objectives 
 

 To have the highest quality of governance and processes to support our business 

 To commission high quality health care that meets the needs of individuals and 
groups 

 Wherever it makes safe clinical sense to bring care closer to home 

 To support safe and sustainable local hospital services, supporting them to transform 
the way they provide services so that they are as efficient and effective as possible 
for the people of Barnsley 

 To develop services through real partnerships with mutual accountability and strong 
governance that improves health and health care and effectively use the Barnsley 
pound. 

 
Our constitution 
 
Through our constitution, our 32 member GP practices delegate responsibility for running the 
organisation to our Governing Body, which in turn is supported by a range of strategic 
committees. Our Governing Body’s role is to set the strategic direction of the organisation, 
seek assurance that the strategy is being delivered, and to set the culture of the organisation. 
 

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/barnsley-2030/?opt-in-translate=True
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Our partnerships 
 
We believe that we can achieve more when we work in partnership. This year it has been 
more important than ever to come together and work as one team. 
 
A swift and effective emergency response was put into place across the whole of Barnsley 
and across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, as every statutory organisation and health and 
care providing organisation responded to the unprecedented needs emerging from the 
pandemic. 
 
Throughout the year we also continued to meet as part of the Barnsley integrated care 
partnership, with updates from this group reported regularly at out Governing Body meetings. 
 
We also continued to be a member of the Barnsley Health and Wellbeing board and the 
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Local Resilience Forum.  
 
Future plans for South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System 
 
With the February 2021 publication of the government's white paper, 'Integration and 
innovation: working together to improve health and social care for all', the South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System (SYB ICS) is set to evolve into a statutory body by 
April 2022. Barnsley CCG, along with all other CCGs in England, will be abolished and the 
functions and staff from the five CCGs in SYB will transfer into the new SYB ICS NHS body.  
 
There will still remain a strong Barnsley place-based commissioning presence and Barnsley 
CCG continues to work in collaboration with the other SYB health and social care 
organisations to ensure that we take advantage of these system changes to further integrate 
care and improve the health outcomes for our local populations.  

 

Performance summary 

CCG Oversight Framework 
 
The NHS Oversight Framework informs the assessment of CCGs in 2020/21. It is intended 
as a focal point for joint work, support and dialogue between NHS England, NHS 
Improvement, CCGs, providers and integrated care systems. 
 
In recent years it has become increasingly clear that the best way to manage NHS resource 
to deliver high quality, sustainable care is to focus on organising health at both system and 
organisational level.  
 
This approach to oversight set out how regional teams review performance and identify 
support needs across integrated care systems (ICSs). As the NHS moved into a national 
emergency response, the meetings between local and system leaders were paused.  
 
The final rating for the CCG’s assessment in 2019/20 was Outstanding. This has been the 
rating for the last three years. 
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Financial Performance 

NHS Barnsley CCG achieved all of its financial duties in 2020/21. This is demonstrated in the 
table on page 25 and within the Annual Accounts. In addition, the CCG ended the year with a 
small surplus of £195,000, in line with NHS England expectations.  

The Annual Accounts have been prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) and in accordance with the Group Accounting Manual issued by NHS England and 
the Department of Health and Social Care.  

The financial landscape for 2021/22 is challenging, given the continued impact of the Covid-
19 pandemic.  Financial planning processes continue to operate in two halves with Half 1 
(April 2021 to September 2021 - H1) being completed during June 2021 and Half 2 (October 
2021 to March 2022 -H2) expected during the summer of 2021.   

This process therefore brings some level of uncertainty around funding within the NHS, but 
the CCG continues to ensure that services are delivered making best use of funding 
received.    
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Performance analysis 
How we measure performance 
 
NHS Constitution 

Rights and 

Pledges and NHS 
England’s 
Oversight 
Framework 

We monitor our performance against the NHS constitution measures 
domains within the NHS England and NHS Improvement Oversight 
Framework on an ongoing basis, and we meet with NHS England to 
formally take stock of our performance against the domains. The 
outcomes from these meetings are formally reported to our 
Governing Body via our Chief Officer Report. 

Financial 
performance 

Our finance and contracting team monitors our financial performance 
on an ongoing basis. Our financial performance is overseen at the 
monthly Finance and Performance Committee and is reported to our 
Governing Body in the integrated performance report. 

Provider 
performance 
including NHS 
Constitution 
standards 

We measure the performance of providers using contractually 
agreed schedules of key performance indicators and quality 
indicators. 

 

The quality and completeness of the data received is continually 
assessed by our business intelligence team. Where performance is 
below the required standard for a single, or for multiple measures, 
the provider is asked for an explanation including actions and 
timeframes to bring the performance or quality of care back up to the 
required standard. 
 
Performance is reported and monitored to the Finance and 
Performance Committee and to the Governing Body via the 
Integrated Performance report. 

Better Care Fund The Better Care Fund (BCF) is intended to transform local health and 
social care services so that they work together to provide improved 
and joined up care and support. It is a government initiative, bringing 
existing resources from the NHS and local authorities into a single 
pooled budget. 
 

Performance against the pooled budget is monitored with local 
authority colleagues, through a sub-committee of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. The CCG’s Finance and Performance Committee 
receives reports on operational and financial performance of the 
BCF as part of the Integrated Performance Report. The schemes 
supported by the BCF are an inherent part of the overall integrated 
performance report to Governing Body. 
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Progress on NHS Constitution Targets 

The NHS constitution targets listed below are standards which are reported at each of the 
CCG’s Governing Body meeting in public. They relate to any patient registered with a 
Barnsley GP, wherever they are treated. 

We have a history of good performance for Barnsley registered patients and in previous 
years have reported these targets have been met or nearly met. The NHS has seen an 
incredibly challenging year, impacted on by the pandemic. Despite this, a number of targets 
have been met and have been higher. These include the number people being seen within 
two weeks of a suspected cancer and the number of people completing improved access to 
psychological therapies and also moving to recovery.  

The reasons some targets were met and some were not are many and have varied 
throughout the year as each wave has emerged, peaked and passed. It is important to note 
that the NHS operated under the highest level of emergency control for much of the year. 
This dictated that many of the services needed to be prioritised, such as treatment for 
COVID-19 along with tests for cancer and any subsequent treatment, with many non-urgent 
care health care needs assessed and in some cases treatments deferred.  

Where the targets have not been met and people may have waited longer for treatment, 
everything possible has been done to make sure ensure patient safety and that those with 
the most urgent need have continued to receive the treatment and care that they need. 

The CCG and the local health and care system have a comprehensive recovery and reset 
plan for 2021/22, which is guided by NHS planning guidance and locally determined 
priorities. The priorities will include progressing treatments and diagnostics for those with or 
suspected of having cancer as well as reducing the wait for those people who need a 
planned operation/procedure. 

Further information on the targets is detailed below.  

These are the NHS Constitution targets: 
 
Referral to treatment waiting times for non-urgent consultant-led treatment 

 

 Patients on incomplete non-emergency pathways (yet to start treatment) should have 
been waiting no more than 18 weeks from referral – the target was 92% and the figure for 
Barnsley was 74.44% 

 
Diagnostic test waiting times 
 

 Patients waiting for a diagnostic test should have been waiting less than six weeks from 
referral – target 99%. 37.25% (against the 1%) waited more than six weeks although 
there was continued improvement and recovery seen in the final three months of 20/21. 

 
A&E waits 
 

 Patients should be admitted, transferred or discharged within four hours of their arrival at 
an A&E department – target 95%. The figure for Barnsley registered patients was 85.1%. 
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Cancer waits – 2 week wait  
 

 Maximum two-week wait for first outpatient appointment for patients referred urgently 
with suspected cancer by a GP – target 93%. Barnsley’s figure was above target at 
96.49% 

 Maximum two-week wait for first outpatient appointment for patients referred urgently 
with breast symptoms (where cancer was not initially suspected) – target 93%. 
Barnsley’s figure was above target at 95.67% 

 
Cancer waits – 31 days 
 

 Maximum one month (31-day) wait from diagnosis to first definitive treatment for all 
cancers – target 96%. Barnsley’s figure was above target at 96.76% 

 Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where that treatment is surgery – target 
94%. Barnsley’s figure was under the target at 89.95% 

 Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where that treatment is an anti-cancer 
drug regimen – target 98%. Barnsley’s figure was under target at 97.87% but continued to 
improve toward the end of the year. 

 Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where the treatment is a course of 
radiotherapy – target 94%. Barnsley’s figure was above target at 95.34% 

 
Cancer waits – 62 days 
 

 Maximum two-month (62-day) wait from urgent GP referral to first definitive treatment for 
cancer – target 85%. Barnsley’s figure was under the target at 75.46% 

 Maximum 62-day wait from referral from an NHS screening service to first definitive 
treatment for all cancers – target 90%. Barnsley’s figure was under target at 75% 

 
Ambulance response times 
 

 This information is only measured across Yorkshire and the Humber. Category 1 incidents 
(the most urgent) should be responded to within 7 minutes (mean response time). There 
was an improvement on figures in March 2020 with the 20/21 time at 7 minutes 20 
seconds. Category 2 incidents should be responded to within 18 minutes (mean response 
time). This also saw a reduction from March 2020 but remains over the target of 18mins, 
at 21mins 19secs average for March 2021. 

 
Mental health waiting times - Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT): 
 

 People who complete treatment, moving to recovery – target 50% 

 People entering treatment against level of need – target 1.83%  

 People who complete treatment, moving to recovery – target 50% 
 
People entering treatments did not meet the 1.83% in March 2021, nor did we see an 
improvement on last year’s results. The other IAPT measures did meet planned targets as at 
March 2021 and these were mostly consistent throughout the year. 
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Development and performance in-year 
 
CCGs have a number of financial duties under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
amended). Full details of the CCG’s financial performance are available in the Annual 
Accounts section. The CCG’s performance against those duties in 2020/21 was as follows: 

 
Duty Target 

£’000s 

Actual 
Performance 

£’000s 

Achievement 

Expenditure not to exceed income 490,545 490,350 Yes 

Capital resource use does not exceed the 

amount specified in NHS Directions 

0 0 Yes 

Revenue resource use does not exceed the 

amount specified in NHS Directions 

490,486 490,291 Yes 

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) 

does not exceed the amount specified in 

NHS Directions 

0 0 Yes 

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) 

does not exceed the amount specified in 

NHS Directions 

0 0 Yes 

Revenue administration resource use does 

not exceed the amount specified in NHS 

Directions– running costs 

5,242 3,966 Yes 

Better Care Fund Performance 

The Better Care Fund (BCF) was established from 1 April 2015, in line with NHS England 
and Local Government Association directions. 
 
The aim of the BCF is to support transformation and integration of health and social care in 
line with the Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Barnsley. 
 
The total value of the fund in 2020/21 is £37million. £3.4m of this is provided from grants 
made directly to the local authority for disabilities facilities and social care adaptations and 
£13.1m from the Improved Better Care Fund and Winter Pressures Grant. The remaining 
£20.7million is provided from the CCG baseline allocation. 
 
Note 15, page 23 of the financial statements details the contributions and services 
commissioned as per the pooled budget arrangement. 
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Quality, engagement, 
health inequality and health 
and wellbeing strategy 
We work to ensure that we comply with the statutory duties laid down in the National 
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). In this section, we have reflected on our duties 
under: 

 

 Duty as to improvement in quality of services 

 Patient and public involvement and consultation 

 Duties as to reducing inequalities 

 Contribution to the delivery of joint health and wellbeing strategies 
 

Improvement in quality of services 
 
The NHS Constitution places a requirement on all providers of healthcare to strive to 
deliver high quality and safe care to patients. Commissioners of healthcare have an 
important role in driving quality improvement and gaining assurance around the quality of 
care delivered by the provider organisations that they commission services from. 
 
Clinical Quality Boards 
 
Clinical Quality Boards (CQB) are in place with each main NHS provider. The Clinical 
Quality Boards focus on the three domains of quality: patient experience, patient safety 
and clinical effectiveness. During 2020/21 the CQBs have continued their work to provide 
assurance to the CCG on the quality and safety of locally commissioned services.  
 
Quality Assurance Visits 
 
The purpose of the clinically led visits is to assist in gaining assurance about the quality 
and safety of healthcare services the CCG commissions. It provides an opportunity for 
commissioners to engage directly with patients, clinicians and management to hear what 
they feel works well, their ideas for improvement and for the CCG to recommend any 
areas for further development. The visits are developmental in nature with a supportive 
and enabling focus. 
 
Feedback will be aimed at highlighting good practice and identifying ways in which safety, 
experience and effectiveness can be improved. This can be through actions by the 
provider and through collaboration with other partners. 

 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspections 
 
The CQC adapted the way they monitor services due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) 
pandemic. Their transitional monitoring approach helped them target their regulatory 
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activity most effectively. Throughout 2020/21 the CCG’s Quality and Patient Safety 
Committee received updates on the outcome of these inspections. No new inspections 
were due or made for Barnsley Hospital or for South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust. Three GP practices received their rating. 

 
Serious Incidents 
 
The CCG has a responsibility to hold providers to account for their responses to serious 
incidents. The CCG is informed of all serious incidents and near misses within any of its 
commissioned services, the key providers are BHNFT and SWYPFT. The CCG receives 
regular updates from these providers regarding serious incidents and provider assurance 
documents to demonstrate there is a continued focus on lessons learned which are shared 
with the Quality and Patient Safety Committee. 
 
The Clinical Quality Boards provide high level communication at a senior level between 
provider and commissioner and we work together to identify and action potential or actual 
serious quality failures in the interests of patients. 
 
The CCG is also informed about serious incidents within other NHS providers that involve 
Barnsley residents.  
 
Patient Experience 
 
Friends and Family Test (FFT) scores and patient opinions from the NHS website are 
assessed alongside local information in order to understand health services from a patient 
experience. Themes and trends are analysed and taken into account alongside regional 
and national comparisons. 
 
Data submission and publication for the Friends and Family Test (FFT) restarted for acute 
and community providers from December 2020, following the pause during the response 
to COVID-19.  
 
Data from December 2020 onwards reflects feedback collected during the COVID-19 
pandemic, while, also, implementing the new guidance after a long period of suspension of 
FFT data submission. The number of responses collected is, therefore, likely to have been 
affected. Some services may have collected fewer FFT responses, or been unable to 
collect responses at all, because of arrangements in place to care for COVID-19 patients. 

 
Comments, Complaints, Compliments 

 
The CCG welcomes all comments and feedback about the CCG and its role in 
commissioning services on behalf of the people of Barnsley. The CCG aims to provide a 
clear, simple and easy to understand process for managing patient experience feedback 
which is fair and impartial, widely publicised and accessible to all.  
 
The CCG also has a role in signposting people to the appropriate providers of NHS care 
regarding complaints and ensuring people are aware of both the provider’s patient 
feedback systems and the local independent advocacy service. 
 
The majority of contacts made to the CCG are signposted to other organisations, with only 
a minority referring specifically to the CCG. This year, the contacts are mainly focused on 
children’s continuing healthcare packages of care.  
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In addition to using complaints and comments to support its role in commissioning 
services, the CCG is delighted to receive compliments and positive feedback that help to 
demonstrate where things have gone well and where lessons about good practice can be 
shared. 
 
There has been an incredible amount of support and positive messages toward the NHS 
during this year which has been received on our social media sites and direct to services. 
This has been linked to the work the NHS has been doing to respond to the pandemic and 
then through the successful roll out of the COVID-19 vaccination programme in Barnsley. 
 
Never Events 
 
NHS Improvement describes a never event as serious incidents that are wholly 
preventable because guidance or safety recommendations that provide strong systemic 
protective barriers are available at a national level and should have been implemented by 
all healthcare providers. 
 
There have been four never events which were recorded at Barnsley Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust in 2020/21.  
 
Safeguarding – Adults 
 
As commissioners of care and partners in the Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board the 
CCG has a key role in the safeguarding of adults including the prevention of abuse and 
neglect.  
 
The CCG continues to be an active partner in the Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board 
with regular attendance at meetings of the Board in addition to holding a position on the 
Board subgroups.  
 
Collaborative working with key partners is imperative in the CCG successfully discharging 
its safeguarding adult responsibilities. The CCG is a member of the Domestic Homicide 
Review and Safeguarding Adult Review Executive Panel supporting both the Safeguarding 
Adults Board and the Safer Barnsley Partnership Board in the commissioning of reviews to 
ensure that lessons are learned from the way in which local services and individuals work 
to safeguard adults.  
 
Care homes continue to feature in adult safeguarding concerns raised by CCG staff. The 
CCG works in partnership with the local authority and provides professional advice to 
support contractual actions they may need to take in relation to the standards of care 
provided by care home services. In addition, safe and well checks are undertaken for any 
continuing healthcare patients in a home where there are concerns about standards of 
care.  
 
We have structured and proportionate approaches to identify and address concerns within 
care homes and where appropriate, the CCG will support the home in planning and 
implementing changes to enhance care through provision of expert advice such as that 
relating to care planning, medicines management and infection prevention and control 
measures. 
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The Quality and Patient Safety Committee has received regular targeted reports on adult 
safeguarding activity on behalf of the Governing Body and is fully sighted on current 
opportunities and challenges. 
 
Safeguarding – Children 
 
As with adult safeguarding, the CCG is a key partner in the multi-agency arrangements to 
safeguard children and promote their welfare, and is a committed and active member of 
the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership (BSCP) and its sub groups.   
 
The CCG is an equal partner, and has shared responsibility, along with the police and 
social care. The CCG is represented in these arrangements by the chief nurse and the 
designated nurse who plays an active part in the sub groups and related work streams. 
 
As a CCG we work in partnership, with other relevant agencies and partners, to ensure 
that good governance arrangements are in place to safeguard children.  Ensuring that 
staff in all agencies understand their role and responsibilities and are well supported by 
robust policies, training, supervision and support. The CCG supports the BSCP in 
delivering a comprehensive audit programme to ensure these objectives are being 
achieved. 
 
The pandemic has of course brought its own challenges and the CCG has worked with 
other partners to ensure we do our upmost to safeguard children.  Periods of lockdown 
have led to children not being as visible as usual, and agencies have worked hard to try 
and ensure those perceived to be most vulnerable were still seen by professionals.  
Additionally, many families may have experienced what is commonly termed the ‘pressure 
cooker effect’ where the impact of lockdown, school closures, social isolation and health 
and potentially financial worries can all lead to increased stress and the potential for abuse 
or neglect occurring.  In addition to the efforts of practitioners and increased vigilance on 
their part, the partnership contacted Hallam FM to make a plea to the community to also 
be vigilant to where families may be struggling and need help and support.   

 
The CCG continues to work with partner agencies to ensure we offer help to children and 
families at the earliest signs of support being required. Additionally, that we have a shared 
understanding of those children that may be more vulnerable and are taking proactive 
steps to jointly recognise and respond. 
 
In order to learn lessons and improve services, the BSCP undertakes reviews following 
the death or serious harm to a child, where abuse/neglect is a factor. The CCG is a crucial 
partner in this process and is represented on the safeguarding review panel. Over the last 
twelve months we have unfortunately experienced cases that have required a 
safeguarding review. The learning form these is disseminated across all partners and 
action plans developed and monitored to ensure learning. The CCG is also actively 
engaged in the child death process, and ensuring any potential learning is captured and 
acted upon.  The last year has seen in an increase in the number of deaths from unsafe 
sleeping arrangements.  As such the CCG has taken a lead in taking action to address 
this including a media campaign to raise public awareness.   

 
As with adults, our Quality and Patient Safety Committee receives regular reports on 
safeguarding children to ensure they are well informed regarding opportunities, challenges 
and the work being done to safeguard the children of Barnsley and improve their 
outcomes. 
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Engaging people and communities 

In order to effectively commission the right services on behalf of our local community, we need 
to find out the views and experiences of members of the public, patients, and their carers, 
especially those people who are less likely to speak up for themselves. 

As the people who use and pay for the local NHS, it is really important for us to hear 
comments, experiences, ideas and suggestions from local people from across Barnsley about 
the ways in which we can develop and improve services to benefit our local communities. 

Our duty to involve 
  
NHS England published the most recent statutory guidance for CCGs and NHS England 
commissioners on Patient and Public Participation in Commissioning Health and Care.  
 
It sets out ten key actions and links to the Guide to annual reporting on the legal duty to 
involve patients and the public in commissioning.  

Following the publication of the guidance, NHS England carried out its assessment of CCG’s 
approach to patient and community engagement. Barnsley CCG received the highest rating of 
Green Star again 2020/21. 

Our approach to involvement 

Our engagement and involvement strategy is available on our website here. It outlines how we 
are committed to engaging, involving and consulting with a wide range of audiences, using the 
most appropriate tools and techniques.  

At the heart of our strategy is a set of guiding involvement principles which were developed in 
collaboration with the Barnsley Patient Council.   

How we involve the public in our governance  

Public, community and patient engagement activity is formally reported through to our 
Governing Body meetings in public. These have taken place virtually during the pandemic and 
people have been able to submit questions beforehand.  

At the start of each governing body meeting in public we hear a patient story to ensure that the 
service user voice is at the heart of every meeting.  We also film these patient stories and 
publish them on our website so anyone can view them. We also use the films in staff training 
and development. 

Our Equality and Engagement Committee is a sub-committee of our governing body.  This 
committee oversees our engagement and equality work and is responsible for assuring the 
governing body that we are carrying out our statutory duties in relation to these two areas.  

A Healthwatch Barnsley representative sits on the group which is chaired by our CCG Lay 
Member with the remit for patient and public involvement. Minutes and key actions feed into 
the governing body through a standing item on the agenda presented by the lay member.  

https://www.england.nhs.uk/participation/involvementguidance/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/guid-annual-reprting-legal-duty-july16.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/guid-annual-reprting-legal-duty-july16.pdf
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/strategies-policies-and-plans.htm
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/patient-stories.htm
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/committees.htm
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There is also an involvement and engagement report at every governing body meeting which 
is presented by the head of communications and engagement. 

Where appropriate engagement and/or consultation proposals are also submitted to the local 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Where matters span more than one CCG area, such as in 
the case of work across the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System, a joint 
overview and scrutiny committee will be receive proposals. 

Meetings of both our Governing Body and Primary Care Commissioning Committee have 
taken place virtually during the pandemic and people have been able to submit questions 
beforehand. 

Equality impact assessments (EIA) are an integral part of our commissioning processes. This 
involves looking at what steps could be taken to advance equality, eliminate discrimination and 
promote good relations.   

In order to meet our statutory duties as a CCG, all policies, procedures, strategies, 
organisational change and services should be equality impact assessed.  This is alongside 
being assessed in terms of their appropriate patient and public involvement requirements.  

Our equality objectives are published on our website as well as our Public Sector Equality Duty 
report. 

How we involve you to make a difference  

There are also a range of other ways people have got involved in local health services and 
sharing their views. These include but are not limited to: local GP Practice Patient Groups 
(PPGs); Barnsley Patient Council; and Your Voice Barnsley groups. People have been 
involved in a range of activities from service developments, procurement panels, consultations 
through to the monitoring of services.  

As a CCG, we continue to build upon the strong foundations of the existing partnerships and 
relationships in place across Barnsley with both our statutory partners working across health 
and social care and our local community and voluntary sector organisations. 

Our involvement highlights  

During 2020/21 people have talked to us about the following issues and service areas.   

Developing a new service model for respiratory services for adults in Barnsley  

During August and September 2020, we asked people to feedback their views and comments 
on our proposals for the development of a new service model for respiratory services for adults 
in Barnsley and any recommendations for changes. People fed back on the proposals, 
provided direct feedback on their own experiences or posed questions for consideration. 

Over the course of the engagement period we heard from over 50 people who fed back to us 
either in person at one of the online meetings or focus session that we have held, via one of 
the two surveys that we have hosted online and provided paper copies of (upon request) or via 
email or telephone call directly to the CCG. 

 

https://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/public-sector-equality-duty.htm
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The emerging themes from the conversations and feedback that we have received as part of 
this brief engagement period helped to reinforce our direction of travel in relation to our 
proposals for the development of a new respiratory service for adults in Barnsley and to further 
inform the service specification.   

This will also help to shape the development of the new service going forwards and we hope to 
continue the dialogue that we have established with the range of stakeholders highlighted 
within the engagement report which can be accessed here. 

Understanding experiences of local people of life during the pandemic  

The CCG along with other partners from across the borough have worked with Healthwatch 
Barnsley to shape several local surveys designed to gather insight and feedback from local 
people about their experiences of life during the pandemic.   

The surveys were promoted by all partners working across the borough and ran at different 
points during the last year in order to gain a sense of how life has been for local people and 
also around their experiences of accessing local health and care services at this time.    

Many of the same questions have been used to enable us to compare and contrast the 
responses received to these as well as collect new insights from those questions included for 
the first time.  The results and collective insight have been used to shape how local partners 
have responded to the changing demands and impact on the local community as a result of 
the pandemic.  The survey reports and feedback can be accessed here. 

Barnsley care homes and GP practice realignment  
 
The NHS has set out its plan for the next 10 years.  The ageing well programme includes an 
ambition for the NHS to strengthen its support for the people who live and work in and around 
care homes and a commitment to roll out Enhanced Health in Care Homes (EHCH) across 
England by 2024, commencing in 2020.  
 
The Primary Care Network (PCN) Direct Enhanced Service (DES) Enhanced Health in Care 
Homes Specification requires that care homes are aligned to a single PCN and that the PCN 
delivers all the requirements set out in the network contract DES specification, including the 
establishment of multidisciplinary teams, the review and development of personalised care and 
support plans and the delivery of weekly home rounds. Barnsley has a single Primary Care 
Network. The 32 GP practices in Barnsley are all part of the PCN. 
 
In order for care home residents to receive the enhanced level of service from GP practices 
and their health and care partners, including the neighbourhood nursing teams, we have been 
required to design a new care home alignment model that clearly aligns GP practices with care 
homes. This new model enables GPs to focus on residents in fewer care homes and work in 
collaboration with residents, their families, the care home managers and staff and the wider 
health and care team to deliver the enhanced service.  
 
We undertook a period of communication in order to ensure that residents, all care homes and 
other health and care partners in Barnsley were made aware of the realignment model and the 
enhanced service that will be offered by the aligned GP practice and its wider multidisciplinary 
team. To enable GP practices and their wider health and care partners to deliver the 
requirements of the specification (structured multidisciplinary reviews, personalised care and 
support plans and weekly care home rounds) and for care home residents to benefit from the 

https://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/Respiratory%20Engagement%20Summary%20Report%20-%2029%20September%202020%20-%20Final%20Version.docx
https://healthwatchbarnsley.org.uk/home/about-us/our-reports/
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enhanced service, residents who were not currently registered with their care homes new 
aligned GP practice, were asked (as part of a programme of individual conversations between 
care homes and residents and /or their carers/ family members) to consider moving to a 
newly  aligned GP practice to the care home.  
 
Ongoing engagement will take place between the care homes and individual residents and/or 
their family members/ carers to discuss their individual circumstances and to support their 
decision making in relation to this.  The decision to re-register with the aligned GP practice 
remains a patient choice and we worked closely with the care home teams from across the 
borough on this work and supporting information was provided to them all to enable informed 
conversations with residents and/or their carers/family members along consistent lines.   
 
Care homes also received consent forms and a process that outlines what steps to take if a 
resident does not have capacity to make this decision along with a leaflet which has been 
provided for distribution to all residents and their carers/family members for their information 
and reference.   

Engagement activities in partnership with Barnsley Council 

The CCG provides funding to Barnsley Council to undertake a range of engagement and 
involvement activities. This is aligned to the core work of the council, linking with the wider role 
of community engagement.  
 
Work over the last 12 months has been to understand more clearly the work of the forums, 
establish some clear monitoring for grant funding and extend the reach of these into local 
communities. This work extends more widely across the council and with other organisations 
as part of the Your Voice Partnership. Whilst the pandemic has been a difficult period where 
general face to face consultation and engagement has had to stop, it has also created some 
opportunities to identify and find better ways to support some of our most vulnerable 
communities, with plans to try and engage with them more effectively as part of a plan for the 
longer term.  
 
We continue to work in partnership to improve the value and perceptions around customer 
engagement in Barnsley. The onset of COVID has enabled us to focus on specific 
communities who have been disproportionately affected by the pandemic and where possible 
to engage with partners around some of the challenges presented during this time. We have 
had ongoing discussions to widen the stakeholders as part of Your Voice Partnership in order 
to develop a more co-ordinated approach. 
 
As a result of the pandemic, face to face meetings have been stood down for most of this year, 
but it was important to offer all forums the opportunity to continue working (if possible and 
appropriate) and they all were asked how they could consider a wider reach to offer 
information and support during the pandemic for their service users. A number of forums 
continued to engage on a telephone or virtual basis to provide service user groups with 
important COVID related information, advice and support. 

 

Customer and Equality Forum Activity and Outcomes 2020-21 

Barnsley Together Forum – Race 
Equality (Barnsley CVS) 

 Established a specific Service User Group Forum to 
complement existing Stakeholder Forum meetings. 

 Widened reach with different 
faith groups. 

 In direct response to COVID have developed an 
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Information Hub for sharing information and 
opportunities more widely. 

 Worked with various ESOL providers. 

Barnsley Deaf Forum (Leeds 
Involving People) 

 Regular attendees of Zoom training mean members 
have become more confident and able to access 
virtual meetings. 

 Mental Health Sessions - members taught 
techniques on how to maintain good mental health 
during COVID. 

 CVS shared volunteering opportunities with 
members and how the Volunteer Centre can help. 

 Support provided e.g. provision of food parcels and 
sourcing Minicom 

My Barnsley Too Disability Forum 
(Cloverleaf) 
 
And 
 
Learning Disabilities Forum 
Wednesdays Voice (Cloverleaf) 

 Members kept informed of COVID news and advice 
and guidance. 

 Extended reach by RNIB (Royal National Institute 
of Blind) and Greenacres who shared Easy Read 
information. 

 Identified Digital training needs and successfully 
applied for funding for IT equipment and training for 
members. 

 Increased number of new members. 

 Awareness raised successfully of the Forum and 
Safe Places scheme and identified new potential 
Safe Place venues. 

 100 Stay Safe Packs have been created and 
distributed to connect with members/clients who 
may benefit from having a sanitiser starter pack to 
promote independence and reduce anxiety of 
leaving the house. 

Older Peoples Forum (Age UK)  Supported with befriending, shopping, working as 
part of the Community Responder initiative. 

 Worked with Public Health consultation on the Get 
Moving and Fall Proof initiative with a view to 
addressing some of the mobility and balance issues 
that have been raised by older people and has 
since been fed into the proposed development of 
the Older Peoples Wellbeing Service. 

 Reviewed communication methods to ensure 
information sharing is being carried out safely 
during COVID and is widely accessible. 

 Work continues to strengthen access and use of 
technology for older people. 

SAFE Forum (Barnsley Council 
Social Care) 

 Production of a new leaflet and newsletter, as well 
as welfare phone calls to keep in touch with 
members. 

 Enabled more digital inclusion by sourcing some 
old IT equipment and loaned this out so meetings 
could be held online. 

 Safeguarding Awareness Week 2020 had to be 
scaled down and held virtually, this feeds into the 
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Safeguarding Adults Board. 

 Virtual events and meetings have taken place 
where possible. 

 Linked in with Sheffield Customer Forum and 
worked together on common agendas e.g., 
Universal Health Passports (led by Hospital). 

Autism Spectrum Forum (AfAAB)  Provided a bespoke offer and have tailored activity 
to meet the interests of group members.  

 Encouraged members to be creative and connected 
into wider initiatives where appropriate e.g. ‘Hear 
My Voice’ poetry competition and ‘Draw More’ 
delivered by Barnsley Museums. 

 Twice weekly online offer that has been well 
attended and have supplemented this with one-to-
one contact for those that aren’t digitally accessible 
or confident. Monday Meet-Up and AfAAB Active 
met indoors, as a support groups this is allowed 
under COVID guidelines but are keeping to groups 
of six maximum. 

 Socially distanced walks at Locke Park and 
Worsborough Mill, and activities such as table 
tennis and bowling at Locke Park were also set up. 

 
 
The forums have also been active in promoting the vaccination programme since it came on 
board early in the 2021 and where possible to encourage eligible groups to take up the offer 
when they have been invited. 
 
Overall, the forums have responded well during a very difficult year for everyone, and we hope 
to build on this work as we continue to move out of lockdown and hopefully on the roadmap 
out of the pandemic.  

 
Engagement activities across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 
 
The CCG is a partner in the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System (ICS). 
The ICS is a group of partners involved in health and social care that have agreed to work in 
closer partnership to improve health and care. The ICS has made a commitment to involving 
patients and the public in health service developments.  
 
During the COVID-19 Pandemic the ICS has continued to host the Citizens’ Panel for virtual 
meetings, started to recruit to a new engagement membership online database ‘Let’s Talk 
Health and Care’ and conducted a review of the engagement that took place in the system 
during the pandemic, to form an overarching report. 
 
The ‘Get Involved’ page of the ICS website directs members of the public to opportunities to 
become involved in work being carried out by the organisation. Members of the public can 
keep abreast of ways in which they can contribute their thoughts, views and time via the ICS’s 
social media channels as well as by signing up to the ‘Let’s Talk Health and Care’ engagement 
membership database. 
 
Detail about feedback received and how we put it to use is available on our ‘Using your 
feedback’ page.   
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Recruitment to the Let’s Talk Health and Care Membership 
 
In July 2020 recruitment was launched to a brand new online health and care membership 
scheme across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw. As a member, people are invited to be 
involved as little or as much as they would like in helping to shape health and care services. 
The aim is to create a community of 2,000 people who all want to make their health and care 
services better. They are connected through regular newsletters and sharing of opportunities 
to get involved. Recruitment is currently online and ongoing, with additional face to face 
recruitment planned when social distancing and restrictions allow. 
 
Views of People in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw on health services during the Pandemic 
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System published a report summarising the 
key findings from activity that took place across the system to hear patient and public voice 
during the current COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
In total 18 pieces of work were considered in the report, with an estimated patient public voice 
reach of approx. 7000. The work covers the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw area and includes 
a wide range of COVID-19 related insight – some asking about people’s understanding of 
information, some about wellbeing, and some about more specific changes to services such as 
alternative appointment types.  
 
Read the full report here. 
 
Children and young people’s surgery 
 
Changes to the appendicectomy pathway for under-8s and children with complex needs 
In June 2017 the Joint Committee for Clinical Commissioning Groups (JCCCG) for South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw took a decision to change the way some children’s surgery and 
anaesthesia services were provided in South and Mid Yorkshire, Bassetlaw and North 
Derbyshire. At that time, the JCCCG agreed to clinical recommendations that children needing 
an emergency operation for a small number of conditions, at night or at a weekend, would not 
be treated in hospitals in Barnsley, Chesterfield and Rotherham, and would instead have their 
surgery at Doncaster Royal Infirmary, Sheffield Children’s Hospital or Pinderfields General 
Hospital in Wakefield. 
 
Since that decision, a number of factors changed, these were set out in a report to the Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC), which can be read here. The changes 
meant that a new recommendation was put forward by local clinical experts. The SYB ICS 
presented an engagement report to the JHOSC, which compiled over 3500 responses. The 
report can be read here. 
 
Children’s healthcare website – Healthier Together 
 
A survey to seek the views of pregnant women, children, young people and their families, and 
health professionals on a ‘Healthier Together’ website to provide health information and advice 
for pregnant women, children, young people and their families across the SYB took place in 
October 2019. The survey, which was conducted online and via partners’ circulation, received 
just under 100 online responses and led to the development of a website during 2020. In 
November 2020 the SYB ICS ran a focus group with parents, recruited to via social media, 
online and partners’ networks to test the site. The focus group provided feedback, which saw 
the website adapted. It was launched as a pilot in February 2021. 

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/about-us/whychange/latest-news/new-report-shows-views-people-south-yorkshire-and-bassetlaw-health-services-during-pandemic
https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s68800/Public%20reports%20pack%2028072020%201100%20South%20Yorkshire%20Derbyshire%20and%20Nottinghamshire%20Joint%20Health_.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/get-involved/using-your-feedback
https://sybhealthiertogether.nhs.uk/
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Listening Ear bereavement service survey into needs of Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic 
communities 
 
Launched in April 2020 to respond to the pandemic, the Listening Ear South Yorkshire 
bereavement service was put in place to help people who have lost loved ones during the 
coronavirus pandemic, whether from the virus or otherwise.   
 
In August 2020 it was recognised that since launching in April, almost 500 appointments had 
been accessed by people from across Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield with 
overwhelmingly positive feedback. However, the feedback had also shown that people from 
BAME communities were less likely to access the service and so a short survey was launched 
to ask people from those communities how the service could better meet their needs. Partners 
in voluntary sector organisations and community groups helped promote the survey. The 
results helped feed into the service specification for when the service was re-procured in 
January 2021. 
 
Barnsley and Rotherham stroke survivors and their families/carers asked for feedback about 
their care. 
 
Following the introduction of three regional Hyper Acute Stroke Units, or HASU as they are 
often referred to, in 2019 to provide specialist care 24/7 for people in South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw, the views from people affected by the change to the service have been sought as 
part of the service change evaluation. Feedback has been collected from people from Barnsley 
and Rotherham who had a stroke and were treated at either Doncaster Royal Infirmary, the 
Royal Hallamshire Hospital or Pinderfields Hospital in Wakefield before either being 
discharged home or transferred to Barnsley or Rotherham Hospitals. 
 
The findings from the survey have helped to evaluate whether the HASU Transformation 
achieved the anticipated benefits – one of which was to improve patient experience.  
 
Gaining the patient and carer feedback proved invaluable and the team are now looking at 
setting up a Stroke Survivor and Carer Panel to help secure meaningful patient engagement 
into the work programme. The team are also producing regional patient information and 
supporting work on improving communication with patients and their families as part of their 
work programme. The full evaluation report and easy read versions is available soon on the 
SYB ICS website here. 

 
Long covid rehabilitation pathway 
 
Health and care professionals worked together to plan new rehabilitation services needed for 
the people who have had COVID-19 and as a result require ongoing health and care support. 
 
In order to capture the views of patients to inform the service development, an engagement 
exercise took place. This included a wide-reaching survey, which received more than 60 
responses, a focus group with patients and their carers and work with seldom heard 
communities. The work with seldom heard communities was overseen by the South Yorkshire 
Community Foundation.  
 
Feedback has helped to shape the development of the services, including ensuring mental 
health considerations are taken on board and broad communication about the service is 
undertaken. Read the full engagement report here. 

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/get-involved/using-your-feedback
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Feedback and Evaluation  

Providing feedback is an integral part of closing the loop on involvement.  By providing 
information to the people who have taken the time to get involved and share their views to help 
shape the development of services locally, we can detail how their feedback has shaped our 
decision making process as well as demonstrating how much we value their input.   

We also take time to review and evaluate our involvement activities with the people who have 
been involved in order to measure the effectiveness of this and to ensure that lessons can be 
learnt for the future.    

Full reports highlighting what people told us and the impact they have had are available on the 
Get Involved section of our website or are available on request from the CCG.  

Reducing health inequality 

COVID-19 has shone a light on health inequalities, and further increased the inequality gap 
both nationally and across the borough. The coronavirus pandemic is affecting social, 
economic, and family lives dramatically and in widely varying ways, and its potential for 
impacts on inequalities not only now but in the longer term is huge. We have seen that: 

• Between the start of March and the middle of April, age-adjusted death rates in the most 
deprived tenth of areas in the UK were more than double those in the least deprived 
tenth of areas. 

• Older people, people from BAME ethnic groups and those from more deprived areas 
are all more likely to be severely affected by COVID-19.  

• Diabetes, other long-term conditions (such as chronic lung disease), smoking and 
excess weight are all further factors increase the risk of being severely affected by 
COVID-19. 

• Bereavement, isolation, loss of income and fear are triggering mental health conditions 
or exacerbating existing ones.  

• Many people may be facing increased levels of alcohol and drug use, insomnia, and 
anxiety.  

• COVID-19 itself can lead to neurological and mental complications, such as delirium, 
agitation, and stroke.  

• People with pre-existing mental, neurological or substance use disorders are also more 
vulnerable to infection  ̶they may stand a higher risk of severe outcomes and even 
death. 

• People living with severe mental illness are more likely to be obese, have heart 
conditions and/or diabetes, be inactive, smoke, and suffer social deprivation – all factors 
linked to greater risk of COVID-19 

• Reduced activity levels (due to shielding and staying home more because of COVID-19) 
resulting in ‘deconditioning’ of older people and those with long-term health conditions, 
meaning reduced fitness, mobility, balance, independence and increased isolation and 
loneliness 

• Excluding key workers, most people in the bottom tenth of the earnings are in sectors 
that have been forced to shut down. 80% of them are either in a shut-down sector or are 
unlikely to be able to do their job from home – compared with a quarter of the highest-
earning tenth. 

The renewed focus and emphasis on tackling health inequalities is welcomed by partners 
across Barnsley. In line with the NHS planning guidance 2021/22 partners are committed to 

http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/consultations.htm
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restoring services inclusively, prioritising those people and communities experience 
inequalities and implementing population health management and personalised care 
approaches to improve health outcomes. 
 
All NHS partners now have executive director leads within their organisation for tackling health 
inequalities and all six of the neighbourhood clinical directors within the local primary care 
netwrok are also leads for inequalities.  

In response to the eight urgent actions on health inequalities set out by NHS England, the 
CCG, as part of the wider Barnsley partnership, has: 

• Implemented a recovery plan for cancer, including understanding hidden harm and 
variations in referral patterns. This work is being done in conjunction with the Cancer 
Alliance. In Barnsley the rate of two-week referrals for suspected cancer recovered quickly 
after the initial wave of the pandemic, faster than in other parts of the region. 

• Undertaken a detailed analysis of urgent and planned care pathways using indices of 
multiple deprivation. 

• Seen ongoing work between Barnsley Hospital and primary care to support and prioritise 
patients waiting the longest for planned procedures. This includes consideration of quality 
of life and social circumstances to prioritise existing services for those in the greatest 
need.  

• Expanded the Barnsley Hospital Healthy Lives team (secondary care prevention offer). 
Recruitment to new alcohol care teams and expansion of tobacco control advice service. 

• Developed a local mental health projection model to understand the likely impact of 
COVID on population need and demand over the coming months and years. 

• Worked continuously to improve data quality, including the recording of ethnicity and other 
protected characteristics. This leads to better intelligence and insights. 

• Developed surveillance reporting of health inequalities through the health intelligence cell. 
This includes COVID 19 vaccine uptake and coverage.  

• Used a Barnsley Hospital population health analyst to provided tailored health inequalities 
intelligence to hospital business units to aid strategic planning. 

• NHS leaders present on place-based economic development boards. 
• A team of community engagement officers, established by BMBC, to support recovery.  
• Established an engagement and experience leads group to bring together collective 

insight, intelligence and experience gathered to help to shape future patient and public 
involvement. 

Health and wellbeing strategy  

Barnsley’s Health & Wellbeing Board aims to improve health and wellbeing for the residents of 
Barnsley and reduce inequalities in health outcomes. The board stood down a number of its 
meetings during the year due to the pandemic, starting up again in December 2020.  
 

During 2020/21 the Health and Wellbeing Board has prioritised two areas of work: mental 
health and wellbeing and children and young people. In doing so it has set up a Barnsley 
mental health partnership, recognising the need to come together to tackle the growing mental 
health needs coming through the pandemic. 
 

http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=143
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Sustainable Development  

Sustainability has become increasingly important as the impact of peoples' lifestyles and 
business choices are changing the world in which we live. At Barnsley CCG we acknowledge 
our responsibility to our patients, local communities and the environment and are committed 
to work hard to minimise our carbon footprint. 
 
Governance 
 
The CCG has a sustainability lead (the Head of Governance & Assurance) and has put in 
place a Green Plan (previously called our Sustainable Development Strategy and 
Management Plan). This was refreshed in 2021 with the support of our staff engagement 
group, the Radiators, and our health and safety lead. The Green Plan will be made available 
on our website. It describes our commitment to promoting environmental and social 
sustainability through our actions as a corporate body as well as a commissioner.   
 
Some of the key actions and achievements are described below:  
 

Commissioning 

Using our influence as a 
commissioner 

 We work with our providers to ensure they are 
delivering their own stretching carbon reduction 
targets. 

 As described in this report, our commissioning 
priorities include a reduction in secondary care 
admissions, with more services being delivered 
closer to home in primary or community settings, 
which should reduce costly journeys for local people. 

 During 2020/21 we continued an ambitious 
medicines ordering – safety and waste programme 
which is successfully reducing medicines waste 
associated with third party ordering. 

Corporate 

Travel & mobile working We: 

 Encourage CCG staff to car share or engage in 
active travel. 

 Have supported all CCG staff to work from home 
during the covid-19 pandemic through the provision 
of phones and laptops, and will continue to offer 
home working as a flexible working option once 
restrictions are lifted. 

 Offer both a ‘bikes to work’ and ‘bike shop’ salary 
sacrifice option to our staff. 

 Provide a car lease option for our staff which offers 
preferential terms for electric vehicles. 

 Are exploring installing a charging point for electric 
vehicles at our premises. 

Improving the efficiency of our 
facilities 

 We encourage recycling and provide facilities for 
recycling paper and batteries at Hillder House. 

 We encourage black & white rather than colour 
printing wherever possible and have upgraded our 
printers to more efficient models. 

 We have made significantly less use of printing 

http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/CCG%20Downloads/strategies%20policies%20and%20plans/2018/NHSBarnsleyCCG_Sustainable%20Development%20Strategy%20Action%20Plan_2.0_August%202018.pdf
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throughout the covid-19 pandemic as staff have 
adapted to remote working. 

 Where appropriate staff are provided with mobile 
devices and are expected to use these rather than 
paper in meetings. 

 We encourage staff to conserve energy eg by 
switching off lights when rooms are not in use, and 
have seen a significant reduction in our energy 
consumption during the pandemic. 

Our workforce  We are passionate about supporting and developing 
the health & wellbeing of our staff.  

 We run regular ‘health and wellbeing weeks’ during 
which staff are encouraged to participate in a wide 
range of activities aimed at improving their physical 
and mental health. 

Buildings  We work with NHS Property Services on all aspects 
of estates sustainability as a tenant, for example, the 
boiler at Hillder House has been replaced and we 
have put thermostats on our radiators. 

 Working with the Barnsley Strategic Estates Forum 
(SEF) we will seek to maximise the use of NHS 
Estate. 

 We will work with our member GP practices to review 
primary care estate as part of the primary care 
development programme. 

 
NHS Property Services (NHSPS) owns Hillder House on Gawber Road, which is the head 
office for Barnsley CCG. We work closely with NHS Property Services to improve our 
building. For example modern electronic fittings have been renewed throughout the building, 
the boiler has been replaced, and low energy lighting installed to reduce consumption. We 
will continue to work with NHSPS to better understand our energy usage and seek ways to 
utilise our facilities more efficiently.  

 
Usage figures for 2020/21 are provided below, along with comparators from the previous two 
years: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Emergency Planning, Resilience & Response (EPRR) and 
Business Continuity 

 
We have worked collaboratively with other South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw CCG’s to ensure 
that we have robust EPRR and business continuity arrangements in place.   
 
We participated in the annual EPRR assurance process with NHS England, completing a 
self-assessment against applicable NHS England core standards and identifying actions to 

Total NIA 
(m²) 
 

Electricity 
kWh 
 

Electricity 
Cost 
 

Gas         
kWh 
 

Gas  
Cost 
 

Water  
m³ 
 

Water  
Cost 

2020/21 38,333 £6,780 153,514 £4,299 607 £1,788 

2019/20 64,150 £12,205 128,868 £4,796 Not available £1,039 

2018/19 58,913 £10,356 107,011 £4,035 816 £4,547 
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ensure full compliance. The Local Health Resilience Partnership (LHRP) has confirmed the 
CCG’s self-assessment of ‘substantial assurance.’ 
 
A range of activities have been undertaken this year to provide assurance that the CCG’s 
arrangements are robust including: 
 

 Establishing a process for undertaking an annual business impact analysis of all 
business continuity incidents during the year. 

 Appointing a Senior Responsible Officer for the EU Exit process, providing assurance to 
NHS England and NHS Improvement of our preparedness. 

 
The CCG played its role in the Covid-19 pandemic. We operated our own emergency 
response both for the CCG, for the ongoing delivery of primary care in Barnsley and as 
partners in the Barnsley and South Yorkshire wide response. 
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Accountability Report

Signature of the Accountability Report by the Accountable Officer 

Chris Edwards, Accountable Officer, 
10 June 2021 
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Corporate Governance Report 
 
Members’ Report 
 
Member Profiles  
 
Profiles of the Governing Body members and other relevant information can be found on the 
CCG’s website www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/governing-body.htm  
 
Member Practices 
 
Clinical commissioning groups are member organisations and representatives from the 32 
Barnsley GP practices form the NHS Barnsley CCG Membership Council. Details of all our 
practices are on our website http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/membership.htm  

Composition of the Governing Body 

As set out in the Health and Social Care Act 2012, each CCG must have a Governing Body. 
The Governing Body of the CCG provides oversight and assurance as well as giving strategic 
direction to the CCG’s activities.   

During 2020/21 the Governing Body was made up of 13 people including seven members 
elected by the Membership Council; two Lay Members; a Secondary Care Clinician; a Chief 
Nurse; and two other senior executive officers.  

The members of our Governing Body during 2020-21 are shown below:  

Name Position on the 
Governing Body 

Appointment dates Attendance 
record* 

 

Dr Nick Balac Elected Member & 
Chair of the CCG 

1 April 2013, reappointed 
1 April 2017, 1 April 2020 

14/14  

Dr John Harban Elected Member 1 April 2013, reappointed 
1 April 2015, 1 April 
2018, 1 April 2020 

12/14  

Dr Sudhagar 
Krishnasamy 
 

Elected Member & 
Medical Director  

1 April 2013, reappointed 
1 April 2017, 1 April 2020 
Left 31 August 2020 

7/8 

Dr Mark Smith Elected Member 
 

1 April 2015, reappointed 
1 April 2018 

14/14 

Dr Adebowale 
Adekunle 

Elected Member 
 

18 July 2016, 
reappointed 18 July 
2019, 1 April 2020 

13/14  

Dr Jamie MacInnes Elected Member 10 December 2018 11/14  

Dr Mohammed 
Hussain Kadarsha 

Elected Member 1 April 2017, reappointed 
1 April 2020 

14/14 

Dr Madhavi 
Guntamukkala 

Elected Members & 
Medical Director 

1 September 2020 as 
elected GP and 1 
December 2020 as 
Medical Director 

6/6  

http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/governing-body.htm
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/membership.htm
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Name Position on the 
Governing Body 

Appointment dates Attendance 
record* 

 

Nigel Bell Lay Member for 
Governance 
(Conflicts of Interest 
Guardian) 

20 July 2017, 
reappointed 20 July 2020 

14/14 

Chris Millington Lay Member 
Representative for 
Patient and Public 
Engagement and 
Primary Care 
Commissioning 

1 April 2015, reappointed 
1 April 2018 

14/14 

Mike Simms Secondary Care 
Clinician 

1 September 2013, 
reappointed 1 April 2017, 
1 April 2020 

13/14 

Jayne Sivakumar Chief Nurse 1 December 2019 13/14 

Lesley Smith Chief Officer (and 
Accountable Officer) 

28 July 2014 – 31 August 
2020 

4/8  

Chris Edwards Chief Officer (and 
Accountable Officer) 

Appointed 1 September 
2020 

6/6  

Roxanna Naylor Chief Finance Officer 19 June 2017 14/14 
During 202/21 Governing Body has met 14 times. This includes a number of additional meetings held to 

coordinate the response to the initial peak of the Covid-19 Pandemic. 

 Committees, including Audit Committee  

During 2020/21 the following members of the Governing Body were members of the CCG’s 
Audit Committee: Nigel Bell, Chris Millington, and Dr Adebowale Adekunle. There was a 
vacancy for a Member of the Membership Council to serve as a Member of the Audit 
Committee throughout 2020/21. 

All CCG’s are required by statute to have an Audit Committee and a Remuneration Committee 
(for details see Remuneration Report). In addition, although not stipulated in legislation, we 
have established a: 

 Primary Care Commissioning Committee 

 Quality & Patient Safety Committee  

 Finance and Performance Committee 

 Equality and Engagement Committee, and an 

 Integrated Care Organisation Procurement Committee.  

Details of the functions, membership, and attendance records of each of these Committees 
can be found in the Governance Statement. 

Register of Interests 

A conflict of interest occurs where an individual’s ability to exercise judgement, or act in a 
role, is or could be impaired or otherwise influenced by his or her involvement in another role 
or relationship.  
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We require interests to be declared on appointment in writing, at meetings, on changing roles 
or responsibilities, on any other change of circumstances, and at specific points during the 
procurement process. 
 
Our Registers of Interests are available on our website 
https://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/registers-of-interest.htm. 

Personal data related incidents 

We have had no Information Governance Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation (IG SIRI) 
reportable to the Information Commissioner in the past year.  

Statement of Disclosure to Auditors  

Each individual who is a member of the Governing Body at the time the Members’ Report is 
approved confirms: 

• So far as the Member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the 
CCG’s auditor is unaware that would be relevant for the purposes of their audit report 

• The Member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order to make him 
or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the CCG’s 
auditor is aware of it. 

Modern Slavery Act  
 
NHS Barnsley CCG fully supports the Government’s objectives to eradicate modern slavery 
and human trafficking. Our Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement for the financial year 
ending 31 March 2021 is published on our website at 
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/modern-slavery.htm   

  

http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/modern-slavery.htm
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Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities  

 
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical Commissioning 
Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be appointed by the NHS 
Commissioning Board (NHS England).  NHS England has appointed the Chief Officer to be 
the Accountable Officer of NHS Barnsley CCG. 
 
The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer are set out under the National Health Service 
Act 2006 (as amended), Managing Public Money and in the Clinical Commissioning Group 
Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. They include responsibilities for:  
 

 The propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable Officer is 
answerable  

 For keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 
time the financial position of the Clinical Commissioning Group and enable them to 
ensure that the accounts comply with the requirements of the Accounts Direction) 

 For safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities) 

 The relevant responsibilities of accounting officers under Managing Public Money 

 Ensuring the CCG exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and economically (in 
accordance with Section 14Q of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended)) and 
with a view to securing continuous improvement in the quality of services (in accordance 
with Section14R of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended)) 

 Ensuring that the CCG complies with its financial duties under Sections 223H to 223J of 
the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). 

 
Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has directed each 
Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in 
the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an 
accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and of its income and expenditure, Statement of Financial Position 
and cash flows for the financial year. 
 
In preparing the accounts, the Accountable Officer is required to comply with the 
requirements of the Government Financial Reporting Manual and in particular to: 
 

 Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the relevant 
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a 
consistent basis; 

 Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis; 

 State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Government Financial 
Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures 
in the accounts; and, 

 Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis; and 

 Confirm that the Annual Report and Accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and 
understandable and take personal responsibility for the Annual Report and Accounts and 
the judgments required for determining that it is fair, balanced and understandable. 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities 
set out under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), Managing Public 
Money and in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 
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I also confirm that: 

 as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the CCG’s auditors
are unaware, and that as Accountable Officer, I have taken all the steps that I ought to
have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the CCG’s auditors are aware of that information.

Chris Edwards, Accountable Officer 
10 June 2021 
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Governance Statement  
 
Introduction and context 
 
NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is a body corporate established by NHS 
England on 1 April 2013 under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). 

The Clinical Commissioning Group’s statutory functions are set out under the National Health 
Service Act 2006 (as amended). The CCG’s general function is arranging the provision of 
services for persons for the purposes of the health service in England. The CCG is, in 
particular, required to arrange for the provision of certain health services to such extent as it 
considers necessary to meet the reasonable requirements of its local population. 

As at 1 April 2019, the CCG is not subject to any directions from NHS England issued under 
Section 14Z21 of the National Health Service Act 2006. 

The CCG has continued to develop and enhance its governance arrangements. Most notably 
the CCG has had to rapidly adapt its governance arrangements to enable it to continue to 
operate effectively and in accordance with statutory guidance throughout the covid-19 
pandemic which has affected the conduct of business throughout 2020-21. For example the 
CCG has: 

 Established gold and silver command arrangements to coordinate the response to 
the covid-19 emergency, with delegated financial authority to facilitate nimble 
decision making where appropriate 

 Adapted its ‘business as usual’ governance arrangements in the context of social 
distancing requirements and the ‘stay at home’ directives eg Governing Body 
meetings have been held virtually, with recordings of the meetings being put into 
the public domain and members of the public being able to submit written questions 
in advance of meetings, and 

 Recognised the specific risks presented by the covid-19 pandemic in the CCG’s 
corporate risk register. 

There have been a number of other notable achievements in respect of the CCG’s 
governance during 2020/21, for example the CCG:  

 Adopted the new model constitution from 1st April 2020, and 

 Reduced the number of posts on the Governing Body from 17 to 13, made 
provision for future non-material changes to the Constitution to be approved by 
Governing Body, and enhanced arrangements for Membership Council meetings by 
making formal provision for deputies and virtual decision making. 
  

During 2020/21 NHS England has continued to oversee the performance and development of 
the CCG through its Oversight Framework (formerly known as the Improvement and 
Assessment Framework). The 2020/21 year-end assessment will be published by the CCG 
when it has been received from NHS England. 

The Governing Body continues to oversee the CCG’s performance through the engagement 
of its members in the work of the CCG and the performance & risk management 
arrangements described in this Statement. 
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Scope of responsibility  
 
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal 
control that supports the achievement of the clinical commissioning group’s policies, aims 
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am personally 
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me in Managing Public 
Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out under the National Health Service 
Act 2006 (as amended) and in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer 
Appointment Letter. 

I am responsible for ensuring that the clinical commissioning group is administered prudently 
and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, safeguarding 
financial propriety and regularity. I also have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control within the clinical commissioning group as set out in this 
governance statement. 

Governance Arrangements and Effectiveness  
 
The main function of the Governing Body is to ensure that the Group has made appropriate 
arrangements for ensuring that it exercises its functions effectively, efficiently, and 
economically and complies with such generally accepted principles of good governance as 
are relevant to it. This section provides details of how this has been achieved. 
 
Key features of the CCG’s Constitution 
 
CCGs are member organisations. The 32 Barnsley General Practitioner (GP) Practices each 
nominate one representative to the Membership Council, which in 2020/21 elected 7 
Members to the Governing Body. Meetings of the Membership Council were temporarily 
suspended during the first peak of the covid-19 pandemic (April-July 2020) after which it has 
met three times during 2020/21. The functions reserved to the Membership Council are to 
agree the vision, values and overall strategic direction of the CCG; approval of the CCG’s 
Annual Commissioning Plan and supporting Financial Plan; and approval of changes to the 
Constitution. Details of the CCG’s member practices can be found on the CCG’s website 
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/membership.htm . 

The Membership Council has delegated the responsibility for carrying out the remaining 
functions of the CCG to the Governing Body and its Committees. These are shown in the 
next table. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/membership.htm
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Information about the Governing Body  

The Governing Body has responsibility for leading the development of the vision and 
strategy, and for agreeing the Annual Commissioning Plan in collaboration with the 
Membership Council. It also retains overall responsibility for financial management, quality 
improvement, and monitoring and reporting performance against the plan. The 2020/21 
Annual Report provides highlights of the Governing Body’s work over the year (see 
Performance Report), details of the Governing Body members including their attendance 
records and declared interests (see Members’ Report), and the remuneration paid to senior 
managers (see the Remuneration Report). 

Information about the Committees of the Governing Body 
 
Some of the Governing Body’s functions are exercised on its behalf by its Committees. 
Terms of Reference for all Committees are available via the CCG’s Governance Handbook 
on our website (https://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/governance-handbook.htm ). 
Minutes of all Committees are reported to the Governing Body, significant matters are 
escalated through the Risk Management Framework, and Governing Body Members sit on 
the Committees.  

Each Committee produces and presents to the Governing Body an Annual Assurance Report 
setting out how it has discharged its responsibilities as set out in its Terms of Reference, its 
key achievements in the year, how it has assessed its own effectiveness, and the key risks it 
has been responsible for managing. In this way the Governing Body remains fully sighted on 
all key risks and activities across the CCG, as described in the tables on the next pages.  

 

Commissioners Working 
Together Joint 
Committee of CCGS 

 

Governing Body 

https://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/governance-handbook.htm
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Audit Committee   

Function 
Provides assurance and advice to the Governing Body on the entirety of the CCG’s 
control and integrated governance arrangements. This includes the proper 
stewardship of resources and assets, including value for money; financial reporting; 
the effectiveness of audit arrangements (internal and external); and risk 
management arrangements. 
 

Assurance provided to the Governing Body 
The Committee receives and reviews the Risk Register and Assurance Framework 
on a regular basis. It considers reports and opinions from internal audit, external 
audit, and the Local Counter Fraud Service. Reports on tender waivers, declarations 
of interest, gifts & hospitality are considered at every meeting. It reviews the annual 
accounts and annual governance statement and recommends these for approval to 
the Governing Body. This enables the Audit Committee to assure the Governing 
Body that the system of internal control set out in the constitution and corporate 
manual is being implemented effectively. 
 

Membership and attendance 
 

Role Name Meetings 
attended 

Lay Member for Governance  Nigel Bell 5/5 

Lay Member for PPE & Primary Care Commissioning  Chris 
Millington 

5/5 

Elected Governing Body Member  Dr Adebowale 
Adekunle 

5/5 

Membership Council Representative Vacant  
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Finance and Performance Committee 

Function 
 
Advises and supports the Governing Body in scrutinising and tracking of key 
financial and service priorities, outcomes and targets. 
 

Assurance provided to the Governing Body 
 
An Integrated Performance Report is taken to every Governing Body meeting, 
providing assurance that the CCG is delivering its key performance targets and 
statutory financial duties and providing early warning where this is not the case. 
 

Membership and attendance 

Role Name Meetings 
attended 

Chair of the Governing Body (Chair) Dr Nick Balac 8/10 

Governance Lay Member  Nigel Bell 8/10 

Elected Governing Body Member  Dr John Harban 10/10 

Elected Governing Body Member  Dr Jamie MacInnes 9/10 

Elected Governing Body Member  Dr Adebowale 
Adekunle 

8/10 

Member of the Membership Council  Dr Andy Mills 7/10 

Chief Officer (April to August)  Lesley Smith  2/2 

Chief Officer (September onwards) Chris Edwards 8/8 

Chief Finance Officer  Roxanna Naylor 10/10 

Chief Operating Officer Jamie Wike 10/10 
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Quality & Patient Safety Committee 

Function 
Advises the Governing Body with a view to ensuring that effective quality 
arrangements underpin all services commissioned on behalf of the CCG, regulatory 
requirements are met and safety is continually improved to deliver a better patient 
experience.  

Assurance provided to the Governing Body 
The Committee receives monthly Quality Metrics reports covering quality, patient 
safety, serious incident reviews, safeguarding, infection control, mortality rates, and 
other relevant issues. Quality Highlights reports are provided to the Governing Body 
after every meeting.  

Membership and attendance 

Role Name Meetings attended 
 

Medical Director (Chair) – until July 
2020  

Dr Sudhagar 
Krishnasamy 

1/1 

Medical Director (Chair) – from 
October 2020 

Dr Madhavi 
Guntamukkala  

2/3 

Chief Nurse (Deputy Chair)  Jayne Sivakumar 5/5 

Governing Body Secondary Care 
Clinician 

Mike Simms 5/5 

Governing Body Member Dr Mark Smith 5/5 

Governing Body Member  Dr Adebowale 
Adekunle 

2/5 

Lay Member for Public and Patient 
Engagement  

Chris Millington 5/5 

Head of Medicines Optimisation Chris Lawson 5/5 

Membership Council Rep Dr Shahriar 
Sepehri 

3/5 

Specialist Clinical Portfolio Manager 
– from October 2020 

Jo Harrison  3/5 
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Equality & Engagement Committee  

Function 
Advises the Governing Body to ensure that effective systems are in place to manage 
and oversee the implementation of a strategic vision for equality, diversity and 
human rights across all services commissioned on behalf of the CCG.  It also 
provides advice to the Governing Body on communication and patient, carers and 
public engagement, ensuring that Patient and Public Engagement is central to the 
business of the CCG. 
 

Assurance provided to the Governing Body 
This group establishes and monitors the CCG’s action plan related to its equality 
duties. The group has ensured a process for equality impact assessments is in 
place, supported staff briefings, and leads on the approval and review of human 
resources policies.  In addition the Committee develops and reviews the Patient & 
Public Engagement Strategy and Plan, and receives regular updates on all PPE 
related activities across the CCG to ensure these are aligned to the commissioning 
priorities. 
 

Membership and attendance 
 

Role Name Meetings 
attended 

Lay Member for Public and Patient 
Engagement (Chair) 

Chris Millington 3/3 

Chief Nurse (Deputy Chair) Jayne Sivakumar 1/3 

Deputy Chief Nurse (from February 
2021) 

Martine Tune 0/1 

Member of the Membership Council 
(resigned from August 2020) 
 

Dr I Saxena 0/1 

Head of Communications and 
Engagement 

Kirsty Waknell 3/3 

Senior Primary Care Commissioning 
Manager    

Julie Frampton 
 

1/3 

Elected Governing Body Member 
 

Dr A Adekunle 2/3 

Healthwatch Barnsley  Susan Womack 
 

2/3 

Equality and Diversity Lead  Colin Brotherston-
Barnett 

2/3 

Head of Governance and Assurance Richard Walker  3/3 

 The meeting scheduled for 7 May 2020 was stood down due to ongoing 

response to the Covid-19 Pandemic Emergency 
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Remuneration Committee  

Function 
Advises the Governing Body on determinations about the appropriate remuneration, 
fees and other allowances; terms of service for employees and for people who 
provide services to the CCG; and provisions for other benefits and allowances under 
any pension scheme. 
 

Assurance provided to the Governing Body 
Drawing on benchmarking and expert HR advice, the Remuneration Committee has 
advised the Governing Body on appropriate remuneration and contractual 
arrangements for Governing Body members and others not covered by Agenda For 
Change terms and conditions. 
 

Membership and attendance 
 

Role Name Meetings 
attended 

Lay Member for PPE and Primary Care 
Commissioning (Chair)  

Chris Millington 5/5 

Lay Member for Governance  Nigel Bell 5/5 

Chair of the Governing Body Dr Nick Balac 5/5 

Elected Governing Body Member Dr John Harban 4/5 

Elected Governing Body Member  Dr Jamie MacInnes 4/5 

Governing Body Secondary Care 
Clinician 

Mike Simms 5/5 
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Primary Care Commissioning Committee  

Function 
Makes collective decisions on the review, planning and procurement of primary care 
services in Barnsley, including functions under delegated authority from NHS 
England. The Committee manages the delegated allocation for commissioning of 
primary care services in Barnsley. In addition, where the Governing Body is unable 
to take a decision due to conflicts of interest, the matter will be delegated to the 
Primary Care Commissioning Committee for approval or consideration. 
 

Assurance provided to the Governing Body 
Provides assurance to the Governing Body that the functions delegated to the CCG 
have been appropriately discharged, with regard to outcomes for patients, the 
management of any conflicts of interest, primary care procurement and contract 
management, and the availability of services. 
 

Membership and attendance 
 

Voting Members Name Meetings 
attended 

Chris Millington (Chair) Lay Member for 
PPE  & Primary Care 
Commissioning 

8/8  

Nigel Bell Lay Member for 
Governance 

8/8 

Mike Simms Governing Body 
Secondary Care 
Clinician 

8/8  

Richard Walker Head of Governance 
and Assurance 

7/8 

Lesley Smith (resigned 31 August 2020) Chief Officer 2/2  

Chris Edwards (from 1 September 2020) Chief Officer from   
 

5/6  

Non- Voting Members Name Meetings 
attended 

Dr Nick Balac * Chair of the 
Governing Body 

2/6 

Dr Sudhagar Krishnasamy (resigned 31 
August 2020) 

Medical Director 
 

2/2  

Dr Madhavi Guntamukkala (from 1 
September 2020) 

Medical Director 4/4  

Dr Mark Smith  Elected Governing 
Body Member 
 

5/6  

* PCCC meetings had clashed with another meeting; the timing of PCCC meetings has now been 

amended to facilitate the Chair’s attendance. 
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Integrated Care Organisation (ICO) Procurement Committee  

Function 
The ICO Procurement Committee is responsible for oversight of the procurement 
process, providing assurance that appropriate governance is in place, and managing 
conflicts of interest related to the procurement. 
 

Assurance provided to the Governing Body 
Subsequent to the issue of the contract notice it will have delegated authority to take 
procurement decisions on behalf of the Governing Body, including: 

 Approval of the preferred bidder as recommended by the evaluation panel, 
and 

 Giving authority to award the contract. 
 

Membership and attendance 
 

Role Name Meetings 
attended 
*See note below  

Lay Member for Patient & Public 
Engagement and Primary Care 
Commissioning 

Chris Millington  

Lay Member for Governance Nigel Bell  

Chief Officer Chris Edwards  

Chief Finance Officer Roxanna Naylor  

Director of Commissioning (non voting) Jeremy Budd  

Independent Clinical Adviser   
*Whilst this Committee is established and now forms part of the CCG Constitution it has never 

formally met as the procurement of an ICO in Barnsley is currently on hold.  

 

Information about the Health and Wellbeing Board  

The CCG’s Chair and Chief Officer are also members of the Barnsley Health & Wellbeing 
Board, a Committee of Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council which was set up in April 
2013 as a requirement of section 194 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012. The objective 
of the Health & Wellbeing Board is to promote integrated working across health and care 
services and to redesign health and wellbeing services across organisational boundaries so 
that services are joined up and health outcomes are improved for local people.  

The Health and Wellbeing Board also has very senior representatives from a range of other 
stakeholders including Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council, Barnsley Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust, South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust, NHS England, 
Barnsley Healthwatch, and South Yorkshire Police. The Board produces and regularly 
updates a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, which underpins the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy and other partnership plans to improve health outcomes and address health 
inequalities.  

Better Care Fund  
 

The Better Care Fund (BCF) was established from 1 April 2015, in line with NHS England 
and Local Government Association directions. The aim of the BCF is to support 
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transformation and integration of Health and Social Care in line with the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy for Barnsley. 

A governance structure and pooled budget arrangements for the BCF has been agreed with 
Barnsley MBC and formalised in a Section 75 agreement which provides for reporting on 
BCF indicators through the CCG’s Committee structure to the Governing Body.  

The Health & Wellbeing Board is responsible for oversight of the Better Care Fund.  There is 
clear CCG senior management ownership and leadership of the BCF and clinical 
involvement through GP membership of the Governing Body and as Vice Chair of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board. 

Information about South Yorkshire Commissioners and Providers Working Together 

Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups  

In 2015 the CCG became a member of the Joint Committee of CCGs (JCCCG). At that time 
the Committee had agreed to delegate authority to make joint decisions on two service areas; 
Hyper Acute Stroke Services and some out of hours Children’s Surgery and Anaesthesia 
services. In June 2019 CCGs agreed to revised Terms of Reference and Manual Agreement 
and a new set of joint commissioning priorities with delegated authority for decision for a 
number of these, which can be found here: 
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5915/6096/1736/JCCCG_-
_26_June_2019_Agenda_and_Papers.pdf  

During 2020-2021 the JCCCG has continued to work to the revised TOR and MA and 
developed a joint priorities work plan, although much of the work involved was deferred from 
May 2020 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, as the NHS moved into a national level 4 
incident operating under NHSEI command and control.  

Due to the deferred work and that no joint decisions were required, most of the scheduled 
public meetings were cancelled. The last meeting held in public, was held virtually on 26th  
August 2020. Papers for the  JCCCG meetings can be found here: 
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/about-us/minutes-and-meetings  

South Yorkshire & Bassetlaw Integrated Care System/ Sustainability & Transformation Plan  

The CCG is also a partner in the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System 
(ICS). ICSs are systems in which NHS commissioners and providers, working closely with 
local authorities and other partners, agree to take shared responsibility (in ways that are 
consistent with their individual legal obligations) for how they use their collective resources to 
improve quality of care and population health outcomes. They are expected to transform the 
way care is delivered, to the benefit of the population they serve.  

Currently, the ICS does not replace any legal, or statutory, responsibilities of any of the 
partner organisations. During 2020/21, the ICS governance remained the same as 2019/20 
however the frequency of some of these meetings was impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic 
with others carried out virtually. In February 2021 the Government announced plans for the 
future of health and care, including the role of ICS’. This can be read here: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/the-future-of-health-and-care  

 

 

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5915/6096/1736/JCCCG_-_26_June_2019_Agenda_and_Papers.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5915/6096/1736/JCCCG_-_26_June_2019_Agenda_and_Papers.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/about-us/minutes-and-meetings
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/the-future-of-health-and-care
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The governance of the ICS includes the following: 

The System Health Oversight Board  
 
The System Health Oversight Board (HOB) is the ICS primary governance group comprising 
Executive and Non-executive members from across SYB statutory bodies and the regional 
NHS Bodies. 
The HOB provides a joint forum between health providers, health commissioners, NHS 
England and NHS Improvement and other national arms’ length bodies, to respond to the 
national policy direction for health and implementation of the NHS Long Term Plan.  
A key purpose of the HOB is to give assurance to partners and the regions on progress and 
delivery and to give strategic direction on healthcare issues. The HOB meets quarterly. 
 
Membership of the HOB is drawn from the SYB health community, the regions and arms’ 
length bodies and includes  Chairs from the Mental Health Alliance, Joint Committee of 
CCGs x 2, Acute Providers Committees in Common, Health and Wellbeing Boards and 
Healthwatch as well as a lead for Primary Care Networks from each place and the Executive 
membership. 
 
Collaborative Partnership Board  
 
As well as including the chief executives and accountable officers from acute and mental 
health hospitals, primary care, clinical commissioning groups, umbrella Voluntary Action 
organisations, Healthwatch organisations, NHS England and other arm’s length bodies the 
Collaborative Partnership Board is a key forum for engaging with the chief executives and 
directors of public health from the local authorities in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw. 
 
The System Health Executive Group  
 
The System Health Executive Group (HEG) is the primary executive group comprising Chief 
Executive and Accountable Officer members from each health statutory organisations across 
the ICS and other partner organisations across Yorkshire and the Humber, to plan and 
deliver strategic health priorities which require collaborative working across the SYB ICS 
footprint. 

 
The Integrated Assurance Committee  

 
The Integrated Assurance Committee has non-executive and lay member representatives as 
well as executive membership. The purpose of the Integrated Assurance Committee is to 
provide assurance to the partners and to regulators on the performance, quality and financial 
delivery of health and care services within the five places and across the system in South 
Yorkshire & Bassetlaw. 
 
The ICS System Health and Care Management Team  
 
The ICS System Health and Care Management Team includes accountable officers and chief 
executives, directors of strategy, transformation and delivery and directors of finance. 
 
Workstream Programme Boards 
 
There is also a range of programme boards responsible for delivering the workstreams. 
These are led by a chief executive and senior responsible officer (an accountable officer from 
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a clinical commissioning group) and supported by a director of finance and a project 
manager/workstream lead. 
 
The ICS has evolved from the establishment of a Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership in January 2016, an Accountable Care System in April 2017, to then becoming 
one of the first and most advanced ICS systems in England..  
 
Effectiveness of the Governing Body 
 
The Governing Body has been proactive in improving its effectiveness during the year. For 
example: 

 As mentioned previously the Governing Body has adapted its ways of working in 
response to the restrictions during the covid-19 pandemic, including virtual meetings 
and innovative ways of involving and engaging the public eg enabling written questions 
and making recordings of meetings available via our website and social media 
platforms  

 Development sessions have been held at regular intervals through the year covering 
issues such as planning for stabilisation and recovery following the initial covid peak, 
learning disabilities, health inequalities, suicide prevention & bereavement support, 
future commissioning arrangements, and Child & Adolescent Mental Health Services 

 Statutory and Mandatory training has been provided for Governing Body members in 
conflicts of interest management, data security awareness, counter fraud, equality and 
diversity, infection control, fire safety, health & safety, and safeguarding 

 Individual personal development reviews (PDRs) have been undertaken with 
Governing Body members by the CCG Chair 

 The Governing Body and its Committees all include a reflection on the conduct of the 
meeting at the end of every agenda 

 A structured survey of Governing Body and Committee members gathering their views 
on their effectiveness was undertaken, which identified high levels of satisfaction with 
the operation of the CCG’s committees during the pandemic. 

 
Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code  
 
NHS Bodies are not required to comply with the UK Code of Corporate Governance. 
However, we have reported on our corporate governance arrangements by drawing upon 
best practice available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we 
consider to be relevant to the CCG and best practice. 

We have self-assessed our arrangements against the UK Corporate Governance Code and 
are satisfied we are compliant with those aspects relevant to the CCG. 

Discharge of Statutory Functions  
 
During establishment, the arrangements put in place by the CCG and documented in the 
Constitution, Corporate Manual, and Prime Financial Policies were developed with extensive 
expert external input, to ensure compliance with all relevant legislation. That expert advice 
also informed the matters reserved for Membership Council and Governing Body decision 
and the Scheme of Delegation.  

In light of recommendations of the 1983 Harris Review, the CCG has reviewed all of the 
statutory duties and powers conferred on it by the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
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amended) and other associated legislative and regulations.  As a result, I can confirm that the 
Clinical Commissioning Group is clear about the legislative requirements associated with 
each of the statutory functions for which it is responsible, including any restrictions on 
delegation of those functions. 

Compliance with statutory functions is delivered through the CCG’s management structure 
and monitored through the CCG’s committee structure and work plans. These arrangements 
have been subject to external scrutiny through a range of processes, including the NHS 
England CCG Oversight Framework.  

Since 1 April 2015 the CCG has had delegated responsibility from NHS England for 
commissioning primary medical services under a signed Delegation Agreement. In 2018/19 
NHS England introduced a mandatory requirement for CCGs to have internal audit review of 
the CCG’s arrangements for discharging its delegated responsibilities. The internal audit 
focus for 2020/21 was on contract oversight and management, and the report received in 
February 2021 provided substantial assurance and made just two low risk recommendations. 

On 25 March 2020 NHS England approved a number of changes to the CCG’s Constitution. 
Most significantly the CCG adopted the new model constitution for CCGs, which offers a 
range of benefits: it provides consistency with neighbouring CCGs all of which have adopted 
the new model, provides greater flexibility to accommodate future changes to commissioning 
arrangements, and simplifies future governance by allowing Governing Body to approve non 
material changes to the Constitution going forward. Whilst in most respects the new model 
simply incorporated our existing arrangements into the new format, the opportunity was taken 
to bring forward a number of other changes which we feel will enhance our governance as 
we enter a period of uncertainty and change, notably:  

 Provision for Membership Council to extend maximum periods of continuous 
service from 7 to 9 years, enabling us to retain experience and capacity during the 
upcoming period of organisational change heralded by the publication of the 
Government’s white paper Integration and Innovation: working together to improve 
health and social care for all (February 2021) 

 Reduction in the size of the Governing Body from 17 to 13 members, which will 
make a significant contribution to the delivery of our running costs targets whilst 
retaining sufficient capacity to maintain our effectiveness. 

Risk management arrangements and effectiveness  
 
Overall risk and control arrangements  
 
In accordance with its intention of achieving the highest standards of governance and 
accountability, since its authorisation on 1 April 2013 the CCG has worked hard to 
implement, embed, and enhance its risk and control arrangements.  

Identifying, rating, and managing risks 
 
The Integrated Risk Management Framework sets out the CCG’s approach to scoring risks 
and the risk appetite. Any risks identified in the course of the CCG’s business are scored 
using the National Patient Safety Agency’s 5 by 5 matrix, which takes account of both the 
likelihood and consequence of a risk occurring. This results in an overall risk rating of 
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between 1 and 25.  Risks are then included on the risk register and prioritised as follows: 

 
 

    

RAG Score Risk description Managerial Action 

     1 - 3  Low risk Can be managed locally by routine controls.  

 
    4 - 6 Moderate risk 

Managed locally with individual risk treatment 

plans  

 
    8 - 12 High risk  

Senior Management attention required.  

Detailed planning and controls 

 

   15 - 25 Extreme risk  

Immediate action Chief Officer or nominated 

Deputy level management 

 

 

A Lead Officer (Risk Owner) for each risk is identified, and the Risk Register is shared with 

risk owners monthly for review and revision.  

The Governing Body’s risk tolerance is a score of 12 or below. These risks are managed by 
the appropriate Chief Officer or Manager and monitored at the CCG’s Committees. Extreme 
risks (scores of 15 or higher) are considered to represent a threat to the delivery of the 
CCG’s strategic objectives. These risks are: 
 

 Subject to immediate Chief Officer action  

 Considered and reviewed at every meeting of the Governing Body, and are 

 Escalated to the Assurance Framework as gaps in control against the relevant corporate 
objective(s). 
 
In addition, Committees receive and consider extracts of both the Assurance Framework and 
Risk Register, and escalate significant matters to the Governing Body. Red and amber risks 
are considered at every meeting, yellow and green risks twice a year.  
The Governing Body receives reports summarising the current position with respect to 
extreme risks on the Assurance Framework at every meeting, and reviews the entire 
document on a quarterly basis.  
 
These arrangements have continued to evolve and become further embedded in 2020/21:  

 In response to the Covid-19 pandemic a number of covid-specific risks were 

identified and added to the corporate risk register in the summer of 2020 – these 

have been monitored and reported along with other corporate risks in the remainder 

of the year 

 Routine updating of the Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF) was 

paused during the first phase of the covid-19 pandemic in order to facilitate a single 

minded focus on the covid response, however in October 2020 the GBAF was 

refreshed in order to enhance its clarity and relevance by ensuring the risks were 

related directly to the CCG’s key priorities and deliverables in the stabilisation and 

recovery phase of the pandemic 
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 Following the review, a new priority area relating to Care Homes was added to the 

existing priority areas on the GBAF (urgent & emergency care, primary care, 

cancer, mental health, integrated care at both place and system, efficiency plans, 

transforming care, maternity, compliance with statutory and regulatory 

requirements, and digital and technology)  

 The GBAF maps each of these priority areas onto the CCG’s corporate objectives 

(highest quality governance, high quality health care, care closer to home, safe & 

sustainable local services, strong partnerships, effective use of £) in order to 

provide assurance that, in delivering the Priority Areas, we will also be delivering 

the CCG’s corporate objectives  

 The CCG’s strategic risk management arrangements, including risk management 

during the covid phase one, were reviewed by internal audit as part of the Head of 

Internal Audit Opinion Stage 1 work with just two low risk recommendation made 

 Following the Head of Internal Audit Opinion Stage 2 work 360 Assurance reported 

that COVID-19 risks have been incorporated into the corporate risk register and all 

risks are being managed in accordance with normal risk management 

arrangements. Strategic risks have continued to be reported to the Governing Body 

and its sub-committees throughout the year, with appropriate review and changes 

to scores where appropriate. A survey of Governing Body members had positive 

responses regarding the CCG’s risk management arrangements. 

How risk management is embedded in the activity of the CCG 

 
A range of systems and processes are in place to embed risk management more broadly in 
the CCG’s activities. These arrangements are described briefly below. 

 There is a well-established system of incident reporting which ensures that 
incidents are managed appropriately and that learning takes place and is shared 
across the organisation. 

 The CCG is fully committed to complying with the public sector equality duty 
set out in the Equality Act 2010, both as an employer and a commissioner of 
health services for the people of Barnsley. Details of how the CCG complies are 
available on its website http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/public-sector-
equality-duty.htm .  

 The CCG has robust arrangements to ensure its Health and Safety responsibilities 
are effectively discharged. A Health and Safety and Business Continuity Group, 
reporting to the Audit Committee, is supported by experts from a local shared 
service hosted by Rotherham CCG. This group is also attended by staff side, and a 
GP Member of the Governing Body, as well as CCG employees, and meets four 
times a year. The Group reviews the annual fire and health and safety risk 
assessments, as well as any incidents reported, and ensures appropriate actions 
are being taken. It also maintains oversight of the CCG’s corporate business 
continuity arrangements and the annual EPRR self-assessment process. The 
CCG’s risk assessments indicated a low risk in respect of fire and health and 
safety. All CCG staff receive mandatory training in fire safety, health and safety, 
infection control and manual handling.  

http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/public-sector-equality-duty.htm
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/public-sector-equality-duty.htm


56 

  
 

  

Involvement of public stakeholders 
 
The CCG has well-established arrangements by which public stakeholders can influence 
the work of the CCG and therefore be involved in managing the risks which impact on them. 
For example: 

 The CCG has a Governing Body Lay Member for Patient and Public Engagement 
and Primary Care Commissioning, and an Equality and Engagement Committee 
responsible for overseeing the CCG’s arrangements in this area 

 Members of the public are able to attend meetings of the Governing Body and 
Primary Care Commissioning Committee 

 During the Covid-19 pandemic, when public attendance has not been possible due 
to meetings being held virtually to comply with social distancing rules, the CCG has 
made alternative arrangements to ensure full transparency in the conduct of its 
business. Video recordings of Governing Body and Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee meetings have been published on the website and via social media 
channels, and provision has been made for the public to submit written questions in 
advance of meetings which are then answered and incorporated into the minutes. 

 Similarly due to covid-19 the Annual General Meeting in September 2020 was held 
virtually, with a video presentation of the year’s highlights along with answers to the 
public’s questions submitted in advance – see this link 
https://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/annualreport  

 The Our Public Engagement Network (OPEN) has been created, enabling the CCG 
to gather views of carers, patients, and members of the public  to inform key 
commissioning decisions 

 The CCG works closely with Healthwatch Barnsley, which has a standing invitation 
to attend the Equality & Engagement Committee and the Primary Care 
Commissioning Committee 

 Barnsley Patient Council has been established to act as an independent advisory 
panel. It is made up of Barnsley residents and PRG representatives who offer the 
views and expectations of members of the public and local communities served 
toward improving, delivering and maintaining health care services for Barnsley 
people. 

Capacity to handle risk  
 
The overall responsibility for the management of risk lies with the Chief Officer as 
Accountable Officer. The Governing Body collectively ensures that robust systems of internal 
control and management are in place. These arrangements, and the enhancements that 
have been made to them during 2020/21, are described in detail in this Statement. 

The Integrated Risk Management Framework was originally approved by the Governing Body 
in October 2012, and subjected to regular review and revision thereafter. The framework sets 
out the CCG’s commitment to the management of all risk using an integrated approach 
covering clinical, non-clinical and financial risk. Accountability arrangements for risk 
management are clearly set out and roles and responsibilities in terms of key committees and 
individuals are identified, as follows:  

 The Governing Body on behalf of the Membership Council ensures that the 
organisation consistently follows the principles of good governance applicable to 
the NHS organisation.  

https://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/annualreport
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 The Audit Committee oversees the risk management function and ensures that 
systems of internal control exist and are functioning correctly. 

 The Committees of the Governing Body are responsible for identifying risks to the 
delivery of corporate objectives, and ensuring appropriate actions are in place to 
mitigate them (see Risk Register and Governing Body Assurance Framework 
below). 

 The specific responsibilities of the Chief Officer, Lay Members, other senior officers, 
and all other staff of the CCG are clearly articulated. 

 The Risk Register provides an ongoing identification and monitoring process for 
operational risks, as well as strategic risks that may adversely impact on the 
delivery of the Annual Commissioning Plan, and the CCG’s strategic objectives. 

 The Governing Body Assurance Framework is a high level report which enables the 
Governing Body to demonstrate how it has identified and met its assurance needs 
focused on the delivery of its objectives through the annual Commissioning Plan. 
The Assurance Framework identifies the key risks to the delivery of corporate 
objectives, and sets out the controls in place to mitigate those risks and the 
assurances (both internal and external) available to give the Governing Body 
confidence that the risks are being managed.  

Risk management capacity has been developed across the CCG in a number of ways. The 
statutory and mandatory training programme includes numerous elements relevant to risk 
management, including data security awareness, health and safety, fire safety, safeguarding 
adults and children, infection control, and counter fraud.   

A word and excel-based incident reporting system is now well established. Governing Body 
and Committee reporting arrangements prompt authors to confirm that all aspects of potential 
risk – financial, contractual, quality, equality and diversity, information governance, human 
resources, and sustainability – have been appropriately considered in the preparation of 
committee reports and business cases. 

How do the control mechanisms work? 
 
The CCG has a robust internal control mechanism to allow it to prevent, manage and mitigate 
risks, including the governance structure of the CCG, the approach to risk management, and 
the key components of the internal control structure described elsewhere in this statement. 
Taken together these arrangements underpin the CCG’s ability to control risk through a 
combination of: 

 Prevention – the CCG’s structures, governance arrangements, policies, 
procedures, and training minimise the likelihood of risks crystallising. 

 Deterrence – staff are made aware that failure to comply with key policies and 
procedures, such as the Standards of Business Conduct Policy or the Fraud, 
Bribery and Corruption Policy, will be taken seriously by the CCG and could lead to 
disciplinary action, or dismissal. 

 Management of risk – once risks are identified the arrangements for ongoing 
monitoring and reporting of progress through the Committee structure to the 
Governing Body ensure appropriate action is taken to manage risks. 
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Risk Assessment 
 
The CCG’s process for identifying, rating, and responding to risks was described in the 
sections above. The number and severity of the risks on the Corporate Risk Register during 
the year is summarised in the table below: 

Date Extreme (red) High (Amber) Moderate 
(Yellow) 

Low (Green) 

April 2020 6 16 4 4 

Sept 2020 5 14 4 3 

March 2021 9 20 6 3 

 

 

In accordance with the CCG’s Integrated Risk Management Framework any risk rated as 
extreme (red) is deemed to exceed the Governing Body’s risk tolerance, since they are 
considered to threaten the delivery of the CCG’s strategic objectives.  

Such risks are escalated to the Governing Body as gaps in control against relevant objectives 
in the assurance framework. The table below sets out how the CCG’s extreme risks have 
been (and where relevant continue to be) managed or mitigated: 

Risk How managed / mitigated How 
assessed 

Status 
at April 
2020 

Status at 
March 
2021 

If improvement in 
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service (YAS) 
performance against the 
ARP response time 
targets is not secured 
and sustained, there is a 
risk that the quality and 
safety of care for some 
patients could be 
adversely affected. 
 

Regular consideration of YAS incident 
reporting by QPSC and GB to understand 
the frequency and severity of incidents 
associated with ambulance response. 

Q&PSC 3x5=15 2x5=10 

Disruption to health and 
social care – hidden harm  
During the C19 peak 
healthcare seeking 
behaviours changed 
along with service 
delivery models resulting 
in lower urgent and 
emergency care 
presentations and fewer 
referrals to healthcare 
services. This ‘hidden 
harm’ may cause a 
double burden that may 
be caused by people not 
presenting or delaying 
presenting with new or 
existing conditions. 

•Relates to ability to recover 
•ongoing analysis of mental health, but 
growing severity includes suicides look 
likely. 
Local and national initiatives to 
encourage people to still access primary 
care services and mental health services 
if they have any concerns. 

CCG Gold 
and F&PC 

Added 
to RR 
in Oct 
2020 

4x4=16 

Backlog and demand 
surge  

Health and care saw a resurgence of 
COVID in the Autumn, with OPEL3-4 

CCG Gold 
and F&PC 

Added 
to RR 

4x4=16 
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Risk How managed / mitigated How 
assessed 

Status 
at April 
2020 

Status at 
March 
2021 

A backlog of non-COVID-
19 care following the 
suspension of routine 
clinical care that is likely 
to result in an increased 
number of poorly-
managed chronic 
conditions or 
undiagnosed diseases 
and be combined with a 
surge in post-COVID-19 
morbidity (which needs to 
be quantified). Reducing 
the backlog of care will be 
hampered by reduced 
operational capacity 
across NHS organisations 
designed to prevent 
transmission of COVID-
19. 

being hit and recovery being slowed. 
•National lockdown has seen COVID 
cases and OPEL level reduce.  
Plans in place to revisit recovery in a 
flexible way, including COVID-
surveillance. 

in Oct 
2020 

If the health and care 
system in Barnsley is not 
able to commission and 
deliver out of hospital 
urgent care services 
which have sufficient 
capacity and are effective 
in supporting patients in 
the community to avoid 
the need for hospital 
attendance or non-
elective admission there 
is a risk that non- elective 
activity will exceed 
planned levels potentially 
leading to:  
(a) failure to achieve NHS 
Constitution targets (with 
associated reputational 
damage, and  
(b) contractual over 
performance resulting in 
financial pressure for the 
CCG. 
 

Regular review of activity data as part of 
contract and performance management 
and monitoring arrangements. 
 
Other data reviewed and analysed to 
identify new opportunities to reduce non 
elective activity e.g. NHS Rightcare 
Packs, Dr Foster data etc.  
 
A&E Delivery Board is established 
(Barnsley Urgent and Emergency Care 
Delivery Board) with responsibility for 
delivering improvements to urgent care 
services and achieving related targets.  
The Board is overseeing work to develop 
appropriate services to ensure that 
patients are able to access appropriate 
care and support outside of hospital, or 
in a different way in hospital utilising 
ambulatory care pathways and 
implementing a new model at the front of 
A&E.. 
 
Engagement with regional and SYB 
programme to implement ‘Think 111’ 
(Talk before you walk) model in 
partnership with Integrated Urgent Care 
providers 
 
Additional Primary Care Capacity is in 
place for same day appointments 
through IHEART and Home Visiting 
Services 
 
CCG commissioned Out of Hospital 
Services being remodeled as part of the 
Neighbourhood Team mobilisation and 
includes PCN/Neighbourhood 

F&PC 5x4 
=20 

5x4=20 
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Risk How managed / mitigated How 
assessed 

Status 
at April 
2020 

Status at 
March 
2021 

developments.  
 
Priority areas of work identified to 
support ICP vision and principles for 
proactive care and care out of hospital. 
 

If the CCG and BMBC 
do not develop a 
collaborative 
commissioning approach 
underpinned by shared 
values there is a risk that 
BMBC commissioned 
services will not meet 
the requirements and 
aspirations of the CCG 
for the people of 
Barnsley leading to 
increased health 
inequalities and poorer 
health outcomes. 

Escalation of CCG concerns to BMBC 
senior management 
 
Escalation via SSDG and health & 
wellbeing board 
 
To be raised and discussed at H&W 
Board development Session (August 
2018) 

SSDG 4x4=16 4x4=16 

If the Barnsley area is not 
able to attract & retain a 
suitable & sufficient 
Primary Care clinical 
workforce there is a risk 
that: 
(a)Some practices may 
not be viable,  
(b)Take up of PDA or 
other initiatives could be 
inconsistent  
(c)The people of Barnsley 
will receive poorer quality 
healthcare services 
(d)Patients services could 
be further away from their 
home. 

The Long Term Plan includes a section 
on workforce planning and Network 
Contract DES includes provision for a 
number of Primary Care specific roles. 
 
The Network Contract DES has a number 
of deliverables that will support staff and 
work to supporting sustainable services in 
Barnsley. 
 
NHS England has published an Interim 
People Plan to support the workforce 
challenge. 
 
 
The CCG’s Primary Care Development 
Workstream has a workforce element and 
the Barnsley Workforce Plan is under 
development which will include Primary 
Care. 
 
Links have been developed with the 
Medical School to enhance attractiveness 
of Barnsley to students 
 
The CCG continues to invest in primary 
care capacity. The PDA enables practices 
to invest in the sustainability of their 
workforce.  
The CCG has funded Clinical 
Pharmacists to provide support to all 
Practices in Barnsley. Approval was given 
to the recruitment of a second cohort of 
clinical pharmacists & 2 technicians in 
March 2019. 
 
The PDA requires Practices to submit a 

PCCC 4x4=16 4x4=16 
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Risk How managed / mitigated How 
assessed 

Status 
at April 
2020 

Status at 
March 
2021 

workforce baseline assessment to the 
CCG on a quarterly basis. This will be 
monitored via the Primary Care Quality 
Improvement Tool to identify any capacity 
issues or pressure points. 

If the BCCG CHC team is 
unable to deliver its 
recovery plan to enable 
the backlog of reviews to 
be cleared and new 
cases to be processed in 
a timely way, with robust 
case management 
processes in place that 
demonstrate value for 
money whilst not 
compromising quality of 
care , there is a risk of 
adverse financial 
consequences for the 
CCG and inappropriate or 
out of date care 
packages being provided 
for patients which 
potentially would not be 
meeting their health 
needs. This could also 
have implications on 
meeting the KPI's as set 
by NHSE. 

Adverts currently out to fill 3 vacant posts 
Extension of contracts of 2 agency nurses 
to 26.2.21 will support clearance of covid 
backlog 
 
Seeking to recruit a further 2 agency 
nurses to support with both backlog and 
new cases although it is currently difficult 
to find available suitably qualified 
individuals 
 
Discussion of risks and issues to take 
place at Governing Body in January 2021 
 
Development of training plan for the CHC 
team on case management and handling 
difficult conversations with patients, 
families and carers. 
 
Ensure protocols are developed to 
provide appropriate guidance and 
consistency to staff and patients in 
relation to the cost of care packages and 
rationale for the level of care provided. 

F&PC and 
Q&PSC 

Added 
to RR 
in Dec 
2020 

4x4=16 

If the CCG is does not 
implement robust 
arrangements to 
approve packages of 
Children’s Continuing 
Health Care and 
associated NHS funding, 
there is a risk of: 
 
Challenge to decisions 
not to award funding in 
some cases – possible 
risk of litigation 
 
Negative impact on 
patient safety due to lack 
of quality monitoring of 
placements for CCC 
funded children; 
adverse financial 
consequences for the 
CCG. 

Improved record keeping systems in line 
with CHC Adults and the CCC 
Framework 
 
CCG attendance at  funding panels to 
provide clinical scrutiny and challenge 
 
Specialist Clinical Portfolio Manager has 
assumed responsibility for CCC 
 
CCC process brought under CCG control 
 
Recruited a permanent Specialist CCC 
Assessor / case manager and a DCO.  
 
Developed a CCG appeals and disputes 
procedure 
All specialist funding referred to IFR panel 
with a written  clinical recommendation  
for the treatment / intervention / 
equipment being a prerequisite 

F&PC and 
Q&PSC 

Added 
to RR 
in 
March 
2021 

4x4=16 

1.Scant or absent 
information relating to 
why medication changes 
have been made. Poor 
communication of 
medication changes , 

Ongoing discharge medication risks 
escalated to BCCG Chief Officer and 
Chief Executive of BHNFT resulted in 2 
quality risk meetings (August and 
November 2016).  
 

Q&PSC 3x5=15 4x5=20 
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Risk How managed / mitigated How 
assessed 

Status 
at April 
2020 

Status at 
March 
2021 

even if changes are 
appropriately made for 
therapeutic/safety 
reasons,  creates a 
patient safety risk when 
post discharge 
medicines reconciliation 
is being undertaken by 
the GP practice. The risk 
being that the GP 
practice may either 
accept inappropriate 
changes when all the 
patients’ risk factors 
have not been 
accounted for by the 
hospital clinicians or an 
error has been made or 
not accept clinically 
important changes as 
not confident about the 
reasons for the change.  
 
2. Clinically significant 
safety alerts, such as 
contraindicated 
combinations of 
medication, are being 
frequently triggered by 
primary care prescribing 
systems during post 
discharge medicines 
reconciliation when 
adding medicines to the 
Patients Primary Care 
Record. This indicates 
that either the hospital is 
not reconciling 
medicines using the GP 
Practice Summary Care 
Record or that the 
reconciliation is not 
sufficiently robust. 

Area Prescribing Committee (APC) 
monitor concerns and will report 2017 
audit to the Quality & Patient Safety 
Committee. 
 
A working Group (with reps from Practice 
managers Group & BHNFT) looking at  
D1 Discharge Summary Letters.   

If the health and care 
system in Barnsley is not 
able to commission and 
deliver end of life care 
services of sufficient 
quality and capacity to 
support end of life 
patients in the community, 
there are risks for the 
CCG across a number of 
areas, as follows: 
 
a) Quality and Patient 
Safety  Risks 
Delayed discharges due 

1) Chief Nurse has raised issue with 
BMBC Joint Commissioning Team. 
BMBC is due to hold meetings with both 
their in house provider and contracted 
providers to try and get more detail 
around current capacity as well as longer 
term issues and look at any possible 
options to address those.  
A wider meeting with home care 
providers is planned for November 2019.  
 
2) CHC EOL team to: 
a) email all providers each morning 
requesting what care package vacancies 
they have 

Q&PSC 5x3=15 5x3=15 
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Risk How managed / mitigated How 
assessed 

Status 
at April 
2020 

Status at 
March 
2021 

to staff not being able to 
obtain care packages 
leading to patients not 
being able to be in 
preferred place of care at 
end of life.  
 
b) Patients at home 
without a care package or 
a care package that is not 
being delivered as 
required.  
 
b)Financial Risks  
Increased costs to CCG 
due to having to obtain 
care from specialist 
providers  
 
Delayed discharges will 
affect CCG’s efficiency 
plans 
 
c) Performance Risks 
Delayed discharges 
impact upon patient flow 
which could affect delivery 
of 4 hour A&E standard 
and elective waiting times.  
 
Increase in non-elective 
admissions to hospital 
because of patients being 
left without care in the 
community.  
 

 
b) liaise with Rightcare Barnsley  to 
provide updates on care packages 
 
c) offer 24 hour placement in 
residential/NH to all patient awaiting a 
care package in hospital to prevent 
delayed discharge and then to continue to 
try and procure a care package to 
transfer patient to their own home. 
d) explore additional support  from 
neighbourhood nursing service/ palliative 
care services in Barnsley 
 
e)Care packages to be spot purchased 
from any provider  
 
f) CHC EOL team to contact care 
providers on Barnsley borders to identify 
if they could pick up packages just over 
the borders. 

As well as being escalated to the Governing Body as gaps in control against relevant 
objectives in the assurance framework these risks have been allocated to the appropriate 
Committee and Chief Officer within the governance structure, with mitigating actions being 
monitored by the Committee on an ongoing basis. Risk and Assurance reports to the 
Governing Body will enable it to monitor the effectiveness of the mitigating actions in 2021/22 
for those risks which remain open.  

The Assurance Framework will be subject to a detailed review in 2021/22 by the CCG’s 
senior management to ensure it continues to focus on the key risks to the delivery of the Five 
Year Forward View priority areas, the Long Term Plan, and the CCG’s objectives, going 
forward.  

Other sources of assurance 
 
Internal Control Framework  
 
A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the CCG to 
ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives. It is designed to identify and prioritise the 
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risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be 
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level rather than 
eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of 
effectiveness.  

The governance and risk management sections have already explained how important 
elements of the system of internal control work. Other key components of the internal control 
framework include:  

 An overarching governance structure set out in the Constitution, Standing Orders, 
Scheme of Reservation and Delegation, and Prime Financial Policies  

 Beneath the Constitution and Corporate Manual, the CCG has a range of Corporate 
Policies in place to support the delivery of its statutory and other  functions which 
have been communicated to staff, made easily available via the website, and 
supported by training and briefings as appropriate 

 The Standards of Business Conduct Policy, setting out the CCG’s policies and 
procedures for managing Conflicts of Interest, including maintaining and publishing 
registers of interests, gifts and hospitality  

 The Governing Body & Committee Structure, underpinned by clear Terms of 
Reference and work plans 

 The CCG’s management structure, with responsibilities clearly allocated to teams 
and individuals 

 The Risk Management Framework  

 Robust arrangements to ensure effective financial control including budgetary 
control and contract monitoring  

 Ongoing monitoring of the delivery of key performance targets and commissioning 
priorities by the Finance & Performance Committee and the Governing Body  

 The Equality & Diversity Working Group, reporting to the Equality & Engagement 
Committee, oversees the CCG’s compliance with the requirements of the Equality 
Act 2010 

 The Equality & Engagement Committee also ensures appropriate consultation and 
engagement takes place with stakeholders including users of health services in 
Barnsley  

 The CCG seeks continually to develop the skills and competencies of its employees 
through regular performance and development reviews, the statutory and 
mandatory training programme, organisational development activities including 
regular development sessions for the Governing Body and the ‘Investment In 
Excellence’ programme which has been provided to all CCG staff 

 Objective oversight of the internal control framework by the Audit Committee, 
drawing on reports from internal and external auditors 

 External scrutiny by NHS England through the Oversight Framework. 

Annual audit of conflicts of interest management 
 
The CCG has robust arrangements for managing Conflicts of Interest. The CCG maintains a 
Register of Interests covering Membership Council, Governing Body Members, and all CCG 
staff. The Register is publicly available on the CCG’s website 
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/ ). It is also considered at the public session of the 

http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/
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Governing Body twice a year. The Audit Committee receives and reviews the Register twice 
a year and updates on new or changed declarations are taken to every meeting.  

The CCG’s Conflicts of Interest Policy requires interests to be declared within 28 days. 
Declarations are recorded on a form which is returned to the Head of Governance & 
Assurance who enters the interest on the Register. Declarations of Interest are requested at 
the commencement of all meetings of the Governing Body and its Committees. On at least 
an annual basis all staff are requested to review and update their entries in the Register.  

The CCG’s Conflicts of Interest Policy, which sets out the approach to managing conflicts, is 
incorporated within the Standards of Business Conduct Policy which was reviewed, clarified 
and strengthened in January 2015 to address the requirements of new statutory guidance 
issued by NHS England in December 2014. Key enhancements included: 

 The establishment of a Primary Care Commissioning Committee with a Lay and 
Executive majority to enable effective management of Conflicts of Interest arising in 
respect of the CCG’s delegated responsibility for commissioning primary medical 
services 

 The creation of a publicly available Register of Procurement Decisions setting out 
how any conflicts arising in the course of the CCG’s procurement activity had been 
managed 

 The use of a primary care procurement checklist provided by NHS England giving 
detail of how conflicts have been managed, and 

 The extension of the CCG’s Register of Interests to cover senior staff working in 
member Practices. 

In June 2016 NHS England issued updated statutory guidance for CCGs on the management 
of conflicts of interest. In response to this guidance further enhancements were made to the 
CCG’s arrangements, including: 

 Adding the role of Lay Member for Accountable Care to the membership of the 
Governing Body, to provide additional capacity to manage conflicts of interest both 
at Governing Body and Primary Care Commissioning Committee 

 Designating the Chair of the Audit Committee as the CCG’s ‘Conflicts of Interest 
Guardian’ 

 GP Members of the Primary Care Commissioning Committee remain as clinical 
advisers to the Committee but do not have the right to vote 

 The format of the Registers and other documentation was reviewed and updated to 
comply with the guidance 

 Training was provided to Committee Chairs and minute takers. 
 

In June 2017 NHS England published further revised statutory guidance. The CCG again  
reviewed its Standards of Business Conduct, Managing Conflicts of Interest, and the 
Acceptance of Gifts & Hospitality Policy and made a number of further changes to ensure the 
Policy remained consistent with the revised guidance, most notably the rules around 
accepting gifts and hospitality were clarified. The Standards of Business Conduct, Managing 
Conflicts of Interest, and the Acceptance of Gifts & Hospitality Policy was also ‘de-coupled’ 
from the CCG’s Constitution in order that the process for future updates is more streamlined.  
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The statutory guidance on managing conflicts of interest requires CCGs to undertake an 
annual internal audit of conflicts of interest management. To support CCGs to undertake this 
task, NHS England has published a template audit framework. 

The CCG’s annual audit of conflicts of interest concluded in December 2020. The review 
provided significant assurance over the CCG’s arrangements, and concluded that the CCG 
has a well-defined process in place for managing conflicts of interest. The report raised four 
low risk recommendations, all of which were accepted and are either complete or being 
actioned, as follows: 

Recommendation Risk Status 

The Corporate Affairs team will review all completed 
declaration of interest forms received and ensure they 
are complete and accurate.  

Low 
 

Ongoing 

When requesting updated declarations in March 2021 
the CCG will reissue guidance on completion. 

Complete  

As part of the annual update of the register the 
Corporate Affairs team will issue a reminder to all 
staff to declare any new or changed interests within 
28 days.  

Low Complete  

This will be incorporated into a monthly ‘standard operating 
procedure’ relating to the management of conflicts to also 
incorporate seeking declarations from any new starters, and 
removing any interests over 6 months from the register. 

Complete  

The CCG will add text to the published register stating that 
historic interests are retained by the CCG for 6 years, along 
with details of whom to contact to submit a request for this 
information. We will also note leavers separately on the 
register but will not remove them until 6 months after their 
leaving date. 

Low Complete 

The Corporate Affairs team will refresh and reissue 
guidance to Committee chairs and minute takers re 
ensuring full details re the management of any 
declared conflicts of interest are recorded in the 
minutes. 

 Complete 

In accordance with NHS England requirements the CCG requires all Governing Body 
members, Committee members, senior managers and staff engaged in procurement activity 
are required to complete online training in the management of conflicts of interest. As at 
January 2020, 93% of relevant staff had completed the mandatory module one.  

In 2020/21, to further enhance and embed the CCG’s arrangements, all relevant staff were in 
addition advised to complete the non-mandatory modules two and three. 85% had done so 
as at March 2021. 

Data Quality 
 
Quality data is essential for commissioning effective, relevant and timely care, efficient 
administrative processes, management and strategic planning, establishing acceptable 
service agreements/contracts for healthcare provision, identification of local priorities and 
health needs assessments, ensuring that the organisation’s expenditure is accurately 
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calculated, providing reliable intelligence regarding local providers, and delivery of local and 
national priorities. Data therefore needs to be accurate, credible, reliable and secure.  

The majority of the data used by the CCG for these purposes is derived from external 
sources, such as providers’ systems and national IT systems, and much is processed by third 
parties. There are a wide range of sources of assurance available to the CCG to monitor the 
quality of this data – national datasets, local audits, data quality targets, contractual 
requirements etc.  

The CCG has a data quality policy which clarifies roles and responsibilities and makes 
provision for an annual data validation exercise to be undertaken on key data flows. The key 
findings will be reported through Finance & Performance Committee in accordance with the 
policy. 

Information Governance 
 
The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by which 
the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular personal identifiable 
information. The NHS Information Governance Framework is supported by a Data Security & 
Protection (DSP) Toolkit and the annual submission process provides assurances to the 
CCG, other organisations and to individuals that personal information is dealt with legally, 
securely, efficiently and effectively. 

Barnsley CCG places high importance on ensuring there are robust information governance 
systems and processes in place to help protect patient and corporate information. We have 
established an information governance management framework and supporting processes 
and procedures in line with the Data Security & Protection (DSP) Toolkit. We require all staff 
to undertake annual data security awareness training to ensure they are aware of their 
information governance roles and responsibilities. There are processes in place for incident 
reporting and investigation. Based on these arrangements the CCG was able to report full 
compliance across all standards in its Information Governance Toolkit submissions in each 
year of its existence.  

Internal Audit has undertaken its annual review of the CCG’s arrangements for ensuring 
compliance with a sample of the requirements of the Data Security & Protection (DSP) 
Toolkit. The audit provided substantial assurance over our data security and data protection 
control environment across a sample of areas within the scope of the Toolkit, and over the 
veracity of our Toolkit self-assessment, and contained only four low risk actions. The CCG 
anticipates being able once again to declare full compliance with Toolkit requirements in our 
final submission, which in light of the covid-19 pandemic must be completed on or before 30 
June 2021. 

Business Critical Models 
 
The CCG has no business critical models which meet the required threshold for reporting to 
the Department of Health (via NHS England) in line with the recommendations from the 
MacPherson report. 
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Commissioning Support 

During 2020/21 the CCG has obtained commissioning support functions from a variety of 

sources: 

Scope of Service Provider Sources of Assurance 

Business Intelligence Joint service hosted by 
Sheffield CCG 

 Memorandum of Understanding 

 Review of KPIs 

 Regular meetings with team at both 
strategic and operational levels 
 

GPIT / Corporate IT / 
IG 

Financial Services Rotherham CCG provides 
accounting processes 
(overall control and 
decision making remains 
within Barnsley CCG) 

 360 Assurance provides internal audit 
services for both CCGs 

 KPMG provides external audit services for 
both CCGs 

 It has been agreed to utilise the joint audit 
scope to allow Barnsley CCG transactions 
to be tested and assured across the 
boundary between the two organisations 

 The report from this testing provided 
significant assurance over the CCG’s 
controls  
 

Human Resources Joint service hosted by 
Sheffield CCG 

 Memorandum of Understanding 

 Regular meetings with HR Service Lead 

 Annual assurance report  

 Internal Audit reviews on a cyclical basis 
(the HR shared services review 
completed in March 2021 provided a 
significant assurance opinion) 
 

Health and Safety Joint service hosted by 
Rotherham CCG 

 Memorandum of Understanding 

 Regular meetings with H&S Lead 

 Oversight by CCG Health & Safety & 
Business Continuity Group and SY&B 
Governance Leads 

 Annual assurance report 
 

IFR Joint service hosted by 
Sheffield CCG 

 Memorandum of Understanding 

 Oversight by host organisation and by IFR 
Leads at each CCG 

 Internal Audit reviews on a cyclical basis  
 

Procurement  Joint service hosted by 
Sheffield CCG 

 Memorandum of Understanding 

 Regular meetings between CCG 
procurement lead and shared service 
manager 

 Oversight of all procurement activity by 
Finance & Performance Committee 

 Internal Audit reviews on a cyclical basis 
 

Equality & Diversity Shared resource with 
BHNFT 

 Memorandum of Understanding 

 Oversight by the Equality & Diversity 
Working Group and the Equality & 
Engagement Committee 
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Third party assurances  

Service Organisations (including CSUs) do not generally allow access to client auditors, as 
this is an inefficient approach to providing assurance, costly for clients commissioning the 
work and disruptive to the Service Organisation.  Service Auditor Reports (SARs) are an 
internationally recognised method for Service Organisations to provide details of controls and 
their operation in a specified period to their clients.  

A SAR typically includes a high level description of the governance and assurance 
arrangements in place at the Service Organisation, a high level description of the Service 
control environment, an assertion by the Service Organisation management regarding the 
design of internal controls over the process, and a low level description of the Service's 
control objectives and supporting key controls. 

Service Auditor Reports that are of relevance to CCGS are:  

Service Provider Description of services Opinion 

NHS Business Service 
Authority 

Prescription Services Qualified 

Dental Services Qualified 

NHS Shared Business 
Services 

Financial Accounting Services Qualified 

NHS Digital GP Payments, CQRS, SUS, Optician 
Payments 

Qualified 

Capita Primary Care Payments Services Qualified 

 
The Chief Finance Officer has received and reviewed all relevant SARs. Whilst all of them 
provided a headline qualified opinion, in all cases the SARs concluded that the controls within 
the systems were suitably designed and operating effectively throughout the period 1 April 
2020 to 31 March 2021, with a small number of exceptions, primarily resulting from; the 
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic, access to core IT systems, authorisation, or lack of 
evidence to support that the control had been actioned, or was evidenced late. Taken 
together therefore these reports do not provide the CCG with complete assurance over the 
controls within these systems.  
 
The Chief Finance officer has considered all these exceptions and is of the view that there is 
nothing in the findings that would question the presumption of a sound financial system or the 
validity of the transactions within the CCG’s accounts. In forming this view the CCG takes 
assurance from its own internal control procedures. Expenditure is monitored against 
budgets on a monthly basis, and is reported to the Primary Care Commissioning Committee, 
Finance and Performance Committee and Governing Body. Internal audit has provided 
significant assurance on Budgetary Controls, Financial Reporting and Key Financial Systems 
for 2020/21. KPMG undertakes substantive testing and review of the accounts as part of their 
external audit plan and process. This provides assurance that the figures presented are a 
true and fair view of the CCG’s income and expenditure for the year. 
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Control Issues 
 
No significant control issues have arisen in 2020/21 which require disclosure in this report. 
 
Review of Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness of the Use of Resources  
 
Throughout 2020/21 the Governing Body has built upon the experience achieved since its 
inception in 2013/14 with regard to making investment decisions and identifying efficiency 
programmes.  The Governing Body has exercised control via Management Team for 
decisions to commit funding below £100k and reserved the right to decide on investments 
over this level to the Governing Body as a whole. 
 
The Financial Framework for 2020/21 has differed from previous years due to the impact of 
the COVID-19 global pandemic, however the efficient and effective use of the Barnsley 
pound has remained a key objective for the Governing Body with recurrent investments 
approved after consideration of alignment with strategic objectives and non-recurrent 
investment deployed to secure operational imperative.   

 
Emphasis on the delivery of efficiencies in 2021/22 will continue as the NHS begins its 
recovery from the pandemic, however due to the expected continued pressures and the 
national rollout of the vaccination programme there are expected to be a continuation of 
some of the principles within the current framework, with at least the first half of 2021/22 
based on a roll forward of current arrangements. This includes planning and contract 
negotiations with NHS providers being suspended as per the instruction from NHS England 
and nationally determined block contract sums for NHS Providers. The CCG will continue to 
maintain its focus on delivering efficient and effective services across Barnsley with the 
funding it receives. 
 
As part of budgetary control, the Finance and Performance Committee and Governing Body 
have received regular Integrated Performance Reports which highlight financial performance 
in the context of activity, projected year-end position and the identification and proposed 
management of key risks.   
 
The CCG contained expenditure within allocated resources, both for Programme and 
Running Costs and has ended the year with a small surplus of £195,000, in line with NHS 
England expectations.  
 
Third party assurance is provided by Internal Audit in relation to the effectiveness of the 
CCG’s key financial systems and External Audit provide an opinion in relation to the CCG’s 
use of resources in their Value for Money (VFM) conclusion. 
 
Delegation of functions 
 
The CCG is a member of the Working Together Joint Committee of CCGs (JCCC), with its 
own Terms of Reference and Scheme of Delegation. In addition to this arrangement the CCG 
is also a participant in the following arrangement: 

 Collaborative commissioning arrangements for 999 and 111 services across CCGs in 
the Yorkshire & Humber region. Assurance is provided via a Memorandum of 
Understanding, which was reviewed and updated during 2019/20, and local 
representation at the Joint Strategic Commissioning Board.  
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Counter Fraud Arrangements 
 
Overall executive responsibility for counter fraud arrangements rests with the Chief Finance 
Officer, and the Head of Governance & Assurance is the Counter Fraud Champion.  
 
The Local Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS) supports the CCG in mitigating the risks 
associated with fraud. Working to a risk-based annual plan approved by the Audit Committee, 
the LCFS undertakes a wide range of proactive work to promote and embed counter fraud 
arrangements across the CCG. This has included fraud awareness training for all staff, 
publicity, fraud alerts, reviews of policies and systems, ad hoc guidance, etc.  
The LCFS also undertakes proactive detection exercises, and investigations into potential 
frauds. The LCFS presents regular reports to the Audit Committee, and also prepares an 
Annual Report.  

 
The LCFS supports the CCG to complete and submit a self-review of our level of compliance 
with NHS Counter Fraud Authority’s Standards For Commissioners. In each year of 
submission the CCG has been judged to be at ‘green,’ which means it has appropriate 
arrangements in place and that evidence of their effectiveness is in place.  

 
Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
 
Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for the CCG, the Head 
of Internal Audit has issued an independent and objective opinion on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the CCG’s system of risk management, governance and internal control.  

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion received in June 2021 concluded that:  

‘I am providing an opinion of significant assurance that there is a generally sound 
framework of governance, risk management and control designed to meet the organisation’s 
objectives, and that controls are generally being applied consistently.’ 

During the year, Internal Audit issued the following audit reports: 

Audit Assignment Status 
Assurance 
Level 

Conflicts of Interest Complete Significant 

NHSE Delegated Primary Medical Care Functions Complete Substantial 

Integrity of General Ledger, Financial Reporting & 
Budgetary Control 

Complete Significant 

HR Shared Services Review Complete Significant 

Data Security and Protection Toolkit Complete Substantial  

Children’s CHC and s117 funding decisions Complete Weak 

All audit reports from assurance reviews in the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan that have been 
issued to management and the Audit Committee have reported Significant or Substantial 
Assurance on systems and processes, with the exception of the Children’s CHC and s117 
funding decisions review which provided an opinion of weak assurance because the auditor 
was unable to confirm that there are adequate controls in place in respect for key areas such 
as governance, data quality and case management. Whilst the report does not fully reflect 
the amount of work that has been carried out since testing took place, it is welcomed as a 
framework for improvement. The CCG accepts the findings in this report and has agreed to 
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implement a range of actions to address the control issues identified, with a particular focus 
on: 

 Strengthening adherence to the CCC National Framework 

 Ensuring all cases have an annual review 

 Exercising scrutiny and oversight over the provision of care commissioned by CCG to 
gain assurance that care packages fulfil the needs of the individual 

 Improving the accuracy of case information recorded on the financial database. 

Delivery of the actions in accordance with the agreed timescales will be monitored by the 
Audit Committee during 2021/22. 

Review of the Effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management, and Internal Control 
 
The Accountable Officer’s review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is 
informed by the work of the internal auditors and the executive managers and clinical leads 
within the CCG who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal 
control framework.  

The Accountable Officer has drawn on performance information available to him. His review 
is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and 
other reports. 

The Governing Body Assurance Framework provides the Accountable Officer with evidence 
that the effectiveness of controls that manage risks to the clinical commissioning group 
achieving its principal objectives have been reviewed. 

The Accountable Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of his review of 
the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Governing Body, the Audit 
Committee, and other Committees of the CCG. In carrying out his review the Accountable 
Officer has relied specifically upon:  

 The outcomes from assurance checkpoint meetings with NHSE and the annual 
assessment of the CCG’s performance under the Oversight Framework 

 The CCG’s overall governance, risk management, and internal control  arrangements 
outlined in this report 

 Reviews undertaken by the CCG’s internal auditors, 360 Assurance, on a range of 
significant financial and other systems  

 Performance, equality, sustainability, and other information incorporated within the 
Annual Report and other performance information available to him 

 Results of national staff and stakeholder surveys 

 The statutory external audit undertaken by KPMG, who provide an opinion on the 
financial statements and form a conclusion on the CCG’s arrangements for ensuring 
economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of resources during 2020/21. 

The ‘Control Issues’ section confirms that no significant control issues were identified in the 
year. 
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Conclusion  
 
As Accountable Officer and based on the review process outlined above, the CCG has 
identified and is taking action on the control issues arising in year which have been identified 
in detail in the body of the Governance Statement above.  

My review confirms that NHS Barnsley CCG has a generally sound system of risk 
management and internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and 
objectives. 

 
 
Chris Edwards, Accountable Officer 

10 June 2021
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report

Signature of the Remuneration and Staff Report by the Accountable Officer 

Chris Edwards, Accountable Officer 
10 June 2021
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Remuneration Committee 
 
The details of the remuneration committee can be found on page 49. 
 
Policy on the Remuneration of Senior Managers 
 
The CCG has not developed a specific remuneration policy but used the guidance outlined in 
the Department of Health July 2012 Pay Framework for Very Senior Managers (VSM) in 
Health Strategic and Special Health Authorities, Primary Care Trusts and Ambulance Trusts 
where appropriate in the absence of specific guidance for CCG’s for some VSM roles. The 
CCG has utilised the CCG specific guidance in relation to Chief Officer and Chief Finance 
Officer remuneration.  
 
The CCG has not implemented any performance related pay. 
 
Remuneration of Very Senior Managers 
 
The CCG’s Accountable Officer on a Very Senior Manager contract has been paid more than 
£150,000 per annum on an annualised basis. 
 
The Accountable officer is a joint post between NHS Rotherham CCG and NHS Barnsley 
CCG.  
 
The remuneration was reviewed and approved by NHS Rotherham CCG’s remuneration 
committee and then NHS Barnsley CCG’s remuneration committee.  Under the pay sector 
guidance; with the joint role and responsibility the remuneration level was deemed 
reasonable and appropriate. 
 
GPs and clinicians on the Governing Body are employed on a sessional basis and so their 
remuneration has not been grossed up on an annualised basis. 
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       Senior manager remuneration (including salary and pension entitlements) [SUBJECT TO AUDIT] 
 

Name and title  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Governing Body Members:** 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 

Salary (bands of 
£5,000) 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

Performance pay 
and bonuses 

(bands of £5,000) 

Long term 
performance pay and 

bonuses (bands of 
£5,000) 

All pension-related 
benefits 

(bands of £2,500)* 

TOTAL (a to e) 
(bands of £5,000) 

        
  

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 

Dr N Balac, Chairman 95-100 90-95 0 0 0 0 0 0 10-12.5 0 110-115 90-95 

L J Smith, Chief Officer (Resigned 
31.08.20)*** 

55-60 20-25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55-60 20-25 

C Edwards, Chief Officer (Recharged 
in from 01.09.20)**** 

0 35-40 0 1.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 35-40 

R Naylor, Chief Finance Officer   100-105 105-110 0 0 0 0 0 0 25-27.5 17.5-20 125-130 125-130 

M Tune, Chief Nurse Acting (from 
13.07.18, seconded out from 
01.07.19)***** 

20-25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20-25 0 

J Sivakumar, Acting Chief Nurse 
(from 1.12.19) 

30-35 90-95 0 0 0 0 0 0 2.5-5 0 30-35 90-95 

Dr J Harban, Governing Body 
Member 

30-35 30-35 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30-35 30-35 

Dr S Krishnasamy, Governing Body 
Member & Medical Director (from 
01.07.19, resigned 31.08.20) 

45-50 20-25 0 0 0 0 0 0 7.5-10 0 55-60 20-25 

Dr M Guntamukkala, Governing Body 
Member (From 01.09.20) and Medical 

Director (From 01.12.20) 
0 25-30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25-30 

Dr M Smith, Governing Body Member 30-35 30-35 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30-35 30-35 

Dr M Simms, Secondary Care 
Clinician, Governing Body Member 

30-35 30-35 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30-35 30-35 

Dr A Adekunle, Governing Body 
Member  

30-35 35-40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30-35 35-40 

C Millington, Lay Member 10-15 10-15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10-15 10-15 

Dr M H Kadarsha, Governing Body 
Member 

30-35 35-40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30-35 35-40 

S Tyler, Lay Member for Accountable 
Care (resigned 30.08.19)  

0-5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0-5 0 
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Name and title  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Governing Body Members:** 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 

Salary (bands of 
£5,000) 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

Performance pay 
and bonuses 

(bands of £5,000) 

Long term 
performance pay and 

bonuses (bands of 
£5,000) 

All pension-related 
benefits 

(bands of £2,500)* 

TOTAL (a to e) 
(bands of £5,000) 

        
  

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 

N Bell, Lay Member for Governance 10-15 10-15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10-15 10-15 

Dr J MacInnes, Governing Body 
member 

30-35 30-35 0 0 0 0 0 0 5-7.5 5-7.5 35.40 35-40 

Other Senior Staff:                  
 

   

R Walker, Head of Governance & 
Assurance 

60-65 55-60 0 0 0 0 0 0 15-17.5 12.5-15 75-80 70-75 

J Wike, Director of Strategic Planning 
and Performance (to 31.10.20), Chief 
Operating Officer (from 01.11.20) 

75-80 95-100 0 0 0 0 0 0 77.5-80 85-87.5 155-160 180-185 

J Holdich Head of delivery (integrated 
primary and out of hospital care) 
(resigned 30.09.19) 

45-50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45-50 0 

J Budd, Director of Commissioning (to 
31.10.20),  Director of Strategic 
Commissioning and Strategic 
Partnerships (from 01.11.20) 

105-110 110-115 0 0 0 0 0 0 25-27.5 25-27.5 130-135 140-145 

 
*All pension related benefits: For defined benefit schemes, the amount included here is the annual increase in pension entitlement determined in accordance with the 
HMRC method: Increase=((20xpension as at 31.3.21)+pension lump sum as at 31.3.21)-((20xpension as at 31.3.20 adjusted by inflation)+pension lump sum as at 31.3.20 
adjusted by inflation). Less the employee pension contributions paid within the year. **Clinicians on the Governing Body are employed on a sessional basis. The Chair is 
employed for 3 days per week; the new medical director is employed for 2 days per week (old 1.5 days per week); the secondary care clinician for 3 days per month; and 
other Governing Body member GPs for 1 day per week. ***The former Chief Officer’s time was partly recharged £60,140 (£27,569 2019/20) to the South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Integrated Care System and £70,969 (£68,160  2019/20) to NHS Sheffield CCG as Chief Officer so the salary band disclosed above in the senior management 
remuneration table relates only to the duties for the CCG. The total remuneration for all employments was £155,498 (£152,647 2019/20) ****The new Chief Officer’s time is 
partly recharged from NHS Rotherham CCG £35,000 (plus car benefit £1,100), (£Nil 2019/20) so the salary band disclosed above in the senior management remuneration 
table relates only to the duties for the CCG. The total remuneration for all employments was £146,218, (Plus car allowance £4,721), (£138,404 plus car allowance £4,721 
2019/20). *****No longer a governing body member 
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Pension benefits as at 31 March 2021 [SUBJECT TO AUDIT] 
 

 
 

 
 

Name and title 
 
 

 
 

Governing Body Members: 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) 

Real Increase 
in pension at 
pension age 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

Real Increase 
in pension 

lump sum at 
pension age 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

Total Accrued 
pension at 

pension age at 
31 March 2021 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Lump sum at 
pension age at 
31 March 2021 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Cash 
Equivalent 

transfer value 
at 01 April 

2020 

Real Increase 
in cash 

equivalent 
transfer value 

Cash 
Equivalent 

transfer value 
at 31 March 

2021 

Employers 
contribution to 

stakeholder 
pension 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

Dr N Balac, Chairman  
0 0 0 0 472 0 0 0 

L J Smith, Chief Officer ** 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

C Edwards, Chief Officer 
(Recharged in from 01.09.20) ** 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

R Naylor, Chief Finance Officer  0-2.5 0 30-35 0 369 12 402 0 

M Tune, Chief Nurse Acting (from 
13..07.18 seconded from 01.07.19) 
**** 

0 0 0 0 641 0 0 0 

J Sivakumar, Acting Chief Nurse 
(from 1.12.19) ** 

0 0 0 0 337 0 0 0 

Dr J Harban, Governing Body 
Member 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Dr S Krishnasamy, Governing Body 
Member & Medical Director (from 
01.07.19, resigned 31.08.20) 

0-2.5 0 10-15 20-25 166 0 173 0 

Dr M Guntamukkala, Governing 
Body Member (From 01.09.20) and 
Medical Director (From 01.12.20) ** 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Dr M Smith, Governing Body 
Member ** 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Dr M Simms, Governing Body 
Member ** 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Dr Adebowale Adekunle, Governing 
Body Member *** 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

C Millington, Lay Member * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Dr M H Kadarsha, Governing Body 
Member *** 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

S Tyler, Lay Member for 
Accountable Care (resigned 
30.8.19)* 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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Name and title 
 
 

 
 

Governing Body Members: 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) 

Real Increase 
in pension at 
pension age 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

Real Increase 
in pension 

lump sum at 
pension age 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

Total Accrued 
pension at 

pension age at 
31 March 2021 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Lump sum at 
pension age at 
31 March 2021 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Cash 
Equivalent 

transfer value 
at 01 April 

2020 

Real Increase 
in cash 

equivalent 
transfer value 

Cash 
Equivalent 

transfer value 
at 31 March 

2021 

Employers 
contribution to 

stakeholder 
pension 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

N Bell, Lay Member for 
Governance* 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Dr J MacInnes, Governing Body 
member  

0-2.5 0 0-5 0 7 1 12 0 

Other Senior Staff:         

R Walker, Head of Governance & 
Assurance  

0-2.5 0 5-10 0 90 9 108 0 

J Wike, Director of Strategic 
Planning and Performance (to 
31.10.20), Chief Operating Officer 
(from 01.11.20) 

2.5-5 0 35-40 0 391 53 463 0 

J Holdich Head of delivery 
(integrated primary and out of 
hospital care) (resigned 30.09.19) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

J Budd, Director of Commissioning 
(to 31.10.20),  Director of Strategic 
Commissioning and Strategic 
Partnerships (from 01.11.20) 

0-2.5 0 5-10 0 70 16 102 0 

Notes:  *Lay Members do not receive pensionable remuneration from the CCG; there are no entries in respect of pensions for those members. ** Member has opted out of the NHS 
pension scheme*** Payment for this individual's work within the CCG is paid directly to them. The amount includes an element for employer's pension contribution and the CCG 
accounts for all pension contributions with payment made to NHS England. ****No longer a governing body member.          
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McCloud pension judgement 
 
NHS Pensions are using pension and lump sum data from their systems without any 
adjustment for a potential future legal remedy required as a result of the McCloud judgement. 
(This is a legal case concerning age discrimination over the manner in which UK public 
service pension schemes introduced a CARE benefit design in 2015 for all but the oldest 
members who retained a Final Salary design.). We believe this approach is appropriate given 
that there is still considerable uncertainty on how the affected benefits within the new NHS 
2015 Scheme would be adjusted in future once legal proceedings are completed. 
 
Cash equivalent transfer values 
 
A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the 
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits 
valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s (or other allowable 
beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. 
 

A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits 
in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses 
to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to 
the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of 
the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. 
 

The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension benefits in 
another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension 
scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result 
of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. 
CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and 
Faculty of Actuaries.  

 
Real increase in CETV 
 
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the 
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, or contributions paid by the employee (including 
the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement).  
 

Compensation on early retirement or for loss of office [SUBJECT TO AUDIT] 
 

No payments have been made in compensation for early retirement or for loss of office.  
 

Payments to past members [SUBJECT TO AUDIT] 
 

A payment of £30 was made to S Tyler in 2020/21. (2019/20: No payments). 
 
Pay multiples [SUBJECT TO AUDIT] 
 

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest paid member in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s 
workforce. 
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The banded remuneration of the highest paid member in NHS Barnsley CCG in the financial 
year 2020/21 was £150,000 - £155,000 (2019/20: £140,000 - £145,000).  This was 3.9 times 
(2019/20: 3.8) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £38,890 (2019/20: 
£37,267). The movement is due to the Agenda for Change salary movements between 
2019/20 and 2020/21. 
 
In 2020/21, no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid member. 
Remuneration ranged from £14,269 to £154,721 (2019/20: £14,124 to £142,294), where the 
salary is calculated on an annualised, full-time equivalent basis. 
 

The remuneration of the Accountable Officer has been pro-rated to an annualised full-time 
equivalent for the purpose of the pay multiple disclosure. 
 

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-
kind, but not severance payments.  It does not include employer pension contributions and 
the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 

 

The highest paid member used to calculate the 2019/20 ratio of the median salary to the 
highest paid member was the previous Accountable Officer. The previous Accountable 
Officer’s time was partly recharged to NHS Sheffield CCG and the South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Integrated Care System so the salary band disclosed in the senior management 
remuneration table related only to the duties for the CCG. 

 

For 2020/21 the highest paid member used to calculate the 2020/21 ratio of the median 
salary to the highest paid member is the new Accountable Officer. The new Accountable 
Officer’s time is partly recharged from NHS Rotherham CCG so the salary band disclosed in 
the senior management remuneration table related only to the duties for the CCG.  
 

Staff Report  

The table below shows the average number of whole time equivalent staff permanently 
employed in the CCG.  

 

 

2020/21 2019/20 

Total  Permanently 
employed 

 

 Other Total 

Number Number Number Number 

 
Total (average Whole Time 
Equivalent WTE staff) 115 111 4 109 

Of the above: 
 
Number of whole time 
equivalent people engaged on 
capital projects 0 0 0 0 
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Staff numbers and costs 2020/21 [SUBJECT TO AUDIT] 
 

 
 
  

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 5,023 4,708 315 1,777 1,726 51 3,246 2,982 264

Social security costs 509 492 17 187 181 6 322 311 11

Employer contributions to the NHS Pension 

Scheme 998 984 14 568 567 1 430 417 13

Other pension costs - - - - - - - - -

Apprenticeship Levy 18 18 - 18 18 - - - -

Other post-employment benefits - - - - - - - - -

Other employment benefits - - - - - - - - -

Termination benefits - - - - - - - - -

Gross employee benefits expenditure 6,548 6,202 346 2,550 2,492 58 3,998 3,710 288

Less recoveries in respect of employee 

benefits (note 3.1.2) - - - - - - - - -

Total - Net admin employee benefits 

including capitalised costs 6,548 6,202 346 2,550 2,492 58 3,998 3,710 288

Less: Employee costs capitalised - - - - - - - - -

Net employee benefits excluding 

capitalised costs 6,548 6,202 346 2,550 2,492 58 3,998 3,710 288

Total 2020-21 Admin Programme
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Staff numbers and costs 2019/20 [SUBJECT TO AUDIT] 
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Staff composition 
 
As at 31 March 2021 the composition of the CCG’s workforce was as follows: 

 
The definition of senior managers was agreed at band 8A and above for the purposes of this 
data. 

 

 
Sickness absence and ill health retirements data 
 
In 2020/21 DHSC has taken the decision not to commission the data production exercise for 
NHS bodies regarding sickness and absence data. NHS Digital publishes NHS sickness 
absence rates at the following link https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-
information/publications/statistical/nhs-sickness-absence-rates  

 

 2020-2021 2019-2020 

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds  0 0 

 £'000 £'000 

Total additional Pensions liabilities accrued in the year 0 0 
       

Ill health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme. 
 
 
 
 

 Permanently employed Other Total 

 Female Male Total Female Male Total Female Male Total 

Governing 
Body 

3 9 12 0 1 1 3 10 13 

Very 
Senior 
Manager 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Director 
0 2 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 

GP 
0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 

Band 8D 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Band 8C 
3 1 4 0 1 1 3 2 5 

Band 8B 
5 2 7 1 0 1 6 2 8 

Band 8A 
24 13 37 2 0 2 26 13 39 

Other staff 
70 7 77 3 0 3 73 7 80 

Total 
105 35 140 6 2 8 111 37 148 

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-sickness-absence-rates
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-sickness-absence-rates


  
 

85  

Staff turnover percentage 
 

The staff turnover rate can be found at https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-
information/publications/statistical/nhs-workforce-statistics  

 
Staff survey 
 
The CCG carried out a bespoke staff survey in 2019/20 – 2020/21. This was a 
comprehensive all staff survey looking at the culture of the organisation and the values and 
views of staff. The survey collected Workforce Race Equality Standards data. This report is 
available to view on the CCG website here. 
 
Throughout 2020/21 a series of regular staff pulse surveys were carried out to understand 
the impact of the pandemic on staff’s own health and wellbeing, their working environment 
and their ability to operate effectively throughout the various periods during the year. These 
survey results were fed back to staff at regular points and actions set across the organisation. 
 
Staff policies 
 
Consultation and engagement with employees is a fundamental principle of good 
employment practice. The CCG holds regular staff briefings open to all staff and heads of 
service hold individual team meetings with their teams. Staff are engaged through their 
meetings and open staff briefings on the strategic direction, delivery and performance of the 
CCG. In addition, there is a CCG-wide staff volunteer group, the Radiators, who meet on a 
monthly basis and where policies are discussed. Members of the Radiators then encourage 
colleagues in their teams to feedback any comments they may have. 
 
The CCG actively welcomes suggestions and ideas from all staff on the ways the CCG can 
improve the overall performance of the organisation.  
 
This year a range of HR policies were reviewed and refreshed. These included the home 
working policy and the study leave policy.  
 
The CCG policies can be found at http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/strategies-policies-and-
plans.htm 

 
Disabled Employees 
 

The CCG always strives to be an inclusive organisation, which is fully committed to a culture 
and environment which actively promotes equality of access and treatment for all employees, 
visitors, contractors and members of the general public. The CCG has published its policies 
covering Equality, Diversity and Human rights. The policies are monitored and updated to 
ensure that best practice is incorporated with regards to all aspects of recruitment and 
selection including the fair treatment of disabled people.  
 
The CCG is a Disability Confident employer which means the organisation has agreed to 
take action to meet the five commitments regarding the employment, retention, training and 
career development of disabled employees. 
 

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-workforce-statistics
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-workforce-statistics
https://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/about-us/workforce-race-equality-standard-2019-2020.htm
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/strategies-policies-and-plans.htm
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/strategies-policies-and-plans.htm
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The CCG is fully committed to ensuring that all employees with a disability have equal access 
to opportunities to develop to their full potential. All career promotion opportunities are made 
widely available to all employees in line with best practice, whilst ensuring that any unfair bias 
and discrimination is eliminated. Monitoring is undertaken to ensure that the CCG remains 
compliant. 

 
All employees are assessed for the training needs to ensure they are compliant with the job 
designation, these assessments will incorporate any reasonable adjustments required to 
ensure that learning and development is fully accessible for all employees. 

 
Other employee matters 
 
This year our staff volunteer group, the Radiators, has introduced a range of improvements 
and activities focused on staff wellbeing as part of the work to support staff during the 
ongoing pandemic.  
 
Traditional activities have had to be replaced as the majority of staff worked from home 
during 2020/21. Risk assessments and health and wellbeing 1-1s were put in place for all 
staff and reviewed over the year. This looked at a range of factors linked to the individual and 
their as further data came out about the higher risks of the coronavirus to certain 
characteristics including ethnicity, gender, and pregnancy for example. 
 
Regular pulse surveys were also put in place to assess people’s personal resilience, the 
pressure, their access to the relevant equipment to be able to do their job. It also focused on 
capturing things that were working well for staff and encouraging people to share the things 
that worked well for them. 
 
In addition to the focus of inequalities brought about by the pandemic, work continued in the 
CCG to meet our EDS2 objectives. A number of training and awareness sessions were put 
on for staff for example and the CCG worked with CCGs across the area to start a BAME 
staff forum. 
 
Colleagues from the CCG also represented their work around allyship at a regional 
conference.  
 
The CCG is also a member of the wider work taking place at the ICS.  SYB is progressing 
well with a number of EDI commitments first proposed towards the end of 2020. Aligned to 
NHS England and NHS Improvement’s (NHSE/I) Workforce Race Equality Standards 
(WRES), SYB identified five key areas for action. One of the key aims was to set-up a 
system-wide EDI Steering Group which I am very pleased to report is up-and-running with 
energy and commitment from all members.  
 
The focus for the first year is race equality issues and, to this end, we are keen to establish a 
new SYB ICS Black Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) Network, which will be a network of 
networks that already exist and work is underway to make this happen.  
 
Our vision to improve the diversity of our leadership in SYB is also gathering momentum; our 
funding bid for a dedicated bespoke BAME talent management programme is also currently 
awaiting a decision, alongside plans to enhance the recruitment of associate Non-Executive 
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Directors (NEDs) from BAME backgrounds (into ICS providers) with a key meeting coming up 
later this month. 

 
To ensure that we remain on-track with our EDI pledges, we intend to capitalise on these 
developments further by ensuring that change is embedded into ICS workstreams by: 
 

• Developing a Race Equality Charter for the ICS 
• Establishing an EDI Executive Steering Group with NED representation, keeping the 

EDI leads as a delivery group 
• Looking at resourcing the further development of EDI work 
• Ensuring this is seen as a system-wide approach system wide 

 
Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) regulations 2017  
 
Under the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) regulations 2017, the CCG 
has to disclose the relationship of Trade Union official’s employment costs and time to the 
whole CCG.  
 
The CCG does not employ any Trade Union officials. We do however have union 
representatives representing CCG staff from a shared service and the disclosure below 
reflects that arrangement.  The relationship with them this year has continued to be positive. 
They have provided regular support to members via video call, email or telephone and 
attendance at staff briefings. 
 
Relevant Union Officials 
What was the total number of your employees who were relevant union officials during the 
relevant period? 

 

Number of employees who were relevant union officials 
during the relevant period 

Full-time equivalent 
number 

1 0.17 

 
Percentage of time spent on facility time 
How many of your employees who were relevant union officials employed during the relevant 
period spent a) 0%, b) 1%-50%, c) 51%-99%, d) 100% of their working hours on facility time? 

 

Percentage of time Number of employees 

0% 0 

1%-50% 1 

51%-99% 0 

100% 0 

 
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time 
Provide the figures requested in the first column of the table below to determine the 
percentage of your total paybill spent on paying employees who were relevant union officials 
for facility time during the relevant period. 

 

 Figures 

Provide the total cost of facility time £1,752.40 

Provide the total pay bill £4,708,000 
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Provide the percentage of the total paybill spent on facility time, 
calculated as: (total cost of facility time ÷total pay bill) × 100 

0.04% 

 
Paid Trade Union activities 
As a percentage of total paid facility time hours, how many hours were spent by employees 
who were relevant union officials during the relevant period on paid trade union activities? 

 

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid 
facility time hours calculated as: (total hours spent on paid trade union 
activities by relevant union officials during the relevant period ÷ total paid 
facility time hours) × 100 

86.9% 

 
Expenditure on consultancy 
 
Consultancy expenditure is the provision to management of objective advice and assistance 
relating to the CCG’s strategy, structure, management or operations. Such assistance will be 
provided outside the “business as usual” environment when in-house skills are not available 
and will be of no essential consequence and time-limited. Services may include the 
identification of options with recommendations and/or assistance with (but not delivery of) the 
implementation of solutions. 
 
No payments were made for consultancy in 2020/21 (2019/2020 £0k). 

 
Off-payroll engagements  

 
It is the Treasury requirements for public sector bodies to report arrangements whereby 
individuals are paid through their own companies and so are responsible for their own tax 
and national insurance arrangements. Payments to GP practices for the services of 
employees and GPs are deemed to be ‘off payroll’ engagements and are therefore subject to 

these disclosure requirements. 
 

Table 1: Length of all highly paid off-payroll engagements longer than 6 months 
 
For all off-payroll engagements as at 31 March 2021, for more than £245 per day:  

  Number 

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2021 0 

Of which, the number that have existed:  

for less than one year at the time of reporting 0 

for between one and two years at the time of reporting 0 

for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting 0 

for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting 0 

for 4 or more years at the time of reporting 0 
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All existing off-payroll engagements, outlined above, have at some point been subject to a 
risk based assessment as to whether assurance is required that the individual is paying the 
right amount of tax and, where necessary that assurance has been sought.  

Table 2: Off-payroll workers engaged at any point during the financial year 

For all off-payroll engagements between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 for more 
than £245 per day. 

  Number 

Number of temporary workers engaged between 1st April 2020 and 31st 
March 2021 

6 

Of which… 

Number not subject to off-payroll legislation 0 

Number subject to off-payroll legislation and determined as in-scope of IR35 6 

Number subject to off-payroll legislation and determined as out of scope of 
IR35 

0 

Number of engagements where the status was disputed under provisions in 
the off-payroll legislation 

0 

Of which: Number of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status following 
review 

0 

Table 3: Off-payroll engagements / senior official engagements 

Off-payroll engagements of Board members and / or senior officials with significant financial 
responsibility, between 01 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 are as follows:  

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or senior officers 
with significant financial responsibility, during the financial year 
 

0 

Total no. of individuals on payroll and off-payroll that have been deemed 
“board members, and/or, senior officials with significant financial 
responsibility”, during the financial year. This figure should include both on 
payroll and off-payroll engagements. 
 

4 

 

The Clinical Chair, two Chief Officers (as Accountable Officer) and the Chief Finance Officer 
are the four members of the Governing Body deemed to have significant financial 
responsibility for the purposes of the table above.  

 
The new Accountable Officer is currently recharged in from NHS Rotherham CCG and the 
remaining three were paid through the payroll during 2020/21. 
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Exit packages, including special (non-contractual) payments [SUBJECT TO AUDIT] 
 

Table 1: Exit Packages  
 

Exit package cost 
band (inc. any special 

payment element 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Cost of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed 

 

Cost of 
other 

departures 
agreed 

Total 
number of 

exit 
packages 

Total cost 
of exit 

packages 

Number of 
departures 

where special 
payments 
have been 

made 
 

Cost of special 
payment element 
included in exit 

packages 

 WHOLE 
NUMBERS 

ONLY 
 

£s 
 
 
 

WHOLE 
NUMBERS 

ONLY 
 

£s 
 
 
 

WHOLE 
NUMBERS 

ONLY 
 

£s 
 
 
 

WHOLE 
NUMBERS 

ONLY 
 

£s 
 
 
 

Less than £10,000 
 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£10,000 - £25,000 
 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£25,001 - £50,000 
 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£50,001 - £100,000 
 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£100,001 - £150,000 
 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£150,001 –£200,000 
 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

>£200,000 
 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTALS 
 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Redundancy and other departure cost have been paid in accordance with the provisions of NHS terms and conditions of service 
(Agenda for Change). Exit costs in this note are accounted for in full in the year of departure. Where NHS Barnsley CCG has 
agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by NHS Barnsley CCG and not by the NHS Pensions Scheme. Ill-health 
retirement costs are met by the NHS Pensions Scheme and are not included in the table.  
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Table 2: Analysis of Other Departures 
 

 Agreements Total Value of 
agreements 

 Number £000s 

Voluntary redundancies including early 
retirement contractual costs 
 

0 0 

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) 
contractual costs 
 

0 0 

Early retirements in the efficiency of the 
service contractual costs 
 

0 0 

Contractual payments in lieu of notice* 
 

0 0 

Exit payments following Employment 
Tribunals or court orders 
 

0 0 

Non-contractual payments requiring HMT 
approval** 
 

0 0 

TOTAL 0 0 

As a single exit package can be made up of several components each of which will be counted 
separately in this Note, the total number above will not necessarily match the total numbers in 
table 1 which will be the number of individuals. 

*any non-contractual payments in lieu of notice are disclosed under “non-contracted payments 
requiring HMT approval” below.  

**includes any non-contractual severance payment made following judicial mediation, and 
amounts relating to non-contractual payments in lieu of notice.  

No non-contractual payments were made to individuals where the payment value was more than 
12 months’ of their annual salary.  

The remuneration report includes disclosure of exit packages payable to individuals named in 
that report.  
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Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report 

NHS Barnsley CCG is not required to produce a Parliamentary Accountability and Audit 
Report. Disclosures on remote contingent liabilities, losses and special payments, gifts, and 
fees and charges are included as notes in the Financial Statements of this report at notes 2, 
11 and 19. 

An audit certificate and report is also included in this Annual Report at the end of the Annual 
Report and Financial Statements. 
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Foreword to the accounts 

 
The Clinical Commissioning Group was licenced from the 1 April 2013 under provisions 
enacted in the Health and Social Act 2012, which amended the National Health Service Act 
2006. 
 
These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared by NHS Barnsley 
Clinical Commissioning Group under c. 7, Schedule 2, S. 17 CCG Annual Report Directions 
(chapter A1 of part 2 of the National Health Service Act 2006 as amended by 14Z15 of the 
Health and Social Act 2012 Reports by Clinical Commissioning Groups) in the form which the 
Department of Health and Social Care has directed. 
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended

31 March 2021

2020-21 2019-20

Note £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services 2 (59) (109)

Other operating income 2 0 0

Total operating income (59) (109)

Staff costs 3 6,548 5,996

Purchase of goods and services 4 483,391 444,562

Depreciation and impairment charges 4 16 13

Provision expense 4 0 0

Other Operating Expenditure 4 395 445

Total operating expenditure 490,350 451,016

Net Operating Expenditure 490,291 450,907

Total Net Expenditure for the Financial Year 490,291 450,907

Other Comprehensive Expenditure 0 0

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year 490,291 450,907

The notes on pages 6 to 25 form part of this statement
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Statement of Financial Position as at

31 March 2021

2020-21 2019-20

Note £'000 £'000

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment 7 20 36

Trade and other receivables 8 79 -

Total non-current assets 99 36

Current assets:

Trade and other receivables 8 915 2,353

Cash and cash equivalents 9 17 30

Total current assets 932 2,383

Total assets 1,031 2,419

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 10 (32,656) (33,934)

Total current liabilities (32,656) (33,934)

Assets less Liabilities (31,625) (31,515)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity

General fund (31,625) (31,515)

Total taxpayers' equity: (31,625) (31,515)

The notes on pages 6 to 25 form part of this statement

The financial statements on pages 2 to 5 were approved by the Governing Body on 10 June 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Christopher Edwards

Chief Accountable Officer

10 June 2021

3



31 March 2021

General fund

Total 

reserves

£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2020-21

Balance at 01 April 2020 (31,515) (31,515)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2020-21

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (490,291) (490,291)

Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial year (490,291) (490,291)

Net funding 490,181 490,181

Balance at 31 March 2021 (31,625) (31,625)

General fund

Total 

reserves

£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20

Balance at 01 April 2019 (25,691) (25,691)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20

Net operating costs for the financial year (450,907) (450,907)

Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial  Year (450,907) (450,907)

Net funding 445,083 445,083

Balance at 31 March 2020 (31,515) (31,515)

The notes on pages 6 to 25 form part of this statement
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

31 March 2021

2020-21 2019-20

Note £'000 £'000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (490,291) (450,907)

Depreciation and amortisation 4 16 13

(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 8 1,359 662

Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 10 (1,278) 5,192

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities (490,194) (445,040)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

(Payments) for property, plant and equipment 0 (49)

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities 0 (49)

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing (490,194) (445,089)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Grant in Aid Funding Received 490,181 445,083

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities 490,181 445,083

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 9 (13) (6)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 9 30 36

Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies 0 0

Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year 9 17 30

The notes on pages 6 to 25 form part of this statement
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting Policies

NHS England has directed that the financial statements of Clinical Commissioning Groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the 

Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following 

financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the DHSC Group Accounting Manual 2020-21, issued by the Department of Health 

and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the Group Accounting Manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the 

extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting 

Advisory Board. Where the DHSC Group Accounting Manual permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be 

most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the Clinical Commissioning Group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been 

selected. The particular policies adopted are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in 

relation to the accounts.

1.1 Going Concern

These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis 

Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as 

evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.

Where a Clinical Commissioning Group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same 

assets, by another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of financial statements. If 

services will continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

1.2 Accounting Convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and 

equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3 Pooled Budgets

Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group has entered into pooled budget arrangements under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 

for activities relating to Children's Services and the Better Care Fund. A memorandum note to the accounts provides details of the joint income 

and expenditure (note 15, Page 23).

The Children's Services pool is hosted by Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council; the Better Care Fund operates on an aligned budget basis. 

The Clinical Commissioning Group makes contributions to the pools, which are then used to purchase healthcare services. The Clinical 

Commissioning Group accounts for its share of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the pools as determined by the pooled budget 

agreement.

1.4 Operating Segments

Income and expenditure are analysed in the Operating Segments note and are reported in line with management information used within the 

Clinical Commissioning Group.

1.5 Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those 

estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 

period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision 

affects both current and future periods.

1.5.1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of 

applying the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 

statements:

Operating lease commitments - The Clinical Commissioning Group has in substance a property lease arrangement with NHS Property Services 

Ltd relating to the headquarters site. NHS England determined that the Clinical Commissioning Group has not obtained substantially all the risks 

and rewards of ownership of this property; the lease has been classified as an operating lease and accounted for accordingly.

Legacy balances in respect of assets and liabilities arising for transactions or delivery of care prior to 31st March 2013 are accounted for by NHS 

England. The Clinical Commissioning Group's arrangements in respect of settling NHS Continuing Healthcare claims are disclosed in Notes to 

these financial statements

1.5.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of applying the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounting 

policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:The Clinical Commissioning Group has included certain accruals within the financial statements which are estimates. The key accruals being 

healthcare contracts, continuing healthcare and prescribing for which the basis of the estimation of the accruals was approved by the Chief 

Finance Officer.

1.6 Revenue

In the application of IFRS 15, a number of practical expedients offered in the Standard have been employed. These are as follows;

• As per paragraph 121 of the Standard the Clinical Commissioning Group will not disclose information regarding performance obligations part of

a contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less,

• The Clinical Commissioning Group is to similarly not disclose information where revenue is recognised in line with the practical expedient 

offered in paragraph B16 of the Standard where the right to consideration corresponds directly with value of the performance completed to date.

• The FReM has mandated the exercise of the practical expedient offered in C7(a) of the Standard that requires the Clinical Commissioning

Group to reflect the aggregate effect of all contracts modified before the date of initial application.

The main source of funding for the Clinical Commissioning Group is from NHS England. This is drawn down and credited to the general fund. 

Funding is recognised in the period in which it is received.

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by transferring promised services to 

the customer, and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to that performance obligation.

Where income is received for a specific performance obligation that is to be satisfied in the following year, that income is deferred.

Payment terms are standard reflecting cross government principles.

The value of the benefit received when the Clinical Commissioning Group accesses funds from the Government’s apprenticeship service are 

recognised as income in accordance with IAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited 

training provider, non-cash income and a corresponding non-cash training expense are recognised, both equal to the cost of the training funded.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.7 Employee Benefits

1.7.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments, including payments arising from the apprenticeship levy, are recognised in the period in 

which the service is received from employees.

The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements on the basis of 2.5 days 

per whole time equivalent employee.

1.7.2 Retirement Benefit Costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Schemes. These schemes are unfunded, defined benefit 

schemes that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and 

Wales. The schemes are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets 

and liabilities. Therefore, the schemes are accounted for as if they were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the Clinical Commissioning 

Group of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the 

liability for any such additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the Clinical Commissioning Group commits itself to the retirement, 

regardless of the method of payment.

The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

Where employees cannot be members of the NHS pension scheme they are enrolled into The National Savings Scheme (NEST). The scheme is 

accounted for a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the Clinical Commissioning Group of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the 

contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.

1.8 Other Expenses

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair 

value of the consideration payable.

Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the Clinical Commissioning Group has a present legal or constructive 

obligation, which occurs when all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.

1.9 Property, Plant & Equipment

1.9.1 Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:

·                It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
·                It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the Clinical Commissioning Group;

·                It is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

·                The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and,

·                The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or,

·                Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are 

functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under 

single managerial control.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components are treated 

as separate assets and depreciated over their individual useful economic lives.

1.9.2 Measurement

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset 

and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Property revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts are not materially different from those that 

would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Land and non-specialised buildings are held at market value for existing use.

IT and fixtures and equipment that are held for operational use are valued at depreciated historic cost where these assets have short useful lives 

or low values or both, as this is not considered to be materially different from current value in existing use.

1.9.3 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairments

Depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible non-current assets, 

less any residual value, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the 

Clinical Commissioning Group expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the Clinical 

Commissioning Group and may be shorter than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each 

year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis. 

At each reporting period end, the Clinical Commissioning Group checks whether there is any indication that any of its property, plant and 

equipment assets or intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable 

amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet available for use are 

tested for impairment annually.

1.10 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases 

are classified as operating leases.

1.10.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as 

a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.11 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents 

are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with 

insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an 

integral part of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at current value.

1.12 Clinical Negligence Costs

The NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Clinical Commissioning Group pays an annual contribution to the NHS 

Resolution which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHS Resolution is 

administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the Clinical Commissioning Group.

1.13 Non-clinical Risk Pooling

The Clinical Commissioning Group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk 

pooling schemes under which the Clinical Commissioning Group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Resolution and, in return, receives 

assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are 

charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.14 Continuing healthcare risk pooling

In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme was introduced by NHS England for continuing healthcare claims, for claim periods prior to 31 March 2013.  

Under the scheme Clinical Commissioning Group contributes annually to a pooled fund, which is used to settle the claims.

1.15 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Clinical Commissioning Group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of 

trade receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired 

or when the asset has been transferred and the Clinical Commissioning Group has transferred substantially all of the risk and rewards or 

ownership or has not retained control of the asset.

The only category of Financial asset applicable to the Clinical Commissioning Group is Loans and receivables, which are measured at amortised 

cost.

1.15.1 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are those held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 

contractual cash flows and where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes most trade receivables, loan 

receivables, and other simple debt instruments.

After initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. The 

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the life of the financial asset to the gross carrying 

amount of the financial asset.

1.15.2 Impairment

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease receivables and contact assets, the Clinical Commissioning Group recognises a loss 

allowance representing expected credit losses on the financial instrument. 

The Clinical Commissioning Group adopts a simplified approach to impairment, in accordance with IFRS 9, and measures the loss allowance for 

trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. For other financial assets, the 

loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial instrument has increased 

significantly since initial recognition (stage 2), and otherwise at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (stage 1)

HM Treasury has ruled that central government bodies may not recognise stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against other government 

departments, their executive agencies, the Bank of England, Exchequer Funds, and Exchequer Funds’ assets where repayment is ensured by 

primary legislation. Clinical Commissioning Group therefore does not recognise loss allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against these 

bodies. Additionally, the Department of Health provides a guarantee of last resort against the debts of its arm’s length bodies and NHS bodies 

(excluding NHS charities), and Clinical Commissioning Group does not recognise loss allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against 

these bodies.

For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses at the reporting date are 

measured as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at 

the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Any adjustment is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

1.16 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when Clinical Commissioning Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, 

in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been 

extinguished – that is, the obligation has been discharged or cancelled or has expired.

1.16.1 Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for loans from the 

Department of Health, which are carried at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

payments through the life of the asset, to the amortised cost of the financial liability.

1.17 Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the Clinical Commissioning Group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax 

on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost 

of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.18 Losses & Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed 

legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the 

generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would 

have been made good through insurance cover had the Clinical Commissioning Group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums 

then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.19 Services Received

The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within ‘operating expenses’.

1.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Clinical Commissioning Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is 

probable that the Clinical Commissioning Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the 

reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. 

1.21 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Clinical Commissioning Group, or a present obligation that 

is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 

measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.22 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The DHSC GAM does not require the following IFRS Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2020-21. These standards are still subject to 

HM Treasury FReM adoption.
·                IFRS 16: Leases - The Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but not yet adopted by the 

FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted. The effective date for adoption of the standard as adapted and interpreted by the FReM was 

originally 1 April 2020 but this has been deferred until 1 April 2022.

·                IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts -Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, but not yet adopted 

by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted.

IFRS 16 Impact on the accounts from 1st April 2022.

IFRS 16 Leases is now applicable from 1 April 2022, superseding IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a 

lease, SIC 15 Operating lease incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the substances of transactions involving the legal form of a lease. The standard 

introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting by removing the distinction between operating and finance leases. 

From 1 April 2022 the Clinical Commissioning Group will recognise a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a lease liability for all leases, except for short-

term leases and leases of low value assets on the Statement of Financial Position (SoFP).

Impact of the new definition of a lease.

The Clinical Commissioning Group following the mandated guidance from NSHE will adopt the practical expedients available on transition to 

IFRS 16 by not reassessing whether a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of a lease in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 

4 will continue to be applied to lease entered or modified before 1 April 2022.

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16 determines whether a contract contains a lease on the basis 

of whether the user has the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Clinical Commissioning Group has developed and executed an adoption plan which consists of;

1.       a qualitative review and analysis of leases to determine the impact of the new standard

2.       an assessment of the impact of the standard on systems and controls

3.       a financial assessment of the impact of application of the standard.

As part of the assessment the Clinical Commissioning Group has applied the definition of a lease and the related guidance detailed in IFRS 16 to 

all lease contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April 2020 to ascertain the accounting classification for each lease post 1 April 2022.

Financial impact of IFRS 16 Adoption

IFRS 16 changes how the Clinical Commissioning Group accounts for leases under IAS 17, with the operating cost solely have been recognised 

with the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure (SoCNE). From 1 April 2022 on the adoption of IFRS 16 the Clinical Commissioning 

Group will:

·       recognise a right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the SoFP, initially measured at the present value of future lease payments based on 

the rate of interest implicit in the lease or the DHSC average borrowing rate;

·       recognise associated depreciation on the right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the SoCNE; and

·       Separate the total amount of cash paid into the principal portion (presented within financing activities) and interest (presented with operating 

activities) in the Consolidated statement of Cash-flows.

For short-term (lease term of less than 12 months) and leases of low-value assets (such as personal computers, office furniture and 

photocopiers), the Clinical Commissioning Group under the permitted expedients within IFRS 16 will continue to recognise the expense on a 

straight line basis within the SoCNE.

The Clinical Commissioning Group as mandated by NHSE will adopt the modified retrospective basis. This method will result in a cumulative 

adjustment to retained earnings as of 1 April 2022, as if IFRS 16 has always been in effect, and whereby comparative periods will not be 

restated. The cumulative effect on adoption of the standard is expected to be £Nil adjustment to reserves.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 is still under review and accordingly adjustments may be subject to change as NHSE finalises its 

processes.

The application of the other Standards that have been issued but have not been adopted would not have a material impact on the accounts for 

2020-21, were they applied in that year.
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2 Other Operating Revenue

2020-21 2019-20

Total Total

£'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services (contracts)

Non-patient care services to other bodies 59 59

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 50

Total Income from sale of goods and services 59 109

Total Operating Income 59 109

2.1 Disaggregation of Income - Income from sale of good and services (contracts)

Non-patient 

care 

services to 

other bodies

Recoveries in 

respect of 

employee 

benefits
£'000 £'000

Source of Revenue

NHS 0 0

Non NHS 59 0

Total 59 0

Non-patient 

care 

services to 

other bodies

Recoveries in 

respect of 

employee 

benefits
£'000 £'000

Timing of Revenue

Point in time 0 0

Over time 59 0

Total 59 0

2.2 Transaction price to remaining contract performance obligations

2020-21 

Total

Revenue 

expected 

from NHSE 

Bodies

Revenue 

expected 

from Other 

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Revenue 

expected from 

Non-DHSC 

Group Bodies

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Not later than 1 year 0 0 0 0
Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years 0 0 0 0
Later than 5 Years 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0

2019-20 

Total

Revenue 

expected 

from NHSE 

Bodies

Revenue 

expected 

from Other 

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Revenue 

expected from 

Non-DHSC 

Group Bodies

Not later than 1 year £000s £000s £000s £000s

Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years 0 0 0 0
Later than 5 Years 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

Contract revenue expected to be recognised in the future periods related to contract performance obligations not yet completed at the 

reporting date

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England for Healthcare and other service 

contracts, this is drawn down directly into the bank account of the CCG and credited to the General fund.
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3. Employee benefits and staff numbers

3.1.1 Employee benefits 2020-21

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 4,708 315 5,023

Social security costs 492 17 509

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 984 14 998

Other pension costs 0 0 0

Apprenticeship Levy 18 0 18

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0

Gross employee benefits expenditure 6,202 346 6,548

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 3.1.2) 0 0 0

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 6,202 346 6,548

Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 6,202 346 6,548

3.1.1 Employee benefits 2019-20

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 4,381 217 4,598

Social security costs 451 6 457

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 920 7 927

Other pension costs 0 0 0

Apprenticeship Levy 14 0 14

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0

Gross employee benefits expenditure 5,766 230 5,996

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 3.1.2) (50) 0 (50)

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 5,716 230 5,946

Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 5,716 230 5,946

3.1.2 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 2020-21 2019-20

Permanent 

Employees Other Total Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits - Revenue

Salaries and wages 0 0 0 (40)

Social security costs 0 0 0 (4)

Employer contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme 0 0 0 (6)

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0 0

Total recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 0 0 (50)

Total

Total
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3.2 Average number of people employed

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Total 111 4 115 106 3 109

Of the above:
Number of whole time equivalent people engaged on capital 

projects 0 0 0 0 0 0

3.3 Exit packages agreed in the financial year

The Clinical Commissioning Group has not paid any exit packages in 2020-21 (2019-20: Nil)

There has not been any non-contractual payments made to individuals where the payment value was more than 12 months’ of their annual salary.

The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that report, where applicable.

Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the latest cost in full, in the year of departure.

2020-21 2019-20

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the Agenda for Change terms and conditions (Section 16) and the Clinical 

Commissioning Group's Organisational Change Policy
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3.4 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and

rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are unfunded defined

benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State for

Health and Social Care in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify

their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined

contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to that

scheme for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be

determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall

be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

The employer contribution rate for NHS Pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% from 1st April 2019. From 2019/20, NHS CCGs 

continued to pay over contributions at the former rate with the additional amount being paid by NHS England on CCGs behalf. The 

full cost and related funding has been recognised in these accounts.

3.4.1 Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at

the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated

membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial

reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2021, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2020, updated

to 31 March 2021 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology

prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the annual

NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies

can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

3.4.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account

recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers. 

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The results of this

valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6% of pensionable pay. The 2016 funding valuation was

also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap that was set following the 2012 valuation. In January

2019, the Government announced a pause to the cost control element of the 2016 valuations, due to the uncertainty around member

benefits caused by the discrimination ruling relating to the McCloud case. 

The Government subsequently announced in July 2020 that the pause had been lifted, and so the cost control element of the 2016

valuations could be completed. The Government has set out that the costs of remedy of the discrimination will be included in this

process. HMT valuation directions will set out the technical detail of how the costs of remedy will be included in the valuation

process. The Government has also confirmed that the Government Actuary is reviewing the cost control mechanism (as was

originally announced in 2018). The review will assess whether the cost control mechanism is working in line with original government

objectives and reported to Government in April 2021. The findings of this review will not impact the 2016 valuations, with the aim for

any changes to the cost cap mechanism to be made in time for the completion of the 2020 actuarial valuations.

The employer contribution rate for NHS Pensions increased from 14.38% to 20.68% (including 0.08% pension levy) from 1st April 

2019. For 2020-21, employers’ contributions of £799,540 (£643,703 excluding staffing recharges) (2019-20: £746,011, excluding 

staffing recharges £613,469) were payable to the NHS Pensions Scheme by the Clinical Commissioning Group at the former rate of 

14.38% of pensionable pay. The balance to the 20.68% actual rate for 2020-21 was paid by NHS England on the Clinical 

Commissioning Group's behalf. The full cost and related funding of £354K (2019-20: £321K) has been recognised in these accounts.
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4. Operating expenses

2020-21 2019-20

Total Total

£'000 £'000

Purchase of goods and services

Services from other CCGs and NHS England (2) 1,691 874

Services from foundation trusts 302,143 281,122

Services from other NHS trusts 16,954 16,900

Services from Other WGA bodies 0 0

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 48,332 38,840

Purchase of social care 13,299 11,983

Prescribing costs 49,605 46,519

Pharmaceutical services 287 466

General Ophthalmic services 147 (55)

GPMS/APMS and PCTMS 46,885 44,086

Supplies and services – clinical 7 6

Supplies and services – general 590 207

Consultancy services 0 0

Establishment    (2) 1,269 1,962

Transport 719 504

Premises 1,041 958

Audit fees 66 44

Other non statutory audit expenditure

·          Internal audit services 0 0

·          Other services  (1) 10 19

Other professional fees 129 65

Legal fees 150 56

Education, training and conferences 67 6

 Total Purchase of goods and services 483,391 444,562

Depreciation and impairment charges

Depreciation 16 13

Total Depreciation and impairment charges 16 13

Other Operating Expenditure

Chair and Non Executive Members 371 412

Grants to Other bodies - -

Clinical negligence - -

Research and development (excluding staff costs) 31 25

Expected credit loss on receivables (7) 8

Other expenditure - -

Total Other Operating Expenditure 395 445

Total operating expenditure 483,802 445,020

Auditor Liability

The total aggregate liability of KPMG is limited per the contract to £2 Million for all defaults, claims,

losses or damages where arising from breach of contract, misrepresentation, tort, breach of statutory duty or otherwise.

1. Other Audit services represents review costs in relation to the Mental Health Investment standard. The value for 2020-21 

includes £12K for the completion of the 2020-21 MHIS review and a (£2K) accrual reversal for 2019-20

2. The IT services contract transferred from Kier Business Services Limited to NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group, 

moving the cost charged to establishment in 2019-20 to Services from CCG's in 2020-21.
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5. Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

Number £'000 Number £'000

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year 14,672 111,641 15,855 96,806

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 14,669 111,640 15,850 96,801

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target 99.98% 100.00% 99.97% 99.99%

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 897 325,128 2,649 299,204

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 897 325,128 2,644 299,181

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 100.00% 100.00% 99.81% 99.99%

The target has been set at 95% for all of the above criteria which has been achieved by the Clinical Commissioning Group.

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Clinical Commissioning Group to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 

days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.

The Clinical Commissioning Group has not made any payments under the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (interest) Act 1998 during 

2020-21 (2019-20: Nil)
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6. Operating Leases

6.1 As lessee

6.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense 2020-21 2019-20

Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments - 102 3 105 - 83 3 86

Contingent rents - - - - - - - -

Sub-lease payments - - - - - - - -

Total - 102 3 105 - 83 3 86

The amount recognised above under Buildings are as follows:

NHS Property Services Ltd £102K (2019-20: £83K). 

The costs recognised in Other, in 6.1.1 / 6.1.2 relate to photocopier leases held by the CCG.

6.1.2 Future minimum lease payments 2020-21 2019-20

Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payable:

No later than one year - - 1 1 - - 3 3

Between one and five years - - - - - - 1 1

After five years - - - - - - - -

Total - - 1 1 - - 4 4

Of the amount paid to NHS Property Services Ltd, £102K (2019-£20: £83K) relates to the occupancy of Hilder House (CCG Headquarters) that was transferred to the 

lessor on the abolition of the Primary Care Trust in 2013: the amount charged represent market rent. The CCG recharged NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning 

Group £4K in 2020/21 for the IT department's occupancy of the CCG Headquarters.

Whilst the Clinical Commissioning Group arrangement with NHS Property Services Limited falls within the definition of an operating lease, rental charge for future 

years has not yet been agreed. Consequently this note does not include future minimum lease payments for those arrangements.
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7. Property, plant and equipment

2020-21

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation at 01 April 2020 691 237 928

Cost/Valuation at 31 March 2021 691 237 928

Depreciation 01 April 2020 655 237 892

Charged during the year 16 - 16

Depreciation at 31 March 2021 671 237 908

Net Book Value at 31 March 2021 20 - 20

Purchased 20 - 20

Total at 31 March 2021 20 - 20

Asset financing:

Owned 20 - 20

Total at 31 March 2021 20 - 20

7.1 Cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets

The cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets still in use was as follows:

2020-21 2019-20

£'000 £'000

Information technology 642 642

Furniture & fittings 237 237

Total 879 879

7.2 Economic lives

Information technology 2 5

Furniture & fittings 5 10

Minimum Life 

(years)

Maximum Life 

(Years)
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8.  Trade and other receivables Current Non-current Current Non-current

2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

NHS receivables: Revenue 0 0 0 0

NHS prepayments 0 0 1,313 0

NHS accrued income 0 0 0 0

NHS Contract Receivable not yet invoiced/non-invoice 101 0 388 0

NHS Non Contract trade receivable (i.e pass through funding) 371 0 53 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Revenue 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA prepayments 149 79 63 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA accrued income 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA Contract Receivable not yet  invoiced/non-invoice 142 0 290 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA Non Contract trade receivable (i.e pass through funding) 149 0 230 0

Expected credit loss allowance-receivables (2) 0 (9) 0

VAT 0 0 22 0

Other receivables and accruals 5 0 3 0

Total Trade & other receivables 915 79 2,353 0

Total current and non current 994 2,353

Included above:

Prepaid pensions contributions 0 0

The great majority of trade is with NHS organisations. As NHS organisations are funded by Government, no credit score is necessary.

8.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired

2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Non DHSC 

Group Bodies

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Non DHSC Group 

Bodies

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

By up to three months 3 84 26 98

By three to six months 0 0 0 21

By more than six months 0 1 0 2

Total 3 85 26 121

£84K of the amount above has subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.

The Clinical Commissioning Group does not hold any collateral against receivable outstanding at 31 March 2021. (2019-20: Nil)

8.2 Loss allowance on asset classes

Trade and other 

receivables - Non 

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Other financial 

assets
Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2020 (9) 0 (9)

Lifetime expected credit loss on credit impaired financial assets 0 0 0

Lifetime expected credit losses on trade and other receivables-Stage 2 7 0 7

Lifetime expected credit losses on trade and other receivables-Stage 3 0 0 0

Credit losses recognised on purchase originated credit impaired financial assets 0 0 0

Amounts written off 0 0 0

Financial assets that have been derecognised  0 0 0

Changes due to modifications that did not result in derecognition  0 0 0

Other changes 0 0 0

Total (2) 0 (2)

8.3 Loss matrix on Lifetime expected credit losses on trade and other receivables-Stage 2

Lifetime 

expected credit 

loss rate

Gross Carrying 

Amount

Lifetime 

expected credit 

loss

Non NHS Debt (excluding other DHSC group bodies) % £'000 £'000

Current - 64 0

 1-30 days 1 78 1

 31-60 days 2 0 0

 61-90 days 5 5 0

 91-120 days 10 0 0

 121-180 days 20 0 0

 181-360 days 50 0 0

 361+ days 100 1 1
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9. Cash and cash equivalents

2020-21 2019-20

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2020 30 36

Net change in year (13) (6)

Balance at 31 March 2021 17 30

Made up of:

Cash with the Government Banking Service 17 30

Cash in hand - 0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 17 30

Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service - -

Bank overdraft: Commercial banks - -

Total bank overdrafts - -

Balance at 31 March 2021 17 30

Patients’ money held by the clinical commissioning group, not included above - -

Current Non-current Current Non-current

2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

NHS payables: Revenue 163 0 2,051 0

NHS accruals 48 0 2,934 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Revenue 6,090 0 4,721 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA accruals 25,728 0 23,654 0

Social security costs 101 0 93 0

VAT 4 0 0 0

Tax 85 0 79 0

Other payables and accruals 437 0 402 0

Total Trade & Other Payables 32,656 0 33,934 0

Total current and non-current 32,656 33,934

There are no liabilities due in future years under arrangements to buy out the liability for early retirement over 5 years (31 March 2020: Nil).

Other payables include £410K outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: £328K)

10. Trade and other payables
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11.  Provisions and Contingencies

12. Commitments

13. Financial instruments

13.1 Financial risk management

13.1.1 Currency risk

13.1.2 Interest rate risk

13.1.3 Credit risk

13.1.4 Liquidity risk

13.1.5 Financial Instruments

The clinical commissioning group borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS England. 

The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, 

fixed for the life of the loan. The clinical commissioning group therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of the NHS clinical commissioning group and revenue comes parliamentary funding, NHS clinical commissioning group 

has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as disclosed 

in the trade and other receivables note.

NHS clinical commissioning group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources voted 

annually by Parliament. The NHS clinical commissioning group draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The NHS clinical 

commissioning group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or 

changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.

Because NHS clinical commissioning group is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced 

by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed 

companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The clinical commissioning group has limited powers to borrow or invest 

surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks 

facing the clinical commissioning group in undertaking its activities.

Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the NHS clinical 

commissioning group standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the 

NHS clinical commissioning group and internal auditors.

The NHS clinical commissioning group is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being 

in the UK and sterling based. The NHS clinical commissioning group has no overseas operations. The NHS clinical commissioning group and 

therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

The Clinical Commissioning Group had no provisions or contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020:Nil) 

However, under the Accounts Directions issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, NHS England is responsible for 

accounting for liabilities relating to NHS Continuing Healthcare claims relating to periods of care before establishment of the 

Clinical Commissioning Group. However, the legal liability remains with the Clinical Commissioning Group.

The total value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare provisions accounted for by NHS England on behalf of this Clinical 

Commissioning Group as at 31 March 2021 is £89K (31 March 2020: £0K).

The total value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare contingent liabilities accounted for by NHS England on behalf of this 

Clinical Commissioning Group as at 31 March 2021 is £4,441K (31 March 2020: £4,583K).

The Clinical Commissioning Group has no contracted capital commitments not otherwise included in these financial statements as at 31 

March 2021 (31 March 2020: Nil)

As the cash requirements of NHS England are met through the Estimate process, financial instruments play a more limited role in creating 

and managing risk than would apply to a non-public sector body.  The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts to buy non-financial 

items in line with NHS England's expected purchase and usage requirements and NHS England is therefore exposed to little credit, liquidity or 

market risk.
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13 Financial instruments cont'd

13.2 Financial assets

Financial Assets 

measured at 

amortised cost Total

2020-21 2020-21

£'000 £'000

Trade and other receivables with NHSE bodies 418 418

Trade and other receivables with other DHSC group bodies 53 53

Trade and other receivables with external bodies 292 292

Other financial assets 5 5

Cash and cash equivalents 17 17

Total at 31 March 2021 785 785

Financial Assets 

measured at 

amortised cost Total

2019-20 2019-20

£'000 £'000

Trade and other receivables with NHSE bodies 281 281

Trade and other receivables with other DHSC group bodies 160 160

Trade and other receivables with external bodies 520 520

Other financial assets 3 3

Cash and cash equivalents 30 30

Total at 31 March 2020 994 994

13.3 Financial liabilities

Financial Liabilities 

measured at 

amortised cost Total

2020-21 2020-21

£'000 £'000

Trade and other payables with NHSE bodies 82 82

Trade and other payables with other DHSC group bodies 138 138

Trade and other payables with external bodies 31,809 31,809

Other financial liabilities 437 437

Total at 31 March 2021 32,466 32,466

Financial Liabilities 

measured at 

amortised cost Total

2019-20 2019-20

£'000 £'000

Trade and other payables with NHSE bodies 586 586

Trade and other payables with other DHSC group bodies 4,468 4,468

Trade and other payables with external bodies 28,306 28,306

Other financial liabilities 402 402

Total at 31 March 2020 33,762 33,762

The Clinical Commissioning Group has a financial liability of £32,466K as at the 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020 £33,762K). 

All of this liability is due to be settled within the financial year ended 31 March 2022.
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14. Operating segments

The Clinical Commissioning Group considers that it has only one segment in terms of Operating segments: the commissioning of Healthcare services

2020-21

£'000

Total Gross Expenditure (as per Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure) 490,350

Total Gross Income (as per note 2) (59)

Total Net Expenditure as at 31 March 2021 490,291

Total Assets (as per Statement of Financial Position) 1,031

Total Liabilities (as per Statement of Financial Position) (32,656)

Total Net Assets as at 31 March 2021 (31,625)

During the year the Clinical Commissioning Group spent £486,325,000 on the commissioning of Healthcare and other services (net 

programme expenditure), Gross programme Expenditure £486,384,000 less Gross programme Income £59,000 . This represents 99.2% of 

the Clinical Commissioning Group's net expenditure.

54.0% of the Clinical Commissioning Group's net programme expenditure was expensed with the two main local providers £198,611,000 

(40.8%) to Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and £64,239,000 (13.2%) to South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust.
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15. Pooled budgets - interests in joint operations

Children and Young People's Trust

Summary of the pooled budget is shown below;

2020-21 2019-20

£'000 £'000

Contribution to pooled commissioning budget:

Opening balance as at 1 April 0 0

Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group 4,814 6,456

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council 34,790 33,020

39,604 39,476

Services Commissioned from the pooled budget:

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council 35,792 33,960

South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 1,656 4,266

Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group 2,156 1,250

Over/ (under) spend (1,665) 278

Transfer / Use of Balances 1,665 (278)

Total Commissioned services 39,604 39,476

Closing balance as at 31 March 0 0

2020-21 2019-20

£'000 £'000

Contribution to pooled commissioning budget:

Opening balance as at 1 April 0 1,388

Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group 20,736 19,682

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council 16,432 16,031

37,168 37,101

Services commissioned from the pooled budget:

Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group 9,558 9,072

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council 27,610 28,029

Total Commissioned services 37,168 37,101

Closing balance as at 31 March 0 0

The Clinical Commissioning Group shares of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in 

the financial year were:

In line with the national announcement of the creation of a Better Care Fund (BCF) in December 2013, the Clinical

Commissioning Group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement with Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council (BMBC) with

effect from 1 April 2015. The aims of the BCF are to improve outcomes for the population of Barnsley by improving integration

of health and social care services. This was underpinned by a Section 75 agreement between commissioners. Governance

arrangements are in place through the Barnsley Senior Strategic Development Group and the Barnsley Health and Wellbeing

Board. The Clinical Commissioning Group hosted the arrangement during 2020-21 and 2019-20 period.

Barnsley Better Care Fund

A summary of the pooled budget is shown below;

The Clinical Commissioning Group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement with Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council

(BMBC) under S75 of the Health Care Act 2006.

Both parties contribute funds to a pooled commissioning budget, which is hosted by BMBC. The pooled budget is managed by

the Executive Commissioning Group.

This group allocates the funds to the Children and Young People's Trust to commission Childrens services.

The £1,665K surplus in the pool has been addressed by the relevant organisation at the year end under IFRS 11 Joint

arrangements and is based upon each organisation taking its statutory obligations.

The Clinical Commissioning Group has recognised a surplus of £1,208K in its financial statements for 2020-21 this relates to

the budgets the Clinical Commissioning Group has a statutory obligation for. BMBC has recognised a surplus of £457K.
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16. Related party transactions

Payments 

to Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

St Georges Medical Centre Dr Balac Governing Body Chair Practice Payments 1,294 3 84 0

Lundwood Medical Practice Dr Harban Governing Body Member Practice Payments 916 2 51 0

Kakoty Practice Dr Harban Governing Body Member Practice Payments 930 0 53 0

Royston Group Practice Dr Krishnasamy Governing Body Member Practice Payments 1,239 1 75 0

Victoria Medical Centre Dr Smith Governing Body Member Practice Payments 1,616 5 92 0

Wombwell Chapelfields Medical Centre Dr Adekunle Governing Body Member Practice Payments 1,710 2 109 0

Hollygreen Practice Dr Kadarsha Governing Body Member Practice Payments 2,175 1 86 0

Lakeside Surgery Dr Kadarsha Governing Body Member Practice Payments 359 0 17 0

Grove Medical Centre Dr Guntamukkala Governing Body Member Practice Payments 816 0 46 0

Apollo Court Medical Practice Dr Guntamukkala Governing Body Member Practice Payments 822 0 43 0

Dove Valley practice Dr MacInnes Governing Body Member Practice Payments 1,873 1 101 0

 - NHS England and other Clinical Commissioning Groups

 - NHS Foundation Trusts

 - NHS Trusts

 - NHS Resolution and

 - NHS Business Services Authority

In addition the CCG had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies.

The majority of these transactions have been with Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council.

None of the above are classified are bad or doubtful debts in the Clinical Commissioning Group's accounts.

Note 16.1 Barnsley Healthcare Federation (Community Interest Company)

During 2020-21 the Clinical Commissioning Group recognised an income recharge with the Community Interest Company of £145,449

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

The above payments to practices includes delegated Primary Care Co-commissioning arrangements which are contractual under General/Personal or Alternative Provider 

Medical service contracts. 

Dr Balac, Governing Body Chair for the Clinical Commissioning Group. St Georges Medical Centre is a member of Barnsley Healthcare Federation, a Community Interest 

Company (CIC) see note 16.1. Two of the partners of St Georges Medical Centre are also partners at Kingswell Surgery. Dr Balac is also the Clinical lead for primary care 

for the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System.

Dr Harban, Governing Body Member for the Clinical Commissioning Group is a Director for Lundwood Surgical Services Ltd and was a Director of Connect Medical 

Recruitment: no transactions have been recorded with either of the entities in 2020-21. Dr Harban & Partners is a member of Barnsley Healthcare Federation, a 

Community Interest Company (CIC) see note 16.1. Dr Harban is also a partner at Kakoty Practice which is a member of Barnsley Healthcare Federation, a Community 

Interest Company (CIC) see note 16.1

Dr Krishnasamy, Previous governing Body Member for the Clinical Commissioning Group is a Director for SKSJ Medicals Ltd: no transactions have been recorded with the 

entity in 2020-21. Royston Group Practice is a member of Barnsley Healthcare Federation, a Community Interest Company (CIC) see note 16.1

The Clinical Commissioning Group also made expenditure transactions totalling £6,604,259 predominantly relating to contractual payments for the provision of primary 

medical services.

Dr Guntamukkala, Governing Body Member for the Clinical Commissioning Group. Grove Medical practice and Apollo Court Medical Practice are members of Barnsley 

Healthcare Federation, a Community Interest Company (CIC) see note 16.1. 

Dr Smith, Governing Body Member is a Director of Janark Medical Ltd: no transactions have been recorded with the entity in 2020-21. Senior Partner at Victoria Medical 

Centre. Victoria Medical Centre is a member of Barnsley Healthcare Federation, a Community Interest Company (CIC) see note 16.1

Dr Adekunle, Governing Body Member for the Clinical Commissioning Group. Wombwell Chapelfields Medical Centre is a member of Barnsley Healthcare Federation, a 

Community Interest Company (CIC) see note 16.1. He also provides clinical services to Local Care Direct Wakefield, no transactions have been recorded in 2020-21.

Dr Kadarsha, Governing Body Member for the Clinical Commissioning Group is a Director for YAAOZ Ltd and Malkarsha Properties Ltd: no transactions have been 

recorded with these entities in 2020-21. Dr Kadarsda is a shareholder in Primecare Ltd, which holds the APMS contract for Lakeside Surgery. Hollygreen and Lakeside 

Surgery are members of Barnsley Healthcare Federation, a Community Interest Company (CIC) see note 16.1

Lesley Smith, The previous Chief Officer for the Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (resigned 31.08.20) and the current Interim Chief officer for the Sheffield Clinical 

Commissioning Group, and is also the deputy system lead for South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated care System.

Dr MacInnes, Governing Body Member for the Clinical Commissioning Group is a partner at Dove Valley practice. This practice is a member of Barnsley Healthcare 

Federation, a Community Interest Company (CIC) see note 16.1

In regard to outstanding balances for both payables and receivables the Clinical Commissioning group's terms are 30 days. These values are not secured and no guarantees are 

given or received but the amounts are settled in cash.

Jayne Sivakumar, The Acting Chief Nurse is a Director for RJS Healthcare Ltd: no transactions have been recorded with this entity in 2020-21.

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year the Clinical Commissioning Group has had a number of material transactions 

with entities from which the Department is regarded as the parent department. For example

The Barnsley Healthcare Federation was setup in to provide NHS Primary care services to the population of Barnsley.

The organisation is made up of a significant number of Barnsley GP practices. The Governing Body members mentioned above are related to practices that are part of the 

Barnsley Healthcare Federation.
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17. Events after the end of the reporting period

18. Financial performance targets

The Clinical Commissioning Group has a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).

The Clinical Commissioning Group's performance against those duties was as follows:

2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

NHS Act Section Target £'000
Performance 

£'000

Duty 

Achieved
Target £'000

Performance 

£'000
Duty Achieved

223H (1) Expenditure not to exceed income 490,545 490,350 Yes 451,065 451,065 Yes

223I (2)

Capital resource use does not exceed the 

amount specified in Directions 0 0 Yes 49 49 Yes

223I (3)

Revenue resource use does not exceed the 

amount specified in Directions 490,486 490,291 Yes 450,907 450,907 Yes

223J (1)

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) 

does not exceed the amount specified in 

Directions 0 0 Yes 49 49 Yes

223J (2)

Revenue resource use on specified 

matter(s) does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions 0 0 Yes 0 0 Yes

223J (3)

Revenue administration resource use does 

not exceed the amount specified in 

Directions 5,242 3,966 Yes 5,872 4,210 Yes

19. Losses and special payments

Losses

Total Number of Cases

Total Value 

of Cases

Total Number of 

Cases

Total Value 

of Cases

2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

Number £'000 Number £'000

Administrative write-offs 0 0 2 3

Fruitless payments 0 0 0 0

Store losses 0 0 0 0

Book Keeping Losses 0 0 0 0

Constructive loss 0 0 0 0

Cash losses 0 0 0 0

Claims abandoned 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 2 3

The CCG had no cases individually over £300,000 (31 March 2020: Nil)

Special payments

Total Number of 

Cases

Total Value 

of Cases

Total Number of 

Cases

Total Value 

of Cases

2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

Number £'000 Number £'000

Compensation payments 0 0 0 0

Compensation payments Treasury Approved 0 0 0 0

Extra Contractual Payments 0 0 0 0

Extra Contractual Payments Treasury Approved 0 0 0 0

Ex Gratia Payments 0 0 0 0

Ex Gratia Payments Treasury Approved 0 0 0 0

Extra Statutory Extra Regulatory Payments 0 0 0 0

Extra Statutory Extra Regulatory Payments Treasury Approved 0 0 0 0

Special Severance Payments Treasury Approved 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0

For the purposes of 223(H); expenditure is defined as the aggregate of gross expenditure on revenue and capital in the financial year and income is defined as the aggregate of 

the notified maximum revenue resource, notified capital resource and all other amounts accounted as received in the financial year (whether under provisions of the Act or from 

other sources, and included here on a gross basis)

Financial performance targets for 2020-21 represent the in year position. The Clinical Commissioning Group's historic surplus brought forward from 2019-20 into 2020-21 was 

£12,532K. The actual performance for 2020-21 was a surplus of £195K, which means that the carried forward surplus into 2021-22 is £12,727K.

The total number of NHS Clinical Commissioning Group losses and special payments cases, and their total value, was as follows:

There are no events after the end of the reporting period which will have a material effect on the financial statements of the Clinical Commissioning Group. (2019-20: Nil)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE 
GOVERNING BODY OF NHS BARNSLEY CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (“the 
CCG”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net 
Expenditure, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flows, and the related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of  the state of the CCG’s af fairs as at 31 March 2021 and of  its 

income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the accounting policies directed by NHS 
England with the consent of the Secretary of State as being relevant to CCGs in England 
and included in the Department of  Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 
2020/21. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs 
(UK)”) and applicable law.  Our responsibilities are described below.  We have fulf illed our 
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the CCG in accordance with, UK ethical 
requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard.  We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. 

Going concern 

The Accountable Officer has prepared the f inancial statements on the going concern basis as 
they have not been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the CCG 
without the transfer of its services to another public sector entity. They have also concluded 
that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to 
continue as a going concern for at least a year f rom the date of  approval of the f inancial 
statements (“the going concern period”).   
 
In our evaluation of the Accountable Officer’s conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to 
the CCG’s operating model and analysed how those risks might affect the CCG’s f inancial 
resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period.  

Our conclusions based on this work: 

• we consider that the Accountable Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate; 

• we have not identified, and concur with the Accountable Officer’s assessment that there is 
not, a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, 
may cast significant doubt on the CCG’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going 
concern period. 

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may 
result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they 
were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a 
guarantee that the CCG will continue in operation.   
 
 
Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations – ability to detect 

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud 



To identify risks of material misstatement due to f raud (“f raud risks”) we assessed events or 
conditions that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity 
to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included: 
 
• Enquiring of management, the Audit Committee and internal audit and inspection of policy 

documentation as to the CCG’s high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect 
f raud, including the internal audit function, and the CCG’s channel for “whistleblowing”, as 
well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. 

• Assessing the incentives for management to manipulate reported expenditure as a result 

of  the need to achieve statutory targets delegated to the CCG by NHS England. 

• Reading Governing Body and Audit Committee minutes. 

• Using analytical procedures to identify any usual or unexpected relationships. 

• Reviewing the CCG’s accounting policies. 

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any 
indications of fraud throughout the audit. 

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet 
delegated statutory resource limits, we performed procedures to address the risk of  
management override of controls, in particular the risk that CCG management may be in a 
position to make inappropriate accounting entries. 
 
On this audit we did not identify a f raud risk related to revenue recognition because of the nature 
of  funding provided to the CCG, which is transferred f rom NHS England and recognised through 
the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity. However, in line with the guidance set out in 
Practice Note 10 Audit of Financial Statements of Public Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom 
we recognised a fraud risk related to expenditure recognition.  
 
We did not identify any additional fraud risks. 
 
We performed procedures including:  

• Identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries 
to supporting documentation. These included journals posted by the CFO, journals posted 
and approved by the same user and unusual cash journals 

• Assessing the completeness of disclosed related party transactions and verifying they had 
been accurately recorded within the financial statements.  

• Reviewing the completeness of  information provided by the CCG as part of  the ‘NHS 
Agreement of Balances’ exercise to ensure consistency with the information in the accounts. 

• Assessing the completeness and accuracy of recorded expenditure through specific testing 
over purchases from non-NHS bodies and Non- NHS accruals 

• Inspecting a sample of invoices received and payments made before and after year end to 

corroborate whether those items were recorded in the correct accounting period. 

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws 
and regulations 

We identified areas of  laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a 
material ef fect on the f inancial statements f rom our general sector experience and through 
discussion with the directors and other management (as required by auditing standards), the 
policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.   
 
As the CCG is regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining an understanding of the 
control environment including the entity’s procedures for complying with regulatory 
requirements.  



We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to 
any indications of non-compliance throughout the audit. 

The potential ef fect of  these laws and regulations on the f inancial statements varies 
considerably. 
 
The CCG is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the f inancial statements including 
f inancial reporting legislation. Under the NHS Act 2006, as amended by paragraph 223I1 (3) of 
Section 27 of  the Health and Social Care Act 2012, the CCG must ensure that its revenue 
resource allocation in any f inancial year does not exceed the amount specified by NHS 
England. Expenditure in excess of the amount specified is unlawful.  
 
We assessed the extent of  compliance with these laws and regulations as part of  our 
procedures on the related f inancial statement items and our work on the regularity of  
expenditure incurred by the CCG in the year of account.  
 
Whilst the CCG is subject to many other laws and regulations, we did not identify any others 
where the consequences of non-compliance alone could have a material effect on amounts or 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation 

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have 
detected some material misstatements in the f inancial statements, even though we have 
properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, 
the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is f rom the events and 
transactions ref lected in the f inancial statements, the less likely the inherently limited 
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.   

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are 
not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-
compliance with all laws and regulations. 

 

Other information in the Annual Report 

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report 
together with the financial statements.  Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as 
explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on 
our f inancial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge.  Based solely on that work: 

• we have not identified material misstatements in the other information; and 

• in our opinion the other information included in the Annual Report for the f inancial year is 
consistent with the financial statements. 

 

Annual Governance Statement  

We are required to report to you if the Annual Governance Statement has not been prepared 
in accordance with the requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual 2020/21.  We have nothing to report in this respect. 

Remuneration and Staff Reports  

In our opinion the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Reports subject to audit have been 
properly prepared in accordance with the Department of  Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual 2020/21. 



 

Accountable Officer’s responsibilities 

As explained more fully in the statement set out on page 38, the Accountable Of ficer is 
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view.  They are 
also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of f inancial statements that are f ree f rom material misstatement, whether due to 
f raud or error; assessing the CCG’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless they have been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the 
CCG without the transfer of its services to another public sector entity. 

 

Auditor’s responsibilities  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the f inancial statements as 
a whole are f ree f rom material misstatement, whether due to f raud or error, and to issue our 
opinion in an auditor’s report.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if , individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.   

A fuller description of  our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at 
www.f rc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY MATTERS 

Opinion on regularity  

We are required to report on the following matters under Section 25(1) of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. 

In our opinion, in all material respects, the expenditure and income recorded in the f inancial 
statements have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the f inancial 
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Report on the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources  

Under the Code of  Audit Practice, we are required to report if  we identify any significant 
weaknesses in the arrangements that have been made by the CCG to secure economy, 
ef f iciency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  

We have nothing to report in this respect. 

Respective responsibilities in respect of our review of arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources   

As explained more fully in the statement set out on page 38 the Accountable Of f icer is 
responsible for ensuring that the CCG exercises its functions ef fectively, ef ficiently and 
economically.  We are required under section 21(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 to be satisfied that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
ef f iciency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the CCG’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of  resources are 
operating effectively. 

We planned our work and undertook our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice 
and related statutory guidance, having regard to whether the CCG had proper arrangements in 
place to ensure financial sustainability, proper governance and to use information about costs 
and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services. Based on our risk 
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary.  

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Statutory reporting matters 
  
We are required by Schedule 2 to the Code of  Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and 
Auditor General (‘the Code of  Audit Practice’) to report to you if  we refer a matter to the 
Secretary of State and NHS England under section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 because we have reason to believe that the CCG, or an officer of the CCG, is about to 
make, or has made, a decision which involves or would involve the body incurring unlawful 
expenditure, or is about to take, or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its 
conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency. 

We have nothing to report in this respect. 

THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM WE OWE OUR 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

This report is made solely to the Members of the Governing Body of NHS Barnsley CCG, as a 
body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.  Our audit work 
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Members of the Governing Body of the CCG, 
as a body, those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other 
purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the Members of the Governing Body, as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report or for the opinions we have formed. 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT 

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of NHS Barnsley CCG for the year 
ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

 
 
 
Rashpal Khangura 
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP,  
Chartered Accountants 
1 Sovereign Square 
Sovereign street 
Leeds 
LS1 4DA 
 
11 June 2021 


